
 

 

Date: 27th September, 2024 

To, 

The Manager, 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra – 400001. 

 

Scrip Code: 538351 

      BSE Symbol: AFEL 

 

Subject: Submission of revised Annual Report for The Financial Year 2023-2024 

 

This is to inform that, pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and in continuation of our intimation dated 03rd September, 2024 regarding Submission of Annual 

Report for the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company hereby submitted the revised Annual Report for the F.y.2023-

24. 

 

We further wish to state that the previous Annual Report contained improper formatting and changes which are being 

revised in this revised Annual Report. 

 

Kindly take the above on your records. 

 

For A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

 

 

                   Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 

                   (Managing Director) 

                   DIN: 02994228 

 



 

 

 

Date: 03rd September, 2024 

To, 

The Manager, 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra – 400001. 

 

Scrip Code: 538351 

      BSE Symbol: AFEL 

 

Subject: Compliance Under Regulation 34 Of The SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015- Annual Report For The Financial Year 2023-2024 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we 

hereby submit the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024, along with the Notice of Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) scheduled to be held on Wednesday, the 25th day of September, 2024 at 12.00 P.M. through 

Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM). 

 

 The soft copies of the Annual Report are being dispatched today electronically to those Members whose email IDs 

are registered with the Company/Depositories and RTA of the Company as on cutoff date i.e. 30th August,2024. This 

is for your information and record. 

 

Thanking you, 

Yours Faithfully, 

For A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

 

 

                   SANTOSH KUMAR KUSHAWAHA 

 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 02994228 
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NOTICE OF THE 41ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that Forty-One Annual General Meeting (41st AGM) of the members of A F 

Enterprises Limited (CIN: L18100DL1983PLC016354) will be held on Wednesday, September 25th, 2024 at 

12:00 PM (IST) through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Video Means (VC/ OAVM), to transact the 

following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt 

 

(a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 together with the 

reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon with annexures; 

(b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 together with the 

report of Auditors thereon with annexures;  

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha (DIN: 02994228), who retires by rotation 

at this AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:  

 

3. Appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg (DIN: 10643307) as an Independent Director of the Company. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 

Resolution 

 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications 

of Directors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being 

in force) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and approval of the Board of Directors for appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg (DIN: 10643307) as an 

Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. August 29, 2024, who has 

submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act 

and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the 

Company has received a notice in writing in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act and who holds office as such up 

to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby, appointed as a Non-Executive Independent 

Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of five years with effect from 

August 29, 2024 till August 28, 2029.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all 

such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolution.” 

 

4. To alter the Articles of Association of the Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, 

to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution  
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject to such other approvals, 

consents, sanctions and permissions as may be necessary, the consent of the members of the Company be and 

is hereby accorded to deletion of the clause 13(i)proviso calls on shares of Article of Association of the company. 

 

“Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less than one 

month from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call.” 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Directors of the 

Company and Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as may be necessary or expedient in this regard.” 

 

          For AF Enterprises Limited 

          

 

                                                                              Sd/- 

  Neha Srivastava 

Date: 29-08-2024 

Place: New Delhi 

Company Secretary &  

Compliance Officer 

M.No. 43927 
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NOTES: 
 

1. In view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs circulars May 05,2022 and 28-12-2022  & SEBI circular dated 

May 13,2022  and permitting holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video conference 

(VC) / Other    Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the  physical presence of the Members at a common 

venue and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and earlier 

MCA Circulars, the ensuing AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue 

for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

2.  A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF. 

SUCH PROXY/ PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THE 

ENSUING AGM IS BEING HELD THROUGH VC / OAVM, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF 

MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY FOR 

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THE 

AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED TO 

THIS NOTICE. 

 

3.  Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/ Authorization etc., authorizing 

its representative to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. 

The said Resolution/   Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through his registered email   

address to cssumitbajaj@gmail.com with a copy marked to www.evoting.nsdl.com . The cutoff date to 

decide the eligibility of members to attend and vote at AGM is 18th September, 2024. 

 

4.  The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Regulation 36 (5) of SEBI Listing Regulation in respect to 

item no. 3 to 4 set out in the notice and pursuant to Section102(1) of The Companies Act, 2013 in respect 

to item number 3 to 4 are set out in the Notice is annexed hereto and form part of the Notice. 

 

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday the 

19th September, 2024 to Wednesday, the 25th September, 2024 (Both days inclusive) for the purpose of 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

6. Brief resume of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed, nature of their expertise in 

specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/ 

chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships between directors are provided in the 

Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual/ Notice/ Directors Report. The details of 

appointment/re-appointment of retiring directors are given in Annexure ‘A’ is forming part of Notice for 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

7. E voting facility will be available to all the shareholders of the Company. 

 

8. Annual Report is available at website of the company i.e. www.afenterprisesltd.in  

 

9. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to communicate their change of postal address 

(enclose copy of Aadhar Card), e-mail address, if any, PAN (enclose self-attested copy of PAN Card) and 

Bank account details (enclose cancelled cheque leaf) quoting their folio numbers to the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, New 

Delhi110020. Similarly, members holding shares in Demat form shall intimate the above details to their 

respective Depository Participants. 

 

mailto:cssumitbajaj@gmail.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/


 
 

 

Page | 5  
 

10. Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of 

residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial 

Ownership Declaration, Tax  Residency Certificate, any other document which may be required to avail 

the tax treaty benefits by sending an email to info@skylinerta.com . The aforesaid declarations and 

documents need to be submitted by the shareholders on or before the end of business hours of 18th 

September, 2024. 

 

11. Members who require any clarifications on accounts or operations of the Company are requested to write 

to the Company Secretary of the company at registered office of the company or by email at 

info.afenterprises@gmail.com so as to reach by 12th September, 2024 (5.00 pm IST). The queries will be 

answered    accordingly. 

12. Members who want to participate in discussion and express their views at AGM must lodge their request 

by 18th September, 2024, by 5.00 P.M. by post at registered office of the company or by email at 

info.afenterprises@gmail.com. 

 

13. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 

2021, May 5, 2022, December, 28, 2022 and SEBI Circular dated May 13, 2022, Electronic copy of the 

Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-2024 is being sent only through electronic mode to 

those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note 

that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-2024 will also be available on the Company’s website 

www.afenterprisesltd.in  and website of the BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. 

  

14. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Act. In case of Joint holders, the member whose name appears as First Holder in 

the order of names on the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

 

15. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map of the venue is not annexed to this Notice. 

 

16. The results of the remote e-voting and e-voting during the Annual General Meeting will be announced by 

the Chairman or a person authorized by the Chairman within 2 days from the date of conclusion of the 

Annual General Meeting at the Registered office of the Company. A copy of which will be posted on the 

Company’s website and forwarded to Stock Exchanges. 

 

17. The Registers and documents maintained under the Act, which are eligible for inspection, will be available 

electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. 

 

18. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the 

Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding shares 

as of the cut-off date i.e. 18.09.2024, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e voting, 

then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, 

you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000. In case of 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and 

becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date 

i.e. 18.09.2024 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-Voting 

system”. 

 

19. Updation of Permanent Account Number (PAN)/ Bank Account Details of Members: 

 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular no. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73   dated 20th April, 2018 has mandated registration of PAN and 

mailto:info@skylinerta.com
mailto:info.afenterprises@gmail.com
mailto:info.afenterprises@gmail.com
http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
http://www.bseindia.com/
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Bank Account Details for all security holders. Members holding Shares in physical for are therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account details to Share Transfer Agent of the Company along 

with self attested copy of PAN and original cancelled cheque. The original cancelled cheque should bear 

the name of the Member. In the alternative Members are requested to submit a copy of Bank 

passbook/statement attested by the bank. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to submit 

the aforesaid information to their respective Depository Participant.  

 

20. Updation of Member’s Details: 

 

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the 

Companies    Act, 2013 requires the Company / Share Registrars and Transfer Agents to record additional 

details of members, including their PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. 

A form for compiling the additional details is appended in this Notice. 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled in form to the Company or its 

Share Registrars and Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit 

the details to their respective Depository Participants 

 

21. SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form, from 

a cut-off date, to be notified. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, 

members are advised to dematerialize shares held by them in physical form.  

 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and 

pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 

02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance 

of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video 

conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the 

ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM. 

 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 

facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM. 

However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the EGM/AGM 

through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 

the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 

participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 

served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 

Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 

etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013. 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility 
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of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, 

the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for 

facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a 

member using remote e-Voting    system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided 

by NSDL. 

 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice 

calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.afenterprisesltd.in  The Notice 

can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM 

Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 

www.evoting.nsdl.com 

 

7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA Circular No. 

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 

dated January 13, 2021. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 

MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 22ndSeptember, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, 24th 

September,2024 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 

Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off 

date) i.e. 19th September, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 

proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 19th 

September, 2024. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode  

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 

in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-

Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 

available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID 

and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 

facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 

without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 

visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information 

provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-

Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, 

there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so 

that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL 

website www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

click on registration option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 

page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 

Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 

able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 

directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging 

in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 

to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-

Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 

Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 

2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free 

no. 1800 22 55 33  
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 

with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, 

click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares 

i.e. Demat (NSDL or 

CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who 

hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who 

hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding 

shares in Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 

was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 

and the system will force you to change your password. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 

email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 

digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held 

in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose 

email ids are not registered. 

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of 

NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 

casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” 

link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders: 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

cssumitbajaj@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other 

than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority 

Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 

their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts 

to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com  to reset 

the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 

user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 

4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 

and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 

the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (Company email id). 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email 

id). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to 

the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 

number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 

doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 

on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

mailto:cssumitbajaj@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 

e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-

Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu 

against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. 

The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will 

be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have 

forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 

mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 

therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

info.afenterprises@gmail.com  The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
      

          
 

         For AF Enterprises Limited 

                                                                                        

Sd/- 

                                                          Neha Srivastava 

Date: 29-08-2024 

Place: New Delhi 

                                              Company Secretary &  

                                                    Compliance Officer 

                                                               M.No. 43927 

 

 

 

mailto:info.afenterprises@gmail.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Item no. 3  
 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 29, 2024, appointed Ms. Geetika Garg (DIN: 

10643307) as an Additional Director of the Company in the capacity of Independent Director for a term of 5 years with 

effect from August 29, 2024, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company. In terms of section 160 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Board Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have recommended 

the appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg as an Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Company has also received a notice in writing from a member proposing the candidature of Ms. Geetika Garg to  

be appointed as Director of the Company. The Company has received a declaration from Ms. Geetika Garg confirming that 

she meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Company has also received Ms. Geetika Garg’s consent to act as a Director 

in terms of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration that she is not disqualified from being appointed as a 

Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Geetika Garg fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for his appointment as an 

Independent Director of the Company and he is independent of the management. Considering Ms. Geetika Garg’s 

knowledge and experience, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to 

appoint him as an Independent Director for a period of five years with effect from August 29, 2024. Copy of letter of 

appointment of Ms. Geetika Garg setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is being made available for inspection 

by the members through electronic mode. Additional information in respect of Ms. Geetika Garg, pursuant to Regulation 

36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards on General 

Meetings (SS-2), is given at Annexure A to this Notice. 

 

Brief profile of Ms. Geetika Garg is given at Annexure A to this Notice. Except Ms. Geetika Garg, being the appointee, or 

his relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.3 

 

Item no. 4  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to alter the Articles of Association (AOA) by deleting the proviso under 

Clause 13(i) concerning calls on shares. The existing proviso in Clause 13(i) of the AOA reads as follows: 

 

"Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less than one month from 

the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call." 

 

The proposed alteration aims to provide greater flexibility to the Company in making calls on shares. Under the existing 

proviso, the Company is restricted from making a call that exceeds one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or requiring 

payment of any call in less than one month from the date fixed for payment of the last preceding call. This restriction limits 

the Company’s ability to manage its capital requirements effectively. 

 

The deletion of this proviso will allow the Company to make calls on shares that exceed one-fourth of the nominal value 

or within a shorter timeframe, if necessary, subject to compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Articles of Association. This flexibility is considered necessary to respond swiftly to the Company’s financial 

needs and ensure more efficient capital management. 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice as a Special Resolution for approval 

by the shareholders. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any. 

 

Annexure-A 
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 41st Annual General Meeting to be held on 

September 25, 2024 [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) and 26(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Kushawaha 

Ms. Geetika Garg 

Date of Birth 02/03/1987 17/10/1991 

Age 37 Years 32 Years 

Date of appointment 30.05.2019 29.08.2024 

Relationship with Directors and 

Key Managerial Personnel 

No inter-se relationship 

between the directors 

No inter-se relationship between the 

directors. 

Expertise in specific functional 

area 

He has more than a decade of 

experience in business 

development, financing deals, 

and corporate management. He 

also possesses strong leadership 

skills that contribute to the 

company's growth. 

Having experience in the legal 

Sector, Secretarial and Compliance 

departments. she has been 

instrumental in managing corporate 

governance, ensuring compliance 

with regulatory requirements, and 

supporting the company’s secretarial 

functions. 

Qualification Graduated Graduated 

Board Membership of other listed 

Companies as on March 31, 2024 

NA NA 

Chairmanships/Memberships of 

the Committees of other public 

limited companies as on March 

31,2024 

Member in Stakeholder’s 

Relationship Committee 

NA 

Number of equity shares held in 

the Company as at March 31, 2024 

300000 NA 
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 

To 

The Members, 

 

The Directors of the Company take pleasure in presenting the 41st Annual Report on the business and operations 

of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the financial 

year ended 31st March 2024. 

 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHLIGHTS 

 

          (Amount in Thousands) 

Particulars Consolidated Financial 

Results 

Standalone Financial Results 

 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

Revenue From Operations 85,013.85 2,42,867.93 85,013.85 2,41,847.93 

Other Income 10,073..87 54,279.45 9,956.68 53,768.83 

Total Revenue 95,087.72 2,97,147.38 94,970.53 2,95,616.83 

 Cost of materials consumed 38,450.32 76,075.45 38,450.32    76,075.45 

Purchase of Stock in Trade 5,184.20 1,49,972.18 5,184.20 1,49,972.18 

Change in Inventories of Finished 

Goods, Stock in Trade and work in 

Progress 

165.25 718.80 115.15 718.80 

Operating Expenses 8,850.78 9.561.13 8,850.78 9,561.13 

Employee Benefit Expense 3,229.83 19,051.20 3,229.83 13,108.72 

Finance Cost 1,835.26 2,611.56 1,692.36 1,850.81 

Depreciation and Amortization         

Expenses  

11,112.83 12,544.99 11,010.14 12,296.92 

Other Expenses 37,064.31 30,921.64 36,035.24 27,124.88 

Total Expenses 1,05,892.78 3,01,456.95 1,04,838.02 2,90,708.89 

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items 

and tax. 
(10,805.06) (4,309.57) (9,86.49) 4,907.87 

Exceptional Items  10,000 13,075.00 10,000 13,075.00 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (805.06) 8.765.43 132.51 17,982.87 

Tax Expense 2577.46 5360.85 2,342.41 (7662.82) 

Profit for the Year 1,772.4 14,126.28 2,474.93 10,320.05 

Other Comprehensive Income 44.02 108.88 44.02 108.88 

Total Comprehensive Income 1,816.42 14,235.16 2,518.95 10,428.93 

 

2. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

During the financial year under review, the company experienced a significant decrease in total revenue. On a 

consolidated basis, total revenue declined from ₹242,867.93 thousand in FY 2022-23 to ₹85,013.85 thousand in 

FY 2023-24. Similarly, on a standalone basis, total revenue decreased from ₹241,847.93 thousand in FY 2022-

23 to ₹85,013.85 thousand in FY 2023-24. 

 

The net profit also saws a notable decline. On a consolidated basis, net profit decreased from ₹ 3,404.58 thousand 



 
 

 

Page | 16  
 

in FY 2022-23 to ₹1,772.40 thousand in FY 2023-24. On a standalone basis, net profit fell from ₹10,320.05 

thousand in FY 2022-23 to ₹2,474.93 thousand in FY 2023-24. 

 

3. THE CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year or subsequently. 

 

4. CONTRIBUTION TO THE EXCHEQUER 

 

The Company has contributed Rs. 54.55 Lakhs to the exchequer by way of Income tax, customs duty, 

goods and service tax, etc. 

 

5. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained 

by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and the reviews 

performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the board 

is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the 

financial year 2023-2024. The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are 

included in the Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report. 

 

6. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 

 During the year under review, the company has not accepted any deposit under Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

  

7. SHARE CAPITAL & FINANCE 

 

a) Share Capital 

 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 stood at Rs.41,00,00,000/- divided into 

41,00,00,00 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2024 stood at 

Rs.14,11,36,360/-divided into1,41,13,636 equity shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid. 

 

The Company’s Authorized Share capital stood at 41,00,00,000 divided into 41,00,00,00 equity shares of Rs. 

10/- each. 

  

b)    Finance 

 

The Borrowings of the Company comprises of external commercial borrowings, term loan and working 

capital facilities. The debts (including interest) are being serviced regularly. 

 

c) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

 

Details of Loans, Guarantees or Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are given in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

8. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 

 

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, top five hundred (500) listed entities based 

on market capitalization shall contain the Business Responsibility Report in their Annual Report. As the 



 
 

 

Page | 17  
 

Company does not fall under top 500 listed Companies based on market capitalization, therefore, this 

regulation is not applicable to the Company. 

 

9.   MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

In terms of the Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) is set out in the Annual Report. 

Annexure-VII 

 

10.   DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED  

 

During the financial year 2023-24, no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 

tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in the future. 

 

11. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 

During the year under review, the company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve. 

 

12. SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

 

The Company’s Wholly owned Subsidiary is Aunik IT Solutions Private Limited. Company do not have any 

Joint Ventures or any Associate Companies. Pursuant to the provisions of the Rule 8 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s 

subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies in FormAOC-1ist attached as Annexure II.    

 

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of 

rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees 

five crore or more during any financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of 

the Board and shall formulate a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The Company is not falling under 

the preview of said section during the year. 

 

14. ANNUAL RETURN 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return of the Company as 

at 31st March, 2024 is uploaded on the website of the Company at https://afenterprisesltd.in/announcement/ 

 

15. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY 

 

The Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company deals with instances of actual or suspected unethical behavior, 

fraud, etc. The Audit Committee reviews the functioning of the Policy. The details of the Vigil Mechanism 

has been elaborated in the Corporate Governance Report and posted on the Company’s website 

https://afenterprisesltd.in/our-policies/ 

 

16.  TRANSFER TO IEPF 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 124, 125 of the Act, read with the IEPF (Accounting, Audit, 

Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “IEPF Rules”) the amount of dividend or any 

other amount remaining unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven consecutive years is required to be 

transferred to the IEPF Authority. The shares in respect of which dividend remained unclaimed or unpaid for 

seven consecutive years or more, shall also be liable for transfer to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. 

https://afenterprisesltd.in/announcement/
https://afenterprisesltd.in/our-policies/
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The shareholders may note that the Company has not declared dividend yet so this clause shall not be 

applicable to the Company. 

 

17. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Your Company is managed and controlled by a Board comprising an optimum blend of Executives and Non-

Executive Professional Directors. As on March 31, 2024; the Board of Directors consists of Five (5) Directors 

including one (1) Whole Time Director, one (1) Executive Director Two (2) Non-executive Independent 

Director  and One (1) Non Executive and Non Independent Director including one Woman Director. All the 

Directors possess the requisite qualifications and experience in general Corporate Management, Finance, 

banking and other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the Company in their capacity 

as Directors of the Company. 

 

Sr. No. Name Of 

Director 

Designation Din Date Of 

Appointment  

Date Of 

Appointment 

At Current 

Designation  

Date Of 

Resignation 

1. Mr. Abhishek 

Singh 

Chief Financial 

Officer& Whole 

Time Director 

03603706 30.05.2019 30.05.2019 - 

2. Mr. Santosh 

Kumar 

Kushawaha 

Managing Director 02994228 30.05.2019 03.06.2021 - 

3. Mr. Tinku 

Kathuria 

Independent Director 08699650 14.02.2020 14.02.2020 - 

4. Ms. Preeti Independent Director 09662113 02.09.2022 02.09.2022 31-08-2024 

5. Mr. 

Manishkumar 

Prafulbhai 

Mehta 

Non-Executive 

Director 

07656957 03.09.2023 03.09.2023 - 

 

During the year under review following changes took place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial 

Persons: 

 

1. Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta appointed as Non-Executive Director w.e.f 03.09.2023 

 

2. Ms. Payal Sachdeva the Company Secretary of the Company had resigned during the financial year 2023-

24. 

 

3. Mr. Vikram Sharma has resigned as Non- Executive Director on 30.05.2023. 

 

4. Ms. Neha Srivastava appointed as a Company Secretary of the company with effect from 19.03.2024. 

 

None of the Directors have attained the age of seventy -five years. 
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11.1    Meetings of Board and Committees 

 

In accordance with the regulatory requirements, the Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Right Issue 

Committee 

 

The details with respect to the composition, terms of reference, number of meetings held, etc. of the Board 

and that of the Committees are disclosed in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of the 

Annual Report. 

 

11.2     Board Evaluation 

 

The annual evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors, Committee of the Directors individually 

has been made as more particularly specified in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

11.3    Remuneration Policy 

 

The details of the Remuneration Policy forms part of the Corporate Governance Report the information 

relating to remuneration as required pursuant to Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below: 

 

a. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company –18(Eighteen) 

 

b. During the year every employee got 7% increment on the salaries of employees in last financial year. 

 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 

Company. 

 

18. DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that 

they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

 

19. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the 

performance of individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters 

such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest 

of the Company.   

 

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance 

evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

The board also carried out an annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and 

Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with 

the evaluation process. The Board of Directors reviewed all the laws applicable to the company, prepared by 

the company and taking steps to rectify instances of non-compliances. 

 

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

None of the employees of the Company were in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits as prescribed 

under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  
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Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, are mentioned below: 

 

(A) Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 

 

Name of The 

Director/and KMP 

Designation Remuneration 

(In Lakhs) 2023-24 

Remuneration in 

Consideration 

Resignation 

Dated 

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Kushawaha 

Managing Director 00 - - 

Mr. Abhishek Singh CFO 6 - - 

 

Mr. Tinku Kathuria 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 

00 

- - 

 

Mrs. Preeti 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 

00 

- 31-08-2024 

 

Mr. Manishkumar 

Prafulbhai Mehta 

Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director 

 

00 

-- - 

Mrs. Neha Srivastav Company Secretary 7.13 - - 

 

21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The Directors of the company confirm that; 

 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

and there is no material departures; 

 
(b) They had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period; 

 

(c) They had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

(d) They had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

(e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 
(f) They had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act, the transactions with related 

parties are entered into with the approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. The omnibus 

approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for transaction which are repetitive in nature.  

 

The Policy on Related Party Transactions can be accessed at https://afenterprisesltd.in/our-policies/ 

https://afenterprisesltd.in/our-policies/
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All transactions with related parties were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business and 

necessary approvals were obtained, wherever required. There were no material related party transactions. The 

necessary disclosures regarding the transactions are given in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

None of the Directors and the KMP has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the Company 

other than those disclosed in the financial statements. 

 

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

 
The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 
 

The Company’s Internal Control Systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and 

complexity of its operations. It comprises audit and compliance by internal audit checks by, M/s CAAN& 

Associates a Chartered Accountant as Internal Auditors of the Company. 

 
The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the 
financial transactions and review various business processes. Independence of the Internal Auditors and 
therefore compliance is ensured by the direct report of internal audit division and Internal Auditors to the Audit 
Committee of the Board. 

 
 

24. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed and implement the 

Risk Management Policy for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which is 

in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. These are discussed at the meeting of 

the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

At present the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the 

Company. 

 

25. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

 

The Company has a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 

securities by the Directors and certain designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance 

for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors 

and designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the 

Company and during the period when the trading window is closed. The Board is responsible for 

implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance 

with the Code. 

 

26. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTOR INTER-SE 

 

None of the Directors are related to each other. 

 

27. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company complies with the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard 

on General Meetings (SS-2) whenever it has applicable. The Company will comply with the other Secretarial 
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Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)as and when they are made mandatory. 

 

28. AUDITORS 

 

22.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules frame thereunder M/s. S. 

Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 000808N), were appointed as a Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting held in 2023 till the 

conclusion of 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2028, at such remuneration plus 

applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined in consultation with the Auditors and duly 

approved by the members of the Company. 

 

22.2 AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

The Auditor’s Report for financial year ended March 31, 2024, does not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remarks. All Observations made in the Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes forming part of the 

Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments and also, there is no incident 

of fraud requiring reporting by the auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. 

The Auditor’s report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Auditor’s Report. 

 

22.3 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s Sumit Bajaj & Associates, 

Company Secretaries to carry out Secretarial Audit, for the financial year ended March 31,2024. 

 

The report of the Secretarial Auditor is given in “Annexure-I”. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain 

any qualification, reservation of adverse remark. 

 

22.4 INTERNAL AUDITOR 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138, read with the rules made there under, the Board has appointed M/s 

CAAN& Associates a Chartered Accountant Firm having FRN: 025675N as an Internal Auditor of the 

Company for the financial year 2023-2024, to check the internal controls and the functioning of the activities 

of the Company and also recommends ways of improvement. He has provided an Internal Audit Report of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The Internal audit is carried out quarterly basis and the 

report is placed in the Audit Committee Meeting and Board Meeting for their consideration and direction. 

 

22.5 COST AUDITORS 

 

The Company has not appointed the Cost Auditor as pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the cost audit is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

22.6 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION& FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE  

 

(A) Conservation of energy: 

(i) Steps taken or impart on conservation of energy :- Required steps have been taken by the 

Company 

 



 
 

 

Page | 23  
 

(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:- Required steps have 

been taken by the Company 

(iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment:- NIL 

 

(B) Technology absorption 

 

(I) Efforts made towards technology absorption:- As the Company is not using any borrowed 

technology no such steps are required. 

(II) benefit derived :- NA 

(III) In case of imported technology-N.A. 

a) The detail of technology imported 

b) The year of import 

c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed 

d) If not fully absorbed areas where absorption has not been taken place, and the reasons 

thereof 

(IV) Expenses incurred on R & D: NIL 

 

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo 

(Amount in Rs. 000) 

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR 

Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil -- 

Foreign Exchange Earning    Nil 13482.30 

 

29. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 

 

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, top five hundred (500) listed entities 

based on market capitalization shall contain the Business Responsibility Report in their Annual Report. As 

the Company does not fall under top 500 listed Companies based on market capitalization, therefore, this 

regulation is not applicable to the Company. 

 

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate 

Governance and a report on the same along with the Auditor’s Certificate confirming compliance is 

attached with and forms part of this report. 

 

31. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT 

 

The Company is an equal opportunity provider and has zero tolerance in any form or manner towards the sexual 

harassment of women at work place. In accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013, the Company has formulated a policy on prevention, 

prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment of women at work place. The Company has constituted Internal 

Complaints Committee which meets as and when required. 

 

No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment of women employees were received during the year. 

 

32. ISO CERTIFICATION 

 

The Company continued to be certified under ISO 9001:2015 for quality management systems, ISO 

14001:2015 for environment management systems and ISO 45001:2018 for Occupational Health and 

Safety Management System by UK Certification & Inspection Ltd. 
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33. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT  

 

Our Company is subject to various legal proceedings from time to time, primarily arising in the ordinary course 

of business. There is no outstanding litigation which has been considered material in accordance with our 

Company’s ‘Policy for Determination of Materiality’, framed in accordance with Regulation 30 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations. However, solely for the purpose of the Issue, the following outstanding litigations have 

been disclosed in this section of this report, to the extent applicable: any outstanding civil litigation, including 

tax litigation, involving our Company, where the amount involved is where the amount involved is 20% of 

Turnover or Net Worth of the Company for the immediately preceding financial year ("Materiality Threshold") 

or above.  

 

Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding litigation with respect to (i) issues of moral turpitude or 

criminal liability on the part of our Company; (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our Company; 

(iii) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company;(iv) any pending matters, 

which if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or our financial 

position. 

  

- The Company has initiated the process of Issue of Equity Shares on Right basis to existing equity 

shareholders. The company received the in-principle approval from Stock exchange dated 08.03.2023. Due 

to adverse market conditions the company did not received minimum subscription as per regulation 

minimum subscription as per requirement of Regulation 86 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. Accordingly, In the event of non-receipt 

of minimum subscription referred to in sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 86 of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, Company on 8th May, 

2023 has already refunded all the application monies received from the applicants which is refunded within 

the timeline as prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and no share has been allotted till date with respect to right shares. 

 

-There is liability of Rs. 542.00 Lakhs on account of Demand from the GST Department, our Company has filed 

an appeal with higher authority(ies) which is under process. 

 

-In the matter of M/s. Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd (Petitioner) and M/s. AF Enterprises Limited (Respondent) under 

Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 

at New Delhi concerning an amount of Rs 210.00 Lakhs. M/S Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd sanctioned a loan of Rs 

500 lakhs to M/S AF Enterprises Limited, but the sanctioned amount has not been fully disbursed. Consequently, 

M/S AF Enterprises Limited has not been able to complete its project due to a shortage of funds. 

 

Litigation involving Tax Liabilities 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Section 

Code 

Date of 

demand 

raised 

Demand Reference 

No. 

Asse

ssme

nt 

Year 

Outstandi

ng 

Demand 

Amount 

Accrued 

Interest 

Outstanding 

Demand 

Amount 

1 U/s 154 17/03/2024 202320174041587117

0C 

2017 37,92,477 - 

37,92,477 

2 U/s143(1)(

a) 

01/05/2020 202020193700217821

5C 

2019 9,60,250 1,82,438 

11,42,688 

3 U/s143(3) 28/03/2024 202320223724654737

5C 

2022 13,5,21,170 20,28,165 

1,55,49,335 

4 U/s143(1)(

a) 

30/04/2024 202420233724726903

2C 

2023 25,73,510 51,470 

26,24,980 
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34. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Board of Directors duly met 09 times during the year i.e.  

• 30.05.2023 

• 18.06.2023 

• 14.08.2023 

• 28.08.2023 

• 03.09.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 27.01.2024 

• 14.02.2024 

• 19.03.2024 

 

in respect of which notices were given and the proceedings were recorded and signed. The intervening gap 

between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.The details of Board 

meetings and the attendance of Directors in such meetings are given in the Corporate Governance Report 

forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

35. COMMITTEES AND THEIR MEETINGS 

 

A. Audit Committee 

 

The Company has an Audit Committee of Directors in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 The Committee comprises of:   

 

• Mr. Tinku Kathuria (Chairman & Independent Director),  

• Ms. Preeti (Member, Independent Director) and 

• Mr. Abhishek Singh (Member, Executive Director)  

 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia include overseeing the financial reporting process, 

reviewing the financial statements and recommending the appointment of Auditors. All the recommendations 

made by Audit Committee were accepted.  

 

During the year Five (5) Audit Committee Meetings were held; 

• 30.05.2023 

• 18.06.2023 

• 03.09.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 14.02.2024 

 

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors in compliance with provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.  

 

The Committee’s scope of work includes nominate the directors as per their qualifications, experience and 

positive attributes, deciding on remuneration and policy matters related to remunerations of Directors and 
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laying guidelines for remuneration package or compensation etc.   

 

The Committee comprises of: 

• Ms. Preeti (Independent Director & Chairperson)  

• Mr. Tinku Kathuria (Member, Independent Director) 

• Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023 

• Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta (Member, Non-Executive - Non Independent Director) Appointed 

on 03-09-2023 

 

     During the year (04) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on; 

• 30.05.2023 

• 03.09.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 19.03.2024 

 

C. STAKEHOLDERS & RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

The Company has a Stakeholder Relationship Committee of Directors in compliance with provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 to look into the redressed of complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of 

shares, non-receipt of dividend/notices /annual reports, etc.   

 

The Committee comprises of: 

 

• Mr. Tinku Kathuria (Independent Director& Chairman) and  

• Ms. Preeti (Member, Independent Director) 

• Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha (Member, Executive Director).  

• Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non-Executive Director) Resigned on 30.05.2023 

 

The Company has a Stakeholder Relationship Committee of directors to look into the redressal of 

complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend/notices /annual 

reports, etc. 

 

During the year (03) Stakeholders & Relationship Committee Meeting was held on; 

• 30.05.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 27.01.2024 

 

36. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

The Company believes that the essence of Corporate Governance lies in the phrase “Your Company”. The 

Chairman and Directors are “Your” fiduciaries and trustees. Their objective is to take the business forward in 

such a way that it maximizes “Your” long term value. Besides, adhering to the prescribed Corporate 

Governance practices as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 

company also endeavors to share information with its stakeholders openly and transparently on matters which 

have a bearing on its economic and reputational interest. The Corporate Governance Report is a part of this 

Annual report.   

 

A certificate from Secretarial Auditors of the company regarding the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 

Governance by the Company as stipulated under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is also attached to this Annual Report. 
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37. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

The Management has a healthy relationship with the officers and the Employee. 

 

38. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION& DISCHARGE OF 

THEIR DUTIES 

 

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted under section 178 of the Companies Act, 

2013 for formulization the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Directors and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and other employees. Further, the Directors of the Company are being paid remuneration as approved 

by the Shareholders and Board as per the provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder. 

 

39. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has formulated Evaluation Policy during the 

year, which was approved by the Board of Directors. The Policy provides for evaluation of the Board, the 

Committee of the Board and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The policy provides 

that evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole, Board Committees and Directors shall be carried 

out on an annual basis. 

 

40. WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CFO CERTIFICATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT  

 

The Board has laid down a specific code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the 

Company. All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code 

on annual basis. In this regard certificate from Whole Time Director and CFO as required under Schedule V 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been received by the 

Board and the same is attached herewith as per Annexure-V. 

 

41. CAUTIONARY NOTE 

 

The statements forming part of the Board’s Report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the 

meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Many factors could cause the actual results, 

performances or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, performances 

or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statements. 

 

42. APPLICABILITY OF THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) 

 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.   
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ANNEXURE-I 

  FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2024 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

A.F. Enterprises Limited 

H 15/18, Basement B Portion, West Patel Nagar, 

New Delhi, Delhi, 110008 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 

to good corporate practices by A.F Enterprises Limited (hereinafter called the “Company’). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and accordingly, expressing my opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our inspection, verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the 

company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 has possibly complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:  

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under.  

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;  

(iii) The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;  

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act');  

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011;  

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on Saturday, January 27, 2024 has, 

inter alia, considered the Lapsing of 50,00,000 share warrant at Rs. 101/- (Face value Rs. 10/- including 

Rs. 91/- premium per warrant) aggregating to Rs. 50,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Fifty Lakhs Only) 

Fully Convertible Warrants (“Warrants”) on 12th July, 2022, due to non- exercise of option to convert 

warrants into equity shares within the stipulated eighteen-month period from the date of allotment. 

Warrants have been forfeited by the company due to non-exercise of Warrants within the Warrant 

Exercise Period date on 11th January, 2024.  

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and sweat equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)  
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e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993;  

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008  

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (No transaction 

has been recorded during the Audit Period) 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (No transaction has 

been recorded during the Audit Period) 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

 

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, I have relied on information/records produced 

by the Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to that extent.  

 

In respect of Direct and Indirect Tax Laws like Income Tax Act, Goods & Service Tax Act, Excise & Custom 

Acts we have relied on the Reports given by the Statutory Auditor of the company. 

 
Other Proceeding against the Company including matters which are considered material as per Materiality Policy 
 

 

i) There is liability of Rs. 542.00 Lakhs on account of Demand from the GST Department, our Company has filed 

an appeal with higher authority(ies) which is under process. 

 

ii) In the matter of M/s. Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd (Petitioner) and M/s. AF Enterprises Limited (Respondent) under 

Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) at 

New Delhi concerning an amount of Rs 210.00 Lakhs. M/S Findoc Finvest Pvt Ltd sanctioned a loan of Rs 500 

lakhs to M/S AF Enterprises Limited, but the sanctioned amount has not been fully disbursed. Consequently, M/S 

AF Enterprises Limited has not been able to complete its project due to a shortage of funds. 

 

Litigation involving Tax Liabilities 

 

SR 

No. 

Section Code Date of 

demand 

raised 

Demand Reference 

No. 

Asses

smen

t 

Year 

Outstandin

g 

Demand 

Amount 

Accrued 

Interest 

Outstanding 

Demand 

Amount 

1 U/s 154 17/03/2024 2023201740415871170C 2017 37,92,477 - 37,92,477 

2 U/s143(1)(a) 01/05/2020 2020201937002178215C 2019 9,60,250 1,82,438 11,42,688 

3 U/s143(3) 28/03/2024 2023202237246547375C 2022 13,5,21,170 20,28,165 1,55,49,335 

4 U/s143(1)(a) 30/04/2024 2024202337247269032C 2023 25,73,510 51,470 26,24,980 

 
iii) The Company has initiated the process of Issue of Equity Shares on Right basis to existing equity shareholders. 

The company received the in-principle approval from Stock exchange dated 08.03.2023. Due to adverse market 

conditions the company did not received minimum subscription as per regulation minimum subscription as per 

requirement of Regulation 86 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018. Accordingly, In the event of non-receipt of minimum subscription referred to 

in sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 86 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018, Company on 8th May, 2023 has already refunded all the application monies 

received from the applicants which is refunded within the timeline as prescribed under Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and no share has been allotted 

till date with respect to right shares. 

 

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

1. Secretarial Standard issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and 

general meetings.  

2. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
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We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

executive directors, non-executive directors and independent directors. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and there exist the system for seeking and obtaining further information 

and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to us by the Company & its officers and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on 

the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.  

 

We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that as informed to us, the Company has undertaken event / action having a major bearing on 

the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

referred to above. 

 

We further report that during the audit period there was no other event/action having major bearing on the 

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 29-08-2024 

Place: New Delhi 

UDIN: A045042F001068867  

 

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates  

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

FRN: S2019DE677200 

 

 

                                                                          Sd/-                       

CS Sumit Bajaj 

(Proprietor) 

C. P. No: 23948 

M. No.: 45042 
 

 

 

 

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1A forming part of an 

integral. 
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Annexure-1A 

To, 

 

The Members, 

A.F Enterprises Limited 

H 15/18, Basement B Portion, West Patel Nagar, 

New Delhi, Delhi, 110008 

 

Our report is to be read along with this letter. 

  

I. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on this secretarial record based on our audit.  

 

II. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 

that correct facts are reflected in secretarial record. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 

III. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of the accounts of 

the company.  

 

IV. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

V. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.  

 

VI. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 29-08-2024 

Place: New Delhi 

UDIN: A045042F001068867 

 

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates  

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

FRN: S2019DE677200 

 

 

                                                                          Sd/-                       

CS Sumit Bajaj 

(Proprietor) 

C. P. No: 23948 

M. No.: 45042 
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ANNEXURE “II” 

 

FormAOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules,2014) 

 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 

ventures 

 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in( Rs.) Company does not 

have any subsidiary/ associate companies/ joint ventures. 
 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name of the subsidiary Aunik IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the holding company’s reporting period 

No 

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last  date of 

the relevant Financial year in the case of 

foreignSubsidiaries 

NA 

4. Share capital 10,00,000 

5. Reserves & surplus (2,44,621.90) 

6. Total assets 23,73370.61 

7. Total Liabilities 25,17,992.51 

8. Investments 0 

9. Turnover 0 

10. Profit before taxation 93,75,740.00 

11. Provision for taxation 0 

12. Profit after taxation (70,25,060) 

13. Proposed Dividend NA 

14. % of shareholding 95.27% 
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures-NA 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 

Joint Ventures 

 
Name of associates/Joint Ventures     

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date     

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end 

    

No.     
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture  N.

A 
 

Extend of Holding%     

3. Description of how there is significant influence     

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 

    

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet 

 N.

A 

 

  

6. Profit/Loss for the year     

i. Considered in Consolidation     
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation     

 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. 

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified. 

 

 

 By the Order of the Board 

AF Enterprises Limited 

 

 

Date: 29/08/2024 

Place: Delhi 

Sd/- 

Abhishek Singh 

Director 

DIN: 03603706                             

Sd/- 

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 

Managing Director 

DIN:02994228 
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ANNEXURE-III 

 

FORM NO. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 

under third proviso thereto 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil 

 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  

 

 

 

 

NIL 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

(c)Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions 

(d)Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the 

value, if any 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board 

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as 

required under first proviso to section 188 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

 

Name of related party 

and nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements 

/transactions 

Duration of 

contract 

Salient 

Terms 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount (in 

Lakhs) 

Mr. Abhishek Singh 

(Whole Time Director) 
Remuneration Paid -- -- -- 6 

RDS Corporate Services 

private Limited 
Loan -- -- -- 57.78 

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Kushawaha 
Loan -- -- -- 00 

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Kushawaha 
Remuneration -- -- -- 00 

SNP Infosolutions LLP Advanced Received -- -- -- 1.95 

Mr. Tinku Kathuria Sitting Fee -- -- -- .47 
 

 

  

 By the Order of the Board 

AF Enterprises Limited 

 

 

Date: 29/08/2024 

Place: Delhi 

Sd/- 

Abhishek Singh 

Director 

DIN: 03603706                             

Sd/- 

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 

Managing Director 

DIN:02994228 
 

 



 
 

Page | 36  
 

ANNEXURE-IV 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

Information required with respect to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With Rule 5(1) 

Of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014 

 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 

for the financial year under review 

 

Name of Director/ KMP Remuneration (In Rs.) Ratio of Directors 

Remuneration to 

Median Remuneration 

Percentage 

Increase in 

Remuneration 
Mr. Abhishek Singh 6,00,000 2:1 NIL 

 

(ii) The Median Remuneration of Employees is Rs.35,000. 

(iii) The Company has 18 Employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March,2024. 

(iv) During the Year 2023-24, there was no increase in the salary of Employees. 

(v) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

Information required with respect to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With Rule5(2) 

Of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014 

 

None of the employee drawn remuneration more than of Rs. 1 Crore 2 Lakh per annum or Rs. 8.50  Lakh 

per month if any part of the year. Hence the provision of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 5(2) of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial  Personnel) Rules, 2014 

are not applicable for the period under review. 

 

 By the Order of the Board 

AF Enterprises Limited 

 

 

Date: 29/08/2024 

Place: Delhi 

Sd/- 

Abhishek Singh 

Director 

DIN: 03603706                             

Sd/- 

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 

Managing Director 

DIN:02994228 
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ANNEXURE-V 

CERTIFICATE FROM THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CFO   

[As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015] 

 

I, Abhishek Singh , Chief Financial Officer of AF Enterprises Limited, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the period and that to the best of our 

knowledge and belief:  

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 

b. these statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and of the results of operations and 

cash flow. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity, in all material respects, with the 

existing generally accepted accounting principles including accounting standards, applicable laws and 

regulations.  

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions were entered into by the Company during the year 

that is fraudulent, illegal or violates the Company’s code of conduct. 

 3. We accept overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control system for financial reporting. This 

is monitored by the internal audit function, which encompasses the examination and evaluation of its 

adequacy and effectiveness. Internal audit interacts with all levels of Management and statutory auditors, and 

reports significant issues to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Auditors’ and the Audit Committee are 

apprised of any corrective action taken with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.  

4. We have indicated to the Auditors’ and Audit Committee:  

a. significant changes in internal control and overall financial reporting during the period;  

b. significant changes in accounting policies during the period;  

c. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve Management or 

employees, who have significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

However, during the period there were no such changes or instances. 

 

Date:28-08-2024   

Place Delhi                                                                                     

For AF Enterprises Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Abhishek Singh 

Director 

DIN: 03603706                             
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Annexure-VI 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

(Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

 

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of governance in the way it carries business. 

The Company strives to continuously engage with and is receptive to the concerns of its stakeholders and the 

surrounding communities within which it operates. The principles of good governance can best be achieved 

when the Board, the management, the employees and all those associated with the business realize the 

inherent importance of ethics and channel their conduct accordingly. It is in this background that the 

Company lays specific emphasis on mutual trust and respect towards all concerned stakeholders. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Composition and category of the Directors 

 

The Board of Directors, led by a Non-executive Non independent Chairman, comprises of five Directors with 

diverse background and profession and having an optimum combination of Executive and Non- Executive 

Non executive Independent Directors in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). Mr. Abhishek Singh, Whole time 

Director & CFO and Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha, Managing Director Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai 

Mehta, Non-Executive Director Mr. Tinku Kathuria and Ms. Preeti are Independent Directors. The Board 

constituted committees include Audit committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The role of the committees is 

defined by the Board and are in accordance with in the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE MEETINGS 

 

The Board of Directors duly met 09 times during the year i.e.  

• 30.05.2023 

• 18.06.2023 

• 14.08.2023 

• 28.08.2023 

• 03.09.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 27.01.2024 

• 14.02.2024 

• 19.03.2024 

 

The attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting, Directorship and 

Committee membership in other Companies are given below: 

 

Name of the 

Directors 

Category No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d  

Attendanc

e at AGM 

held on 

30.09.2023 

No. of 

Directorship(s

) held in other 

public 

Companies 

Number of 

Committee position 

held in other public 

companies* 

No. of 

Shares 

held 

Chairma

n 

Membe

r 

Mr. 

Abhishek 

Executive 

Director 

9 Yes 0 0 0 0 
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Singh 

Mr. Santosh 

Kumar 

Kushawaha 

Executive 

Director 

9 Yes 1 0 0 30000

0 

Mr. Tinku 

Kathuria 

Non- 

Executive 

Independen

t 

9 Yes 0 0 0 0 

Ms. Preeti Independen

t Director 

6 Yes 1 0 1 0 

Mr. 

Manishkuma

r Prafulbhai 

Mehta 

Non-

Executive - 

Non 

Independen

t Director 

9 Yes 1 0 0 0 

 

The familiarization programme of the Directors can be accessed at www.afenterprisesltd.in 

None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other. 

 

Matrix of skills/competence/expertise of the Board of Directors 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of people with diverse knowledge, skills and expertise 

and experience such as management, finance, tax, etc. The Board is led by the Experts who have immense 

knowledge of Plastic Industries The Managing Director and Executive Director are in charge of the overall 

affairs of the Company and at Plants respectively. The Independent Directors brings with them their 

respective domain expertise which are accountancy and management. 

 

Wherever needed, the proposals are placed before the respective committee for its consideration and if 

recommended by it, then placed before the Board. All business transacted at the Board/Committee are with 

the presence of only non-interested directors. All committees (except Risk Management Committee) are 

chaired by the Independent Directors and the views of all members are taken into consideration before 

decisions are taken. The major skills/competencies/expertise and the directorships held by the Directors in 

other listed companies are summarized below: 

Name of Directors Directorships held 

in Listed Companies 

Category Skills/Expertise 

Mr. Abhishek Singh 
-- -- 

Accounts, Finance & 

Banking  

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 
-- -- 

Audit,  Finance& 

Compliances,  

Mr. Tinku Kathuria 
-- -- 

Finance & Taxation 

Mr.  Manishkumar Prafulbhai 

Mehta 
-- -- 

Project Set Up, 

General Management 

Ms. Preeti -Kotia Enterprises 

Limited 

-Vintage Coffee And 

Beverages Limited 

-Artificial Electronics 

Intelligent Material 

Limited  

-Rajnish Wellness 

Limited 

-Elitecon International 

Limited 

Director 

 

Director 

 

Director 

 

         Director 

  

         Director 

Secretarial 

Compliances. 

http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
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In the opinion of the Board, all the independent directors have fulfilled the conditions of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and that they are independent of the Company’s management. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The terms of reference and the role of the Audit Committee are as per guidelines set out in Part C of Schedule 

II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Committee meets periodically and mandatorily reviews the following:   

The Role of Audit Committee together with its powers shall be as under:   

1. Overseeing the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal 

of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees;  

3. Approving payment to the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Approving initial or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;   

5. Scrutinizing inter-corporate loans and investments; 

6. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

7. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;  

8. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 

approval, with particular reference to; matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility 

Statement to be included in the  

o Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 134 of the Companies Act,2013; changes, if any, in 

accounting policies and practices along with reasons for the same; 

o Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Management; 

significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

o Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

o Disclosure of any related party transactions; and  

o Qualifications in the audit report  

9. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval;  

10. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of the uses/application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document/Draft prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 

recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;  

11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the 

internal control systems;  

12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit;  

13. Discussing with the internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on;  

14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the Board; 

15. Discussing with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 

as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

16. Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

17. Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, in case the same is exist; 

18. Approving the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (i.e. the whole time finance director or any 

other person heading the finance function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, 

etc., of the candidate; and 

19. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee or 

contained in the equity listing agreements as and when amended from time to time.   
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Further, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following:  

 1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;  

 2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted      by 

management; 

 3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;   

 4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and  

 5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor. 

 

The meetings of the Committee are held at regular intervals. The Audit Committee met Five times during the 

year i.e 

• 30.05.2023 

• 18.06.2023 

• 03.09.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 14.02.2024 

In which meetings were attended by all the members of the Committee. The Committee comprises of: 

 

Name of Member Position Category 

Mr. Tinku Kathuria Chairman Non -Executive, Independent 

Ms. Preeti Member Non -Executive, Independent 

Mr. Abhishek Singh Member Executive 

  

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Internal Auditors & Statutory Auditors 

are the invitees to all Audit Committee meetings and have attended all meetings during the year. 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

The Company has a well framed vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy for its directors and employees. 

During the year all the directors, senior management personnel and other employees complied the vigil 

mechanism and none of the complaints are received against any directors and employees for any fraudulent 

dealings. An Audit Committee of the Board of directors has the responsibility to review the functioning of 

vigil mechanism and the same has been performed by the committee periodically. The Company has 

established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism that provides a channel to the Employees and Directors to 

report to the management concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 

Codes of conduct or legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation of any financial 

statements and reports, etc. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral 

and legal conduct of business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company encourages its 

employees who have concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns 

without fear of punishment or unfair treatment. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions within the ambit of powers as vested by the Board 

vis-à-vis Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act, which includes amongst 

others policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key  managerial personnel and other employees, 

formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and Board of Directors, 

devising a policy on diversity of Board, appointment of directors, key managerial personnel, senior 

management level  employees, recommending to the Board the appointment of directors, evaluating the re-

appointment and determining whether to extend the tenure of the independent directors, recommending to 

the Board the remuneration payable to senior management employees, The link to view the policy is on the 

website of the Company at https://afenterprisesltd.in/cg-report/  

 

https://afenterprisesltd.in/cg-report/
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board is constituted in accordance with the requirement 

of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Two-thirds of the members of 

the Committee are independent directors. During the year, four meetings were held on ; 

• 30.05.2023 

• 03.09.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 19.03.2024 

 

which were attended by all the members of the Committee. The terms of reference of the Committee are 

defined as per SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee comprises of: 

 

S. No. Name of the Member Category Position 

1. Ms. Preeti Independent Director Chairperson 
2. Mr. Tinku Kathuria Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. Manishkumar Prafulbhai 
Mehta 

Non-Executive - Non 
Independent Director 

Member 

4. Mr. Vikram Sharma* Non- Executive 
Director 

Member 

*Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023 

 

 

Performance evaluation criteria of the Board and Directors 

 

The criteria for the evaluation of directors are determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations on the basis of discussion amongst the Directors covering all aspects of the functioning of the 

Board and the Committees. The evaluation criteria provide for different parameters for the evaluation of the 

performance of the Board, its committees and Directors. The criteria for evaluation covers areas such as 

functioning of the Board/Committees, discharge of key responsibilities, Board governance, attendance at the 

meetings, independence of judgment exercised by the Directors, etc. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act 

and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance as 

well as the working of its Audit, Nomination &  Remuneration, Stakeholders’ Relationship, Risk 

Management, and Corporate Social Responsibility Committees. 

 All the Directors carried out the performance evaluation. The Independent Directors evaluated the 

performance of non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and Chairman. The performance evaluation 

of independent directors was done by the entire Board members in which the independent directors who were 

being evaluated did not participate. 

 

 Remuneration of Directors 

 

The Remuneration Policy of the Company strives to ensure that the level and composition of the remuneration 

is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best talent commensurate with the size of the 

Company. 

The remuneration of the Directors is in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the approval of the 

members of the Company. There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company and 

any of its Directors apart from the remuneration as detailed below: 

 

Name Salary Sitting Fees Total 

Mr. Abhishek Singh 600000 -- 600000 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha - -- - 

Mr. Vikram Sharma* - -- -- 

Mr. Tinku Kathuria                        - 47700 47700 
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Ms. Preeti - 45900 45900 

*Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023 

 

The terms of appointment of the Managing Director and Executive Director provide that the appointment 

may be terminated by either party by giving to the other party three months’ notice of such termination or 

the Company paying three months remuneration in lieu thereof. 

 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee meets as and when required and reviews all matters relating to 

the resolution of the investors grievances viz. transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 

dividends, issue of duplicate share certificates, etc. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board 

is constituted in accordance with the requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Two-thirds of the members of the Committee are independent directors. 

During the year, Three (3) meetings were held on; 

• 30.05.2023 

• 14.11.2023 

• 27.01.2024 

which were attended by all the members of the Committee. 

 

The terms of reference of the Committee are defined as per SEBI Listing Regulations. The investor 

grievances are being attended by M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent (RTA) administered under the supervision of the Company Secretary and a periodical report on the 

same is being presented before the Committee. The composition of the Committee and the status of the 

complaints are given below: 

 

*Mr. Vikram Sharma (Member, Non- Executive Director), Resigned on 30.05.2023 

 

 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 25(3) of Listing Regulations, a meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company 

was held. The Independent Directors of the Company had met during the year to review the performance of 

Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairperson of the 

Company and had accessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the 

company management and the Board.   

 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 The Company’s Last AGM (40th AGM) of the Financial Year 2022-23 was held on 29th September, 2023 

through Video Conferencing 

Name of the Member Category Position No. of 

Complaints 

Received 

No. of 

Complaints 

Resolved 

No. of 

Complain

t Pending 

Mrs. Preeti Non Executive and 

Independent Director 

Member 0 0 0 

Mr. Tinku Kathuria Non Executive- 

Independent Director 

Chairperso

n 

0 0 0 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Kushawaha Executive Director Member 0 0 0 

Mr. Vikram Sharma* Member, Non- 
Executive Director 

Member 0 0 0 
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Means of Communication: 

The Company's quarterly results are intimated to the Stock Exchange and to the Public. Generally, 

the results are published in the Financial Express (National newspaper) and Jansatta (Regional 

newspapers). The quarterly results are displayed on the website of the company at 

www.afenterprisesltd.in  

 

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints received, resolved & pending during FY 2023-2024 

Particulars Nos. 

Complaints pending as on April 1, 2023 Nil 

Complaints received during the year ended March 31, 2024 Nil 

Complaints resolved during the year ended March 31, 2024 Nil 

Complaints pending as on March 31, 2024 Nil 

Name, designation and e-mail address of Compliance Officer 

Ms. Neha Srivastava 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

During the year under review, your Company does not touch the threshold limit as per the 

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, accordingly the Company does not require 

to meet out the Compliance requirement as stipulated under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

Risk Management Committee 

Your Company is not required to form Risk Management Committee as per Regulation 21 of 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

Senior Management 

There have been no changes in the senior management of the Company since the close of the 

previous financial year. 

 

Familiarization program for Independent Directors: 

The Company supports Directors to update their skills and knowledge and improve their familiarity 

with the Company, its business. Your Company provides familiarization programmed in the form 

of interactive sessions with the senior management. The Company Secretary periodically updates 

the Director(s) about regulatory changes. The Independent Directors are also provided with 

financial results, internal audit findings, risk inventories and other specific documents as sought for 

from time to time. The Independent Directors are also made aware of all policies and Code of 

Conduct and Business Ethics adopted by the Board.  The policy on the familiarization programmes 

imparted to the Independent Directors is posted on the website of the Company and may be 

accessed at the link:https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Familiarisation-

Programme.pdf   

Formal letter of appointment to the Independent Directors (“IDs”) : 

The Company issues formal appointment letters to the IDs. All IDs have confirmed that they have 

met the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”). As required under Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations the terms and conditions of 

appointment of IDs are available at https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/terms-

http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Familiarisation-Programme.pdf
https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Familiarisation-Programme.pdf
https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/terms-of-ID-final.pdf
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of-ID-final.pdf  

Declaration by Independent Directors (“IDs”): 

The Board of Directors of the Company have confirmed that all Independent Directors comply with 

the criteria of Independence as mentioned in SEBI (LODR), 2015 and have mentioned that they 

are independent of management as on 31.03.2024.  

Necessary confirmations have also been taken from the Independent Directors in compliance with 

Rule 6 Sub Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2019, as 

amended from time to time. The Board of Directors of the Company have taken on record the 

declarations and confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors under Regulation 16(1)(b) 

read with 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Pursuant to Section 150(1) of the Act, read with 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 all the Independent Directors of the Company are registered 

on the website of Institute of Corporate Affairs.  

 In compliance with Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations read with the Secretarial Standard 

on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), the 

required information about the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed has been annexed 

to the Notice convening the 40th Annual General Meeting.   

None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than ten public companies. None 

of the Independent Directors serve as an Independent Director on more than seven listed entities. 

Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on 31st March, 

2023 have been made by the Directors. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

1.  Annual General Meeting 

Schedule:   

September 25, 2024 (Wednesday) 

 

2.  Financial Year April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 

3.  Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable 

4.  Name and Address of the Stock 

Exchange at which the 

Company’s securities are listed 

 

 

BSE 

Regd. Address: 15/18, Basement B Portion 

West Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 

Corp. Address: Plot No. 8, Sector-5, Main 

Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana-121006 

5.  Payment of Annual Listing Fee 

to Stock Exchange 

Yes, the Annual Listing Fee has been paid to 

the BSE Limited for the financial year 2023-

24 

6.  Stock Code 538351 

7.  Registrar to an issue and share 

transfer agents 

M/s Skyline Financial Services Private    

Limited 

D-153 A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area 

Phase-1, New Delhi-110020 

Contact: 0129-2248111 

e-mail i.d: admin@skylinerta.com  

8.  ISIN INE663P01015 

9.  Share Transfer System The company has delegated the authority to 

approve shares received for transfer in 

physical form to M/s Skyline Financial 

https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/terms-of-ID-final.pdf
mailto:admin@skylinerta.com
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services private limited 

10.  Dematerialization of shares and 

liquidity 

The company has an agreement with M/s 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 

for dematerialization of shares 

 

11.  Outstanding GDR or ADR or 

warrants or any   

we wish to inform you that the Board of Directors 

of the Company in their meeting held on 

Saturday, January 27, 2024 has, inter alia, 

considered the Lapsing of 50,00,000 share 

warrant at Rs. 101/- (Face value Rs. 10/- 

including Rs. 91/- premium per warrant) 

aggregating to Rs. 50,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty 

Crores Fifty Lakhs Only) Fully Convertible 

Warrants (“Warrants”) on 12th July, 2022, due 

to non- exercise of option to convert warrants into 

equity shares within the stipulated eighteen-month 

period from the date of allotment. Warrants have 

been forfeited by the company due to non-exercise 

of Warrants within the Warrant Exercise Period 

date on 11th January, 2024. 

12.  Plant Locations Plot No. 8, Sector-5, Main Mathura Road, 

Faridabad, Haryana-121006 

13.  Corporate Secretarial/Investors’ 

Assistance Department 

Secretarial Department headed by Ms. Neha 

Srivastava, Company Secretary of the 

Company 

 

Market Price Data 

 

Market Price Data for the period April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024: The monthly high and low 

prices are as under: 

 

Period High Low 

April 2023 15.20 12.50  

May 2023 15.95 9.70 

June 2023 13.49 7.56 

July 2023 8.49 6.84 

August 2023 8.19 5.60 

September 2023 6.22 4.61 

October 2023 5.35 4.30 

November 2023 4.90 4.33 

December 2023 6.06 4.67 

January 2024 8.47 4.82 

February 2024 10.86 6.25 

March 2024 7.01 5.35 

 

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2024 is as follows   

 

Category No. of Share Percentage 

Promoter 807600 5.72 
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Public 13306036 94.28 

 

Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity:  

To facilitate trading in dematerialized form, the Company has entered into agreement with National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

Shares of the Company are traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. 

Investor Relations: 

 All queries received from shareholders during the accounting year 2023-24 were responded 

adequately and in time. As required under Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the designated 

e-mail address for investors services, i.e, info.afenterprises@gmail.com or cs@ridh.in  is provided 

on the website of the Company to serve them better. 

Categories of Shareholders as on 31 March, 2024 

 

Sr. 

No.  

No. of ordinary shares held No. of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares 

held 

Percentage 

(%) 

A Shareholding of Promoter and 

Promoting Group 

   

1 Indian 1 807600 5.72 

2 Foreign 0 0 0 

 Sub Total (A)    

B  Public Shareholding    

1 Institutions 0 0 0 

a Mutual Funds/ UTI 0 0 0 

b Financial institutions/ Banks 0 0 0 

c Central Government/ State 

Government(s) (IEPF) 

0 0 0 

d Insurance Companies 0 0 0 

e Foreign institutional Investors 0 0 0 

f Alternate Investment Funds 0 0 0 

g Foreign Portfolio Investors 0 0 0 

h Sub-Total (B)(1)    

2 Non Institutions    

a Bodies Corporate 31 1103570 7.82 

b Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital up to Rs. 2 

Lacs 

7235 5865875 41.56 

c Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital in excess 

of Rs. 2 Lacs 

101 5426191 38.45 

d Directors 1 300000 2.13 

e NRI 7 24149 0.17  

f Resident Indian HUF 95 457411 3.24 

g Firms 5 128500 0.91 

h Clearing Member - - - 

 Sub Total (B)(1) + (B)(2) 7476 13306036 94.28 

 Total Public Shareholding (B)= 

(B)(1)+(B)(2) + B(3) +B(4) 

7476 14113636 100 

Note: 

Pursuant to amendment in Regulation 31 of Listing Regulations, a public shareholder and a non-

public non-promoter shareholder has to provide the details of their shareholding along with their 

mailto:info.afenterprises@gmail.com
mailto:cs@ridh.in


 
 

Page | 48  
 

PAN number. Earlier the details of the shareholding had to be given by the promoters and promoter 

groups only. In addition to the above, the shareholding of the public shareholder and non-public 

non-promoter shareholder has to be consolidated on the basis of PAN and folio number in order to 

avoid multiple disclosures of shareholding of the same person. In compliance with the above 

amendment, shareholding shown on the basis of PAN and folio number in order to avoid multiple 

disclosures of shareholding of the same person. 

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity 

The Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. We have established 

connectivity with both the depositories in India – National Securities Depository Limited 

(“NSDL”) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”). The International Securities 

Identification Number (“ISIN”) allotted to the Company’s Share under the Depository System is 

INE820M01018.  As on March 31, 2024, the Company’s total shares representing 5897633 equity 

shares were held in dematerialized form with NSDL & 8080273 with CDSL. 

Location of Business and address for correspondence 

AF Enterprises Limited 

Regd. Address: 15/18, Basement B Portion, West Patel Nagar, Delhi-110015 

Corp Address: Plot No.8, Sector-5, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana-121006 

Disclosures to Shareholders: 

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential 

conflict with the interests of the Company at large 

No such transactions took place during the year ended 31st March, 2024. The transactions with 

related parties for the year ended 31st March, 2024 have been disclosed in Notes of the Annual 

Report and disclosures on the Related party transaction for the half year ended 30th September, 

2023 have been submitted to BSE respectively and for the half-year ended 31st March, 2024 has 

been submitted to BSE. The Board has approved a policy on materiality of related party transactions 

and on dealing with related parties and the same is posted on the Company’s website at 

www.afenterprisesltd.in  

(b) Disclosure by Senior Management in accordance with Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations: 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 the Senior Management Personnel of the Company 

has confirmed to the Board of Directors that they do not have any personal interest relating to 

material, financial and commercial transactions entered into with the Company that may have a 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 

(c)  Disclosures on Compliance of Law 

There has been no instance of non-compliance with any legal requirement during the Financial 

Year 2023-24 and no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock 

Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority relating to capital markets during Financial Year 2023-

24.  

(d) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy 

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy which is posted on the website of 

Company at the link: https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Whistle-Blower-

Policy-Final.pdf for its Directors and employees to report their concerns about the Company’s 

working or about any violation of its policies. Besides, as per the new requirement of Clause 6 of 

Regulation 9A of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations as amended by the SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, our Company ensures to make 

employees aware of such Whistle-Blower Policy to report instances of leak of unpublished price 

sensitive information. The vigil mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against the 

victimization of Director(s) or Employee(s) or any other person who avails the mechanism and also 

provides direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. No personnel have been denied 

http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Whistle-Blower-Policy-Final.pdf
https://afenterprisesltd.in/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Whistle-Blower-Policy-Final.pdf


 
 

Page | 49  
 

any access to the Audit Committee. 

 

(e) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices 

In compliance with the SEBI Regulation on Prohibition of Insider Trading, the Company has in 

place a comprehensive code of conduct for its Directors and Senior Management Officers. The 

code lays down guidelines, which advise them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be 

made, while dealing with the shares of the Company. The code clearly specifies, among other 

matters, that Directors and specified employees of the Company can trade in the shares of the 

Company only during the ‘Trading Window Open Period’. All amendments to the ‘Code of 

Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)’ 

are updated on a regular basis. Annual Declarations containing the annual disclosures of holding 

of securities were obtained from all the Directors and the Designated Persons of the Company for 

the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. Besides, a declaration has also been obtained from the 

Managing Director of the Company ensuring compliance with Regulation 9 Sub regulations 1 and 

2 of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations as amended. The trading window is 

closed during the time of declaration of results, and other material events, as per the Code, and the 

same is posted on the website of the Company at the link: www.afenterprisesltd.in  

Ms. Neha Srivastava, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer also acts as the Chief  Investor 

Relations Officer. 

(f) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory 

requirements 

All mandatory requirements have been complied with and the non-mandatory requirements are 

dealt with at the end of the Report. 

(g) Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries 

The Company has not any material Subsidiaries for the financial year i.e. 2023-24. 

(h) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities 

The Company has no exposure to commodity price risk or commodity hedging risk. 

(i) Internal Complaints Committee   

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 

(POSH Act) covering all women employees of the Company. The Internal Complaints Committee 

(ICC) is set up for the purpose of providing protection against the sexual harassment of women at 

the workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for 

matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. 

(j) Loans & Advances  

 During the year under review, Your Company has given loan and advances as per the provisions 

of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, please refer notes to accounts of the Financial 

Statements for the year 2023-2024    

(k) Certificate from the Chief Financial Officer  

Certificate from Mr. Abhishek Singh, Chief Financial Officer, in terms of Regulation 17(8) read 

with Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the financial year ended March 31, 

2024, was placed before the Board of Directors of the Company in its Meeting held on August 28, 

2024.  

Declaration regarding Compliance by the Board Members and Senior Management 

Personnel with the Code of Conduct:  

 As provided under Regulation 17(5) & Schedule V Clause D of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 this is to confirm that a “Code 

http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
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of Conduct” has been laid down by the Board of Directors of AF Enterprises Limited, which has 

been made applicable to all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The 

code has been affirmed to by all members of the Board and the Senior Management Personnel of 

the Company. The said code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company, 

namely, www.afenterprisesltd.in  

(l) Acceptance of recommendations of any Committee of the Board  

All the recommendations made by any Committee of the Board during the financial year 2023-

2024 have been duly accepted and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

(m) Disclosure on Utilization of Funds as per Regulation 32(7A)   

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) during the Financial Year 2023-2024.  

(n) Certificate regarding non-disqualification of Directors   

The Company has obtained a certificate from Mr. Sumit Bajaj (ACS No: 45042, CP No: 23948) 

Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company 

by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

(o) Certificate on Compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance.  

 As required by Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V(E) of the Listing Regulations, a practicing 

Company  Secretary’s certificate is annexed to this report. 

(p) Status of Adoption Of The Non-Mandatory Requirements 

In terms of regulation 27(1) read with Schedule II to the said regulations the disclosure on account 

of the extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in part E of schedule II are given 

below:  

 (a) The Chairperson of the Board is nominated by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 

the Company. The Chairperson of the Company, does not maintain any office at the expense of the 

Company. The Chairperson of the Company is not related to the Managing Director of the 

Company.  

 (b) In view of the publication of Financial results of the Company in newspaper and disseminating 

the same on the website of the Company as well as on the website of the Stock Exchanges, the 

Company does not consider it prudent to circulate the half-yearly Results separately to the 

shareholders;  

 (c) There are no audit qualifications with respect to the financial statements of the Company. 

(d) Your Company has maintained a separate person to the post of the Chairperson and the 

Managing Director or the CFO, such that the Chairperson is (i) Non- Executive Director and (ii) 

Not related to the Managing Director or CEO. 

  (e) The Internal Audit Reports are shared with the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee 

reviews the internal Audit report in presence of internal & statutory Auditors. 

Nomination Facility: 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form and desirous of making a nomination in respect of 

their shareholding, as permitted under the Companies Act, Companies Act, 2013, are requested to 

submit their request in this regard to the Company’s Share Transfer Agents M/s Skyline Financial 

Services Private Limited   D-153 A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi- 110020 

Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic form is also available with the Depository 

Participant (DP) as per the by-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Compliance: 

In compliance with the terms of the Listing Agreement, a certificate from an Independent Practicing 

http://www.afenterprisesltd.in/
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Company Secretary regarding compliance of the provisions of Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 is annexed to this Report.   

 

No Disqualification Certificate from Company Secretary In Practice 

The Company has obtained a Certificate from M/s. Sumit Bajaj and Associates, Company 

Secretaries confirming that none of the Directors on the board of the Company have been debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, as stipulated under Regulation 

34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) which forms part of this Report 

 

 

 

 By the Order of the Board 

AF Enterprises Limited 

 

 

 

 

Date: 29/08/2024 

Place: Delhi 

Sd/- 

Abhishek Singh 

Director 

DIN: 03603706                             

Sd/- 

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 

Managing Director 

DIN:02994228 
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Annexure-B 

 

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

  

To, 

The Members, 

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

15/18 Basement B Portion West Patel Nagar  

Patel Nagar West New Delhi-110008 IN 

 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance A F Enterprises Limited for 

the year ended 31st March, 2023 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub 

regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company 

for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 

opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 

representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the 

year ended on March 31, 2024. 

 

We state that in respect of Investor Grievances received during the year ended 31st March 2024, no investor 

grievances are pending against the Company as per the record maintained by the companies which are 

presented to Investor Grievance Committee. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 29-08-2024 

Place: New Delhi 

UDIN: A045042F001068768 

 

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates  

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

FRN: S2019DE677200 

 

 

                                                                          Sd/-                       

CS Sumit Bajaj 

(Proprietor) 

C. P. No: 23948 

M. No.: 45042 
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ANNEXURE-C 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS  

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To,  

The Members, 

A F ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

15/18 Basement B Portion West Patel Nagar  

Patel Nagar West New Delhi-110008 IN 

 

Subject: Certificate pursuant to Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

A F Enterprises Limited (CIN: L18100DL1983PLC016354) (“the Company”), a Listed Public Limited Company 

incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 whose equity shares are listed on the BSE 

Limited (“BSE”), has approached us to issue certificate confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the 

Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI or Board)/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority 

and based on the individual confirmations received from the Board of Directors of the Company who were in their 

respective office as on March 31, 2024 viz. 

 

Si. No. Name of Director DIN DIN Status  

I.  Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 02994228 Approved 

II.  Abhishek Singh 03603706 Approved 

III.  Tinku Kathuria 08699650 Approved 

IV.  Preeti 09662113 Approved 

V.  Manishkumar Prafulbhai Mehta 07656957 Approved 

 

and we certify that, none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 

authority. 

This certificate is issued by us only for the purpose of disclosure to be furnished in the Corporate Governance Report 

of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and should not be used for any other 

purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 29-08-2024 

Place: New Delhi 

UDIN: A045042F001068900 

 

For Sumit Bajaj & Associates  

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

FRN: S2019DE677200 

 

 

                                                                          Sd/-                       

CS Sumit Bajaj 

(Proprietor) 

C. P. No: 23948 

M. No.: 45042 
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ANNEXURE- VII 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT 

 

This report contains forward-looking statements, which may be identified by their use of words 

like ‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘anticipates’, ‘believes, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other 

words of similar meaning. All statements that address expectations or projections about the future, 

including but not limited to statements about the Company’s strategy for growth, product 

development, market position, expenditures and financial results are forward- looking statements. 

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. 

The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be 

realized. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could, thus, differ 

materially from those projected in any such forward- looking statements. The Company assumes 

no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward- looking statements on the 

basis of any subsequent developments, information or events. 

 

❖ OVERVIEWOF FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

The financial year 2023-2024 presented a mixed landscape for the global plastic industry. The 

sector faced several challenges, including volatile raw material prices and shifting regulatory 

environments, while also benefiting from strong demand across various applications. 

 

1. Raw Material Volatility: The year saw significant volatility in the prices of key raw materials 

such as Polypropylene (PP) and Polyethylene (PE). Prices fluctuated by over 30% due to supply 

chain disruptions, geopolitical tensions, and fluctuating crude oil prices. These price swings put 

pressure on profit margins for many plastic manufacturers, particularly those heavily dependent 

on these materials. 

 

2. Regulatory Changes and Environmental Pressures: Governments across the globe continued to 

tighten regulations on plastic production and waste management in response to growing 

environmental concerns. There was increased emphasis on reducing single-use plastics and 

enhancing recycling efforts. Companies in the industry had to navigate evolving regulatory 

frameworks, which demanded more sustainable practices and greater transparency. 

 

3. Demand Fluctuations: Despite these challenges, demand for plastic products remained robust, 

particularly in sectors such as packaging, automotive, and construction. The packaging industry, 

in particular, continued to grow due to increased consumer demand for packaged goods and e-

commerce. However, the automotive sector's demand for plastics was affected by global 

semiconductor shortages and supply chain issues. 

 

4. Technological Advancements and Sustainability Initiatives: Many companies in the plastic 

industry invested in research and development to create more sustainable products and processes. 

Innovations included the development of biodegradable plastics, increased use of recycled 

materials, and advancements in chemical recycling technologies. These efforts were aimed at 

reducing the environmental footprint of plastic products and aligning with global sustainability 

goals. 

 

5. Market Dynamics: Emerging markets like India, Vietnam, and Mexico showed strong growth 

in the plastic industry, fueled by increasing industrialization and rising foreign investment. In 
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contrast, mature markets like Europe and North America saw slower growth due to regulatory 

pressures and a shift towards sustainability. 

 

6. Financial Performance: The financial performance of plastic companies varied widely. While 

some companies struggled with shrinking margins due to high raw material costs and compliance 

costs, others capitalized on strong demand and technological advancements to achieve growth. 

Companies that successfully adapted to the evolving regulatory landscape and invested in 

sustainable practices generally fared better. 

 

7. Outlook: Looking ahead, the plastic industry is expected to continue facing challenges related 

to raw material volatility, regulatory changes, and environmental pressures. However, 

opportunities exist for companies that invest in innovation and sustainability. The industry is 

likely to see a shift towards more sustainable practices, driven by both regulatory requirements 

and consumer demand for environmentally friendly products. 

Indian Economic Overview  

 

 India is the third largest economy in the world after US and China in terms of purchasing power 

parity. It ranked fifth in terms of market exchange rates. According to high frequency indicators, 

the Indian economy is maintaining the same momentum it had in the first half of the year even in 

the face of many upgrades for 2023–24 and 2024–25 by multilateral agencies. Companies in the 

oil and gas industry made up the largest portion of the profit gain overall, aided by higher 

marketing margins. The announcements made in the Interim Union Budget 2024– 25 align with 

the goal of "Viksit Bharat," which is to create a prosperous nation that is in harmony with the 

environment, has access to modern infrastructure, and offers chances for all of its residents and 

regions to realise their full potential. The capital expenditure push, particularly on roads and 

railroads, has persisted in order to maintain the economic growth pace. 

 

Key performance indicators of the Company are given below:  

• There was a decrease in the company's gross turnover to ₹85,013.85 thousand in FY 2023-24, 

down from ₹241,847.93 thousand in FY 2022-23. 

• The total EBITDA decreased significantly to ₹132.51 thousand in FY 2023-24 from ₹17,982.87 

thousand in FY 2022-23. 

• The net profit also saw a decline, decreasing to ₹2,474.93 thousand in FY 2023-24 from 

₹10,320.05 thousand in FY 2022-23. 

The year was marked by significant volatility, with key raw material prices, particularly 

Polypropylene and Polyethylene, experiencing fluctuations of over 20%. 

The Company continued to focus on increasing market penetration to ensure entire product range 

are available in deeper pockets of the Country. The Company continued to build strong designing 

& manufacturing capability in production of Plastic Moulded Components which will establish 

its competitive position of high-cost import substitution in the Plastic. 

 

❖ OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS & RISKS 

 

The Company is mainly exposed to market risk (including liquidity risk), interest risk and credit 

risk. However prudent business and risk management practices followed by the company over the 

years helps it to manage normal industry risk factors, which inter alia includes economic/ business 

cycle, fluctuations in the stock prices in the market, besides the interest rate volatility, and credit 

risk. The Company is confident of managing these risks by observing a conservative financial 

profile in investment are trading of securities business. The sheer unpredictable nature of the 

markets makes investments a risky proposition. An investment company has to live with the fear 
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of falling markets and movement of the SENSEX. However, the Company hopes to improve its 

performance on the strength of its long experience and its strong emphasis on the fundamentals.  

Your management has got ample exposure of the capital markets, which provide us an opportunity 

to make safer and profitable investments with minimum risks. 

 

❖ INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

 

The Company has an Internal Control System which is commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditors monitor the efficiency and efficacy of the 

internal control systems in the Company, compliance with operating systems/accounting 

procedures and policies of the Company. Significant audit observations and corrective actions 

thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Company has adequate systems 

and procedures to provide assurance of recording transactions in all material respects. The Internal 

Auditor reviewed the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls as 

per Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 by covering the following broad areas: 

 

i. Material level assessment 

ii. Entity level assessment 

iii. Risk Control Matrix covering major processes and developing controls Internal audit and   

compliance. 

The Company conducts its internal audit and compliance functions within the parameters of 

regulatory framework which is well commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of 

operations. The internal controls and compliance functions are installed, evolved, reviewed, and 

upgraded periodically.   

 

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the audit and compliance functions, the 

effectiveness of controls and compliance with regulatory guidelines and gives such directions to 

the Management as necessary / considered appropriate.  The Company has framed a compliance 

policy to effectively monitor and supervise the compliance function in accordance with the 

statutory requirements. 

❖ HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Human Resource is the most vital factor to achieve the goals of any organization. Being a 

progressive organization, A F Enterprises Limited firmly believes in the strength of its most vital 

asset. The company recognizes the importance of human value and ensures that encouragement 

both moral and financial is extended to each individual for motivating them to perform to the 

maximum capacity, to contribute towards developing and achieving individual excellence and 

departmental objectives and continuously improve performance to realize the full potential of our 

personnel. The company Industrial relations are cordial and satisfactory during the year under 

review. 

 

❖ CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Certain statements in this Report may be forward-looking and are stated as may be required by 

applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could be 

different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook. Your 

Company does not undertake to update these statements. 

 

❖ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

The directors of the company take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to all 
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employees for their hard work, spirited efforts, dedication and loyalty to the Company which 

helped the Company for maintain its growth. Your Directors also wish to place on record their 

sincere thanks and appreciation for the continuing support and unstinting efforts of investors, 

vendors, dealers, business associates and employees in ensuring an excellent all around 

operational performance. 

 

 By the Order of the Board 

AF Enterprises Limited 

 

 

Date: 29/08/2024 

Place: Delhi 

Sd/- 

Abhishek Singh 

Director 

DIN: 03603706                             

Sd/- 

Santosh Kumar Kushawaha 

Managing Director 

DIN:02994228 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE  MEMBERS OF A F ElnterDrises Limited

Opinion

We  have  audited  the  accompanying  Standalone  financial  statements  of  A  F   Enterprises
Limited   ('the  company'J,   which  comprise  the  Balance  Sheet  as  at  March  31,  2024,  the
Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  including  the  statement  of  other  comprehensive  income,  the
Cash  flow  statement and  the  Statement of change  in  Equity  for the  year then  ended,  and  a
summary  of significant accounting  policies and  other explanatory  information.

In  our opinion  and  to  the  best of our  information  and  according  to the  explanations  given  to

us,  the  aforesaid  Ind  AS  Standalone  financial  statements    give  the  information  required  by

the  Companies Act,  2013  (the `Act')  in  the  manner so  required  and  give  a  true  and  fair view

in   conformity  with   the   accounting   principles  generally  accepted   in   India,  of  the  state  of

affairs   of   the   Company   as   at   31St   March,   2024   and    its   profit/(loss)    (including   Other

Comprehensive  Income),  its changes  in  equity and  its cash flows for the year ended  on  that

date.

Basis for Opinion

We  conducted  our audit  in  accordance  with  the  Standards  on  Auditing  (SAs)  specified  under

section  143(10)  of the  Act.  Our  responsibilities  under those  Standards  are  further described
•in the Auditor's  Responsibilities for the  Audit of the  Standalone financial  statements eec:fiion

of  our  report.  We  are  independent  of the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics

issued    by   the   Institute   of   Chartered   Accountants   of   India   together   with   the   ethical

requirements  that  are  relevant  to  our  audit  of the  Ind  AS  Standalone  financial  statements

under  the  provisions  of  the  Act  and  the  Rules  thereunder,  and  we  have  fulfilled  our  other

ethical  responsibilities  in  accordance  with  these  requirements  and  the  Code  of  Ethics.  We

believe  that  the  audit  evidence  we  have  obtained  is  sufficient  and  appropriate  to  provide  a

basis for our opinion.

Key ALldit Matters

Key  audit   matters  are   those   matters  that,   in   our  professional  judgment,   were   of  most

significance  in  our audit of the  Standalone  Financial  Statements of the  current  period.  These

matters  were  addressed  in  the  context  of our audit  of the  Standalone  Financial  Statements

as  a  whole,  and  in  forming  our  opinion  thereon,  and  we  do  not  provide  a  separate  opinion

on  these  matters.  We  have  determined  the  matters  described  hereunder  to  be  key  audit

matters to  be communicated  in  our report

As  on  31.03.2024  the  company  has  a  liability  of Rs  50  lakhs toward  rent  payable  in  respect

of  a  leased   property  attached   by  ED  due  to  proceeding  against  property  owner  i.e.   M/S

Horizon   Global   Limited   for   more   than   6   months   and   TDS   on   the   same   also   not   been

deducted  other  than  that  our  opinion  on  the  Statement  is  not  modified  in  respect  of  the

above  matter.
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Information  Other than  the Standalone financial  statements and  Auditor's  Report
Thereon

The Company's  Board  of Directors is  responsible for the  preparation  of the other information.

The  other  information  comprises  the  information  included   in  the  Board's  Report  including

Annexures to  Board's  Report,  but does  not  include  the  Standalone  fina.ncial  statements  and

our auditor's report thereon.

Our  opinion  on  the  Standalone  financial  statements  does  not  cover  the  other  information

and we do  not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In  connection  with  our  audit  of the  Standalone  financial  statements,  our  responsibility  is  to

read   the   other   information   and,   in   doing   so,   consider  whether  the   other  information   is

materially  inconsistent  with  the  Standalone  financial  statements  or our  knowledge  obtained

during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be  materially misstated.

If,    based    on   the   work   we    have    performed,    we   conclude   that   there   is   a    material

misstatement of this other information,  we are  required  to  report that fact.  We  have  nothing

to  report in this  regard.

Responsibilities   of   Management  and   Those   Charged   with   Goverhahce  for  the

Stahdalone financial statements

The  Company's  Board  of Directors  is  responsible for the  matters stated  in  Section  134(5)  of

the  Act  with  respect  to  the  preparation  of  these  Ind  AS    Standalone  financial  statements

that give  a  true  and  fair view  of the  financial  position;  financial  performance  including  other

comprehensive  income,  changes  in  equity  and  cash  flows  of  the  Company  in  accordance

with  the  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  India,  including  the  Indian  Accounting

Standards  (``Ind  AS'')  notified  under Section  133  of the Act  read  with  the  Companies  (Indian

Accounting  Standards)  Rules,  2015,   as amended  from  time to time.

This  responsibility  also  includes  maintenance  of adequate  accounting  records  in  accordance

with   the   provisions   of   the   Act   for   safeguarding   the   assets   of   the   Company   and   for

preventing   and   detecting   frauds   and   other   irregularities;    selection   and   application   of
appropriate  accounting  poljcies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and

prudent;    and   design,    implementation   and    maintenance   of   adequate   internal   financial

controls,  that  were  operating  effectively for ensuring  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of the

accounting  records,  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  presentation  of the  lnd  AS  Standalone

financial statements   that give a true and fair view and are free from  material  misstatement,

whether due to fraud  or error.

In  preparing  the  Standalone  financial  statements,  the  Board  of  Directors  is  responsible  for

assessing  the  Company's  ability  to  continue  as  a  going  concern,  disclosing,  as  applicable,

matters  related  to going  concern  and  using the going  concern  basis of accounting  unless the

Board  of Directors either intends to  liquidate the Company or to cease operations,  or has  no

realistic alternative  but to  do so.

Those   Board   of   Directors   are   also   responsible   for   overseeing   the   Company's   financial

reporting  process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our  objectives  are  to  obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  the  Standalone  financial

statements as a  whole  are  free from  material  misstatement,  whether due to fraud  or error,

and  to  issue  an  auditor's  report  that  includes  our  opinion.  Reasonable  assurance  is  a  high

level  of assurance,  but  is  not  a  guarantee  that  an  audit  conducted  in  accordance  with  SAs

will  always  detect  a   material   misstatement  when  it  exists.   Misstatements  can  arise  from

fraud  or  error  and  are  considered  material  if,   individually  or  in  the  aggregate,  they  could

reasonably  be  expected  to  influence  the  economic  decisions  of  users  taken  on  the  basis  of

these Standalone financial  statements.

As  part of an  audit  in  accordance  with  SAs,  we  exercise  professional ].udgment and  maintain

professional  skepticism  throughout the audit.  We also:

Identify  and  assess  the  risks  of  material  misstatement  of  the  Standalone  financial
statements,  whether  due  to  fraud  or  error,  design  and  perform  audit  procedures
responsive to those  risks, and  obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to  provide  a  basis for our opinion.  The  risk of not detecting  a  material  misstatement
resulting  from  fraud  is  higher than  for one  resulting  from  error,  as fraud  may  involve
collusion,   forgery,    intentional   omissions,   misrepresentations,   or   the   override   of

internal  control,

'Obtain  an  understanding  of  internal  control  relevaht  to  the  audit  in  order  to  design

audit  procedures  that  are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances.  Under  section  143(3)(i)
of the  Companies  Act,  2013,  we  are  also  responsible  for  expressing  our  opinion  on

whether  the  company  has  adequate  internal  financial  controls  system  in  place  and

the operating  effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of
accounting  estimates and  related disclosures made  by management.

Conclude  on  the  appropriateness  of management's  use of the going  concern  basis of
accounting    and,    based    on    the    audit    evidence    obtained,    whether   a    material

uncertainty  exists  related  to  events  or conditions  that  may  cast  significant  doubt  on
the  Company's  ability  to  continue  as a  going  concern.  If we  conclude  that a  material
uncertainty  exists,  we  are  required  to  draw  attention  in  our  auditor's  report  to  the
related  disclosures  in  the  Standalone  financial  statements  or,  if such  disclosures  are
inadequate,  to  modify  our  opinion.  Our  conclusions  are  based  on  the  audit  evidence
obtained  up to the  date  of our auditor's  report.  However,  future  events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going  concern.

Evaluate  the  overall  presentation,  structure  and  content  of the  Standalone  financial
statements,    including    the    disclosures,    and    whether    the    Standalone    financial

statements   represent   the   underlying   transactions   and   events   in   a   manner  that
achieves fair presentation.

We   communicate   with   those   charged   with   governance   regarding,   among   other
matters,  the  planned  scope  and  timing  of  the  audit  and  significant  audit  findings,
including  any  significant  deficiencies  in   internal  control  that  we  identify  during  our

audit.
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We  also  provide  those  charged  with  governance  with  a  statement  that  we  have  complied

with  relevant  ethical  requirements  regarding  independence,  and  to  communicate  with  them

all   relationships   and   other   matters   that   may   reasonably   be   thought   to   bear   on   our

independence,  and  where applicable,  related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.     As   required    by   the   Companies   (Auditor's   Report)   Order,    2020   (``the   Order''),   as

amended,   issued  by  the  Central  Government  of  India  in  terms  of  sub­section  (11)  of

section   143  of  the  Act,  we  give  in  the  ``Annexure  A"  a  statement  on  the  matters
specified  in  paragraphs  3 and  4 of the  Order.

2.   As required  by section  143  (3)  of the Act, we  report that:

a.    We  have  sought  and  obtained  all  the  information  and  explanations  which  to  the  best
of our knowledge and  belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b.    In  our  opinion,  proper  books  of  account  as  required  by  law  have  been  kept  by  the
Company  so  far  as  it  appears  from  our  examination  of  those  books,  except  for  the
matters  stated  in  the  paragraph  below  Clause  h(iv),  on  reporting  under  Rule  11(g)
of   the  Companies  (Audit and  Auditors)  Rules,  2014;

c.    The    Balance    Sheet    and    the    Statement    of    Profit    and    Loss    including    other

comprehensive  income,  the  Cash  Flow  statement  and  the  statement  of  changes  in
equity dealt with  by this  Report are  in agreement with the books of account;

d.    In  our opinion,  the  aforesaid  Standalone  financial  statements  comply with  the  Indian

Accounting  Standards  (``Ind  AS'')  notified  under Section  133  of the  Act  read  with  the

Companies   (Indian  Accounting  Standards)   Rules,   2015,  as  amended  from  time  to

time

e.   ,On  the  basis  of written  representations  received  from  the  directors  as  on  March  31,

2024  taken  on  record  by  the  Board  of Directors,  none  of the  directors  is  disqualified

as on  March  31,  2024 from  being  appointed  as a  director in  terms of Section  164  (2)

of the Act.

f.     With  respect to the adequacy of the  internal financial controls over financial  reporting

of  the   Company   and   the   operating   effectiveness   of  such   controls,   refer  to   our

separate report in ``AnneJrure 8'';  and

9.   The  provision  of  section  197  read  with  Schedule  V  to  the  Act  regarding  managerial
renumeration  have been complied  by the company

h.    With    respect   to   the   other   matters   to   be   included    in   the   Auditor's   Report   in

accordance  with  Rule  11  of the  Companies  (Audit  and  Auditors)  Rules,  2014,  in  our

opinion  and  to the  best of our  information  and  according  to the  explanations given  to

uS:
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i.       The   Company   does   not   have   any   pending   litigations  which   would   impact   its

financial  position;

ii.      The    Company    did    not    have    any    long­term    contracts    including    derivative

contracts for which there were any  material foreseeable  losses;

iii.     There  were  no  amounts  which  were  required  to  be  transferred  to  the  Investor

Education  and  Protection  Fund  by the Company.

iv.      Based   on   our   examination   which   included   testchecksand  information  given

to  us,  the  Company  has  used  accounting  softwares  for  maintaining  its  books

of  account,   which  did   not  have  a  feature  of  recording   audit  trail   (edit  log)

facility   throughout   the   year   for   all   relevant   transactions   recorded   in   the

respective    softwares,     hence    we    are    unable    to  comment  on  audit  trail

feature of the said software

v.      The  modifications  relating  to  the  maintenance  of  accounts  and  other  matters

connected  therewith  are  as  stated  in  the  paragraph  above  on  reporting  under

section   143(3)(b)  of  the  Act  and   paragraph  above  on   reporting   under  Rule

11(g)  of the  Companies  (Audit and Auditors)  Rules,  2014

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN:  000808N

­::i +
Place:    New  Delhi

Date:    29.05.2024

UDIN:  24012103BKDHNT6092

S.N. Agarwal

(Partner)
M.  No.:  012103
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t Referred  to :aFES==±a#fipiEa±=±a#=i£±E±£!±±:E3=S:±aE9±:ther  Lega I  &
Regulatory  Requirement'  of  our  report  of  even  date  to  the  Standalone  financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Annexure ­A to the Auditors' Report

The   Annexure   A   referred   to   in   Independent  Auditors'   Report   to   the   members   of  the
Company  on  the  standalone  financial  statements  for  the  year  ended  31   March  2024,  we
report that:

1)   (a)   (A)   The   company   is   maintaining   proper   records   showing   full   particulars,   including

quantitative details and  situation  of Property,  Plant and  Equipment;

(a)  As  per  information  and  explanation  given  to  us,  the  company  does  not  have  any
Intangible  asset  hence  the  provisions  of sub  clause  (i)(a)(B)  of para  3  of the  order are
not applicable;

(b) The  Property,  Plant and  Equipment have  been  physically verified  by the  management at
reasonable  intervals;  no  material  discrepancies were  noticed  on  such verification.

(c)  According  to  information  and  explanation  given  to  us,  the  company  does  not  hold  any
immovable  property during  the year dealt with  by this  report.  Accordingly,  the  provisions of

sub­clause  (i)(c)  of para  3 of the order are  not applicable.

(d) The company  has  not  revalued  its  Property,  Plant and  Equipment or intangible assets or
both during  the year.

(e)  No  proceedings  have  been  initiated  or are  pending  against the  company  for  holding  any
benami  property  under  the  Benami  Transactions  (Prohibition)  Act,   1988  (45  of  1988)  and

rules  made thereunder.

2)     (a)  As  per  information  and  explanation  given  to  us,   physical  verification  of  inventory  has

been  Conducted  once  in  a  year  by  the  management  and   no  material  discrepancies  were

noticed  during  the  course  of  verification  furthermore  inventory  consisting  of  securities  are

held   in  dematerialized   form,   balances  of    same  has   been  verified   with  securities  closing

balances    available    at    Depository    participant    (i.e.     NSDL/CDSL)     further    no    material
discrepancies were  noticed  during  the course of such  verification.

(b)  The  company  has  not  been  sanctioned  any  working  capital  limits  in  excess  of five  crore
rupees,  in  aggregate,  from  banks  or financial  institutions  on  the  basis  of security  of current

assets.

3)    In  respect  of  loans  or  advances  in  the  nature  of  loans,  secured  or  unsecured  given  to  the
companies,  firms,  limited  liability  partnership or any other parties during  the year ­:
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(a)  A.  According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  the  Company  has,  not
granted   loans  or  advances  in  the  nature  of  loans,  secured  or  unsecured  to  subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

(8)   Based   on   the   audit   procedures   carried   on   by   us   and   as   per  the   information   and
explanations given  to  us,  the  Company  has granted  loans to  parties other than  subsidiaries,

joint  ventures  and   associates,   during  the  year  amounting  to   Rs.   9367.00  thousand   and
outstanding  balance of such  loan  as at 31March  is   Rs.  302.81.68  thousand

(b) As in  respect of the above­mentioned  loans  neither confirmation from  parties nor Loan
­agreements are available on  record  hence,  we are unable to comment whether their terms

and  conditions are  prejudicial  to the `company's  interest or not.

(c)  In absence of confirmation from  parties and  existence of loan agreements we are  unable
to comment on the existence of schedule of repayment of principal and  payment of interest
and  whether the  repayments or receipts are  regular.

(d)  In  absence of confirmation from  parties and  existence of loan agreements we are  unable
to comment on  whether any amount in  respect of such  loans  is overdue or not.

(e)  In absence of confirmation from  parties and  existence of loan agreements we are  unable
to comment on whether out of the above­mentioned  loans granted  any  loans that have
fallen due during the year,  have  been  renewed  or extended  or fresh  loans have  been

granted to settle the overdue of existing  loans given to the same  parties.

(f)  In absence of confirmation from  parties and  existence of loan agreements we are  unable
to comment on  whether they are  repayable on  demand, about the terms and  period of
repayment in  respect of the entire amount of loan.

4)  According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  the  Company  has  complied  with  the

provisions  of Section  186  of Companies Act,  2013  to the extent applicable  in  respect of loans,
advances,  guarantees  and  securities  so  given.  Furthermore,  in  absence  of any  agreement or

term   of  loans   provided   to   us   by  the  company,   we  are  unable  to  comment  whether  the

provisions  of Sec  185  are  applicable to the  company and  whether the  company  has  complied
with them or not or not

5)   As  per the  provisions of Section  73 and  76 the company does  not have  nor has accepted  any
deposit during  the year.

6)     The  maintenance  of cost  records  as specified  by the  Central  Government  under sub  section

(1)  of section  148  of the Companies Act  is  not applicable on  the  Company.

7)  (a)The company  is  regular in  depositing  undisputed  statutory dues  including  Goods and

Services  Tax,   provident  fund,   employees'   state   insurance,   income­tax,   duty   of  customs,

value  added  tax,  cess  and  any  other statutory  dues  to  the  appropriate  authorities  and  there

are   no   arrears   of   outstanding   statutory   dues   as   on   the   last   day   of  the   financial   year
concerned  for  a  period  of more  than  six  months  from  the  date,  they  became  payable  except

e  following:

Name of Statute under which dues are outstanding Amount (Rs. In `000')
Tax deducted  at source  under the Income tax Act 1768.17

Tax collected  at source  under the Income tax Act 250.17
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Employee's  provident fund 346.32
Employer's  provident fund 403.10

Employee'  ESI  Payable 5.74
Labor welfare fund 92.70

(b) According   to   information  and   explanations  given  to  us,  following   are  the  outstanding
statutory dues on the  part of Company which  is not deposited on  account of dispute

Nature of Dues Period Amount          involved Forum                 where

(Rs     Forum     wheredisputein`000') dispute  is  pending

Income Tax A.Y 2017­18 1916.26 ITAT,  New  Delhi

8)   There  are  no  transactions  not  recorded  in  the  books  of account that  have  been  surrendered
or  disclosed  as  income  during  the  year  in  the  tax  assessments  under  the  Income  Tax  Act,
1961  (43  of  1961).

(9)  (a)whether the  company  has  defaulted  in  repayment  of  loans  or other  borrowings  or  in  the
payment  of  interest  thereon  to  any  lender,  if yes,  the  period  and  the  amount  of default  to
be  reported  as per the format below:  ­.

Nature of Name of Amount not Whether Remarks,  if
borrowing lender paid principal  or Any

(Rs.  in  '000') interest
Car  Loan Axis  Bank 539.73 Principal Unpaid      since     Jan2020

171.03 Interest

(b)  The  company  has  not  been  declared  willful  defaulter  by  any  bank  or  financial  institution
or other lender;

(c)   According   to   the   information   and   explanations   given   to   us   by   the   management,   the
company  has  utilized  the  loans against the  purpose for which  it was obtained

(d)  According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  an  overall  examinationL  of the  balance  sheet  of the  Company,  we  report  that  no  funds  have  been  raised  on  short­

term  basis that have been  utilized for the  long­term  purpose  by the Company

(e) The company  has  not taken  any funds from  any entity or person  on  account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries,  associates or joint ventures.

(f)  The  company  has  not  raised  any  loans  during  the  year on  the  pledge  of securities  held  in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

10)  (a)  The  Company  has  not  raised  any  money  by  way  of  initial  public  offer  or  further  public

offer  (including  debt  instruments)  therefore  clause  relating  to  diversion  of said  funds  is  not

applicable.

(b) The company has  not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
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convertible  debentures  (fully,  partially or optionally convertible)  during  the year.

11)  (a)  No fraud  by the company or fraud on the company has been  noticed or reported
during  the year.

(b)  No  report  under sub­section  (12)  of section  143  of the  Companies Act  has  been  filed
by   the   auditors   in   Form   ADT­4   as   prescribed   under   rule   13   of   Companies   (Audit   and

Auditors)

Rules,  2014 with  the Central  Government;

(c)  No whistle­blower complaints,  have  been,  received  during  the year  by the company;

12) The Company  is  not a  Nidhi  Company defined  under section  406 of Companies Act  2013

13)  In  our  opinion,  all  transactions  with  the  related  parties  are  in  compliance  with  section  177

and   188  of  Companies  Act,   2013  and  the  details  have  been  disclosed   in  the  Standalone
financial  statements as  required  by the applicable accounting  standards.

14)  (a) The company has an  internal audit system commensurate with the size and  nature of its
business;

(b) The  reports of the Internal Auditors for the  period  under audit were considered  by the us.

15)   The company  has  not entered  into any  non­cash transactions with  directors or persons
connected  with  him.

16)   (a)  According   to   information   and   explanations  given  to  us,  the  Company   is   not  a   Non­

Banking  Financial  Company and  registered  under Section  45­IA of the  Reserve  Bank of India

Act,  1934;

(b)  According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  The  Company  has  not conducted
Non­  Banking  Financial  activities  with  a  valid  certificate  from  Reserve  Bank  of  India  as  per

the  Reserve  Bank of India Act,  1934;

(c) The  Company  is  not  a  Core  Investment  Company  (CIC)  as  defined  in  the  regulations
made  by the  Reserve  Bank of India.  Accordingly,  provision  of sub  clause  (xvi)(c)  of para
3 the order is  not applicable.

(d)  According  to  the  information  and  explanations  provided  to  us during  the course  of audit,
the  Group  does  not  have  any  CIC.  Accordingly,  the  provisions  of sub  clause  (xvi)(d)  of para
3  the order are  not applicable.

17) The company  has  not  incurred  cash  losses  in  the financial  year and  in  the  immediately

preceding  financial  year.

18)   There  has  been  resignation  of the  statutory auditors  during  the  year.  We  have  adequately

communicated  with  the  outgoing   auditors  and   no  material   issues,  objections  or  concerns

raised by the them.

19)  On  the  basis  of  the  financial   ratios,  ageing  and  expected  dates  of  realisation  of  financial

assets  and  payment  of  financial  liabilities,  other  information  accompanying  the  Standalone

financial  statements  ,  the  auditor's  knowledge  of  the  Board  of  Directors  and  management

plans,  there  is  no  material   uncertainty  on  the  date  of  the  audit  report  that  company  is
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capable  of  meeting  its  liabilities  existing  at  the  date  of balance  sheet  as  and  when  they  fall
due within a  period  of one year from the  balance sheet date.

20)  Provisions  of section  135  of the  Companies Act  2013  relating  to  CSR activities  regarding  are

not applicable on  the Company

21)   Reporting   on   any   qualifications   or  adverse   remarks   by   the   respective   auditors   in   the
Companies   (Auditor's   Report)   Order   (CARO)   reports   of   the   companies   included   in   the
consolidated  Standalone financial  statements  is  not applicable  in  case of standalone financial

statements

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:  000808N

a•J
Place:    New  Delhi

Date:    29.05.2024

UDIN:  24012103BKDHNT6092

S.N. Agarwal

(Partner)
M,  No.:  012103
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``Annexure 8" to the Independent Auditors' ReDo

(Referred to in  paragraph  2(f) of the independent auditor's report of even date on

the Standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended  March  31,
2024.)

Report on  the  Internal  Financial  Controls  under Clause  (i)  of Sub­section  3  of Section  143  of

the Companies Act,  2013  (``the Act'').

We  have  audited  the  internal  financial  controls  over financial  reporting  of A  F  Enterprises

Limited   (``the   Company'')   as   of   March   31,   2024   in   conjunction   with   our   audit   of  the

Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended  on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The  Board   of  Directors  of  the  Company  are   responsible  for  establishing  and   maintaining

internal   financial   controls   based   on   the   internal   control   over   financial   reporting   criteria

established  by the  Company considering  the essential  components  of internal  control  stated

in  the  ``Guidance  Note  on  Audit  of Internal  Financial  Controls  Over  Financial  Reporting"  (the
``Guidance  Note")  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered  Accountants  of  India  (``ICAI''),  These

responsibilities  include  the  design,   implementation  and   maintenance  of  adequate  internal

financial   controls   that   were   operating   effectively   for   ensuring   the   orderly   and   efficient

conduct  of  its  business,  including  adherence  to  company's  policies,  the  safeguarding  of  its

assets,  the  prevention  and  detection  of frauds and  errors, the accuracy and completeness of

the   accounting   records,   and   the   timely   preparation   of   reliable   financial   information,   as

required  under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our  responsibility  is  to  express  an  opinion  on  the  Company's  internal  financial  controls  over

financial   reporting   based   on   our  audit.   We  conducted   our  audit   in   accordance  with   the

Guidance    Note    on    Audit   of   Internal    Financial    Controls    Over   Financial    Reporting    (the
`Guidance   Note')   and   the  Standards  on  Auditing,   to.  the  extent  applicable  to  an  audit  of

internal  financial  controls,   both   issued   by  the  Institute  of  Chartered  Accountants  of  India

and deemed  to  be  prescribed  under section  143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an

audit  of  internal  financial  controls  both  applicable  to  an  audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls

and,  both  issued  by  the  Institute  of  Chartered  Accountants  of India.  Those  Standards  and

the  Guidance  Note  require  that  we  comply  with  ethical  requirements  and  plan  and  perform

the  audit  to  obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether adequate  internal  financial  controls

over   financial   reporting   was   established   and   maintained   and   if   such   controls   operated

effectively  in  all  material  respects.

Our  audit  involves  performing  procedures  to  obtain  audit  evidence  about  the  adequacy  of

the    internal    financial    controls    system    over    financial    reporting    and    their    operating

effectiveness.    Our   audit   of   internal   financial   controls   over   financial   reporting    included

obtaining  an  understanding  of internal  financial  controls over financial  reporting,  assessing
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the   risk   that   a   material   weakness   exists,   and   testing   and   evaluating   the   design   and

operating   effectiveness   of   internal   control   based   on   the   assessed   risk.   The   proced.ures

selected   depend   on   the   auditors'  judgement,   including   the   assessment   of  the   risks   of

material  misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,  whether due to fraud  or error.

We  believe that the audit evidence we  have obtained  is sufficient and appropriate to  provide

a   basis   for  our  audit   opinion   on   the   Company's   internal   financial   controls   system   over

financial  reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A   company's   internal   financial   control   over  financial   reporting   is   a   process   designed   to

provide    reasonable   assurance    regarding    the    reliability   of   financial    reporting    and    the

preparation   of  Standalone  financial  statements  for  external   purposes  in  accordance  with

generally    accepted    accounting    principles.    A   company's    internal    financial    control    over
financial    reporting    includes    those    policies    and    procedures    that    (1)    pertain    to    the

maintenance    of   records   that,    in    reasonable   detail,    accurately   and    fairly    reflect   the

transactions   and   dispositions   of   the   assets   of   the   Company;    (2)    provide   reasonable

assurance  that transactions  are  recorded  as  necessary to  permit  preparation  of Standalone

financial  statements    in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles,  and  that

receipts   and   expendjtures   of   the   Company   are   being   made   only   in   accordance   with

authorisations  of  management  and  Directors  of the  Company;  and  (3)  provide  reasonable
assurance   regarding   prevention   or  timely   detection   of  unauthorised   acquisition,   use,   or

disposition  of  the  Company's  assets  that  could  have  a  material  effect  on  the  Standalone

financial  statements  .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because  of  the   inherent   limitations  of  internal   financial   controls  over  financial   reporting,

including  the  possibility  of collusion  or  improper  management  override  of controls,  material

misstatements due to error or fraud  may occur and  not be detected.  Also,  projections of any

evaluation  of  the   internal  financial  controls  over  financial   reporting  to  future  periods  are

subject  to  the  risk  that  the  internal  financial  control  over  financial  reporting  may  become

inadequate  because  of  changes  in  conditions,  or  that  the  degree  of  compliance  with  the

policies or procedures  may deteriorate,
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Opinion

In  our  opinion,  the  Company  has,   in  all  material   respects,  an  adequate  internal  financial

controls  system  over  financial   reporting  and  such   internal  financial  controls  over  financial

reporting  were  operating  effectively  as  at  March  31,  2024,   based  on  the  internal  control

over   financial   reporting   criteria   established   by   the   Company   considering   the   essential

components  of  internal  control  stated  in  the  Guidance  Note  on  Audit  of  Internal  Financial

Controls Over Financial  Reporting  issued  by the  Institute of Chartered  Accountants of India.

Place:    New  Delhi

Date:  29.05.2024

UDIN:   24012103BKDHNT6092

For s. Agarwal & col
Chartered Accountants
FRN:  OOO808N

a­J
S.N. Agarwal

(Partner)
M.  No.:  012103
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 st March 2024

As at                                                 As at

31st March 2024                          31st March 2023

455EE
Non­ current assets

Property,  plant and equipment

Finaneial assets

Investments

Loans

Other non current assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other current assets

Total

EQUITY  AND  LIABILITIES

Equfty

Equity share capital

Other equity

Liabilities

Non­ ourrent liabtl"es
Financial  liabi lities

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Provisions

Deferred  tax liabilities

Current­liabilities

Financial  liabilities

Trade Davables

Outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Outstanding  dues  of  creditors  other  than  micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities

Other current  liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities  (net)

Total

3

4
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

18

Notes to the standalone fi.nancia` statements                              1 ­53

41,802.93

12,347.00

30,281.68

2,568.22

15,314.42

9,41,401.13

7,387.68

54,059.18

52,755.61

9,527.00

23,503.60

6,054.52

15 ,760. 76

10,62,809.63

5,751.75

400.00

1,07,1 Z8. 60

11,05,162.24 1 Z,83,691.47

1 ,4t , i 36. as

1,98, 740.18

44,530.37

10'203.17

171.16

3'678.80

645.63

6,09,526.39

4,860.77

90,312.23

0.47

1,356.71

t,4t,136.36

1,96,221.20

42,256.79

14,814.42

164.74

3,784.64

720.84

7,75,750.85

4,ZZ4.61

92,958.44

0.50

11,658.08

11,05,162.24                                    12,83,691.47

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S Agarwal a Co.

Chartered Accountants
Fi'rm  Regn.  No.  000B0BN

5:rtsi:,.Agarwa'&
Membership  No.  012103

UDIN:

+

Faridabad,  the 29th day of May 2024

Director a  CFO

DIN:  03603706

ForA F ENTER

Company Secretary

PAN: ­EETPS5130A

(Amt. in 000's)
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2024

For the year ended on             For the year ended on

31st March 2024                          31st March 2023

REVENUE

Revenue f rom operations

Other income

Total revenue (I)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Operating costs

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses  (11)

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (I­11)

Exceptional items

Profit/ (loss) before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Def erred tax

Profit/  (Loss)  after tax  (111)

OTHER  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME

(i)    Items that will not be  reclassified  to profit or                39

A.              loss

(ii)   Income tax relating to items that will not  be reclassified to
8.    (i)    Items that will be reclassified  to  profit or loss

(ii)   Income tax relating to items that will be  reclassified to

Total Other Comprehengive lrr{ome (,lv)

85,013.85                                          2,41,847.93

9,956.68                                            53,768.83

94,970. 53 2,95,616. 76

38,450.3Z

5,184.20

115.15

8,850.78

3,229.83

1 , 692 . 36

11,010.14

36,305.24

76,075.45

1,49,972.18

718.80

9,561.13

13'108.72

1,850. 81

12,296.92

Z7,1Z4.88

1,04,838.02 2,90,708.89

(9,867.49) 4,907.87

10,000.00                                              13,075.00

17,982.87

/,6,764.20)

(898.62)

10,320.05

58.83

(14.81)

145.50

(36.62)

44.02                                             108.88

2,518.95

0.18

0.18

1,41,13,636

1,41,13,636

Total Comprehensive Income (Ill+lv)

Earning per equity share  (EPS)

[nomi.nat value of share  Rs.  10]

Basic  (in  Rs.)

Diluted  (in  Rs.)

Weighted Average No.  of Equity Shares

Weighted Average No.  of Dilutlve Equity Shares

Notes to the standalone financial statements                              1 ­53

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForA F EN
For S Agarwal  G[ Co.

Chartered Accountants

:#;::g;gaNffi8N+
Membership  No.  012103

UDIN:

Fan.dabad,  the 29th day of May 2024

Director a tFO

DIN:  03603706

10,428.93

0.78

0.57

1,32,39,115

1,82,39,115

`"  comp'anysectetay    ` '

PAN:­EETPS5130A

(Amt. in 000's)
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

StandaLone Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended On  31 st March  2024

For the year ended ot`            For the year ended Qn
31st March 2024                          31st March 2023

CASH  FLOW  FROM OPERATING  ACTIVITIES

Net profit/  (loss)  before taDt and after

extra­ ordinary items

Adiustments for items:  ­

Derecognition of financial liability

Foreigr exchange fluctuation  loss/  (gain)

Interest on  lease  liability

Profit on sale of property,  plant a equipment

Interest paid

I nterest received

Provision for Gratuity

Depreciation on Property,  plant a equipment

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Workinq capital adiustments:  ­

(lnerease)/ decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/  decrease in  Inventories

(Increase)/  decrease jn Other financial assets

(increase) / decrease in Other assets,
Increase/  (decrease) in Current Assets

Increase/  (decrease) in Trade payables

(Increase)/  decrease in Other financial Liabilities

Increase/  (decrease) in  Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

GASH  Frow FRQAll_N_yESTi_NG ACTiviTiEs

Sale/  (Purchase) of Property,  plant a equipment

Acquisition of subsidiary

Sale/(Purchase) of Investment

Loans (given) / recovered

Interest received

Net cash flo\^/ from investing activities  (8)

CASH  FLOW  FROw  FINANCING  ACTIVITIES

Proceeds From  Issue of equity share capital

Proceeds from issue of Snare Warrants

Interest paid

Net proceeds from  borrowings

Net cash flow from financing activities  (C)

Net cash flow during the year (A +  a + C)

Add:  Opening cash and  cash  equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents

Compeneflts of `cach and Cash equivetents
Cash on  hand

Balanees with  banks in current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)

13Z.51

(9,276.06)

1,692. 36

65.22

11,010.14

3 , 624.17

1,30,684.56

446.33

3,486.31

53,069.37

(1,66,Z99.67)

(5,667.43)

(2,646,20)

17,98Z.87

(53,676.24)

1,707.20

1 43 . 62

90.89

12,296.93

(21,454.73)

(1,55 , 556.94)

24,008.46

(4,615.12)

51,45Z. 56

14,OZ5.98

(5, 537.11 )

(61,657.22)

16,697.44                                         (1,59,334.12)

(8,079.60)                                                 295.24

8,617.84                                    (1,59,038.88)

(57.46)

(2,820.00)

(6,378.07)

(3,041.01 )

19,026.9Z

(9,255.53)                                            15,985.91

2,273.58

16,200.00

1,Z6,Z50.00

(143.6Z)

(4,507.54)

2,273.58                                    1,37,798.84

1,635.93                                                   (5,254.12)

5,751.75                                                  11,005.87

7,387.68 5,751.75

3,332.39

4,055.29

3,389.33

2,362.42

7,387.68 5,751.75

Notes to the Standalone financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S Agarwal a: Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm  Regn.  No.  000808N

::rtsi:r.Aga­a,+
Membership  No.  012103

29th day ot­ May `2024

't. I¥

Abhishek Slngh

Director a CFO

DIN:  03603706

ForAFENTERPR`SESLIMITED

Company Secretary

PAN:­EFTPS5130A

(Amt. in 000's)
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES  TO THE  STANDALONE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    FOR THE YEAR  ENDED  31ST MRCH  2024

1  Corporate lnformatlon:

A  F   ENTERPRISES   LIMITED   (CIN   L18100DL1983PLC016354)   was   Incorporated   on  August   18th,   1983   under  the  Companies  Act,   1956  wilh  the  Registrar  of

CompanfesAFErteap­Limited(theCompany}rsefpgapdinthabusinessofrrREfactEireandtradingofptastreedretatedpwh€t5apartfrotreding
in  other goods such  as fabric,  emerald,  glasses,  etc.  The Company is  listed  on  Bombay Stock Exchange  (BSE)  [Script code:  AFEL].

2  Si8nificar`t ^ccountlng Pollcles:

(a)  Statement of Compllance with lnd AS:

The  Standalone  fmanci.al  statements  of  the  Company  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  wlth  the  Indian  Accounting  Standards  (lnd  AS)  specified

under  section  133  of  the  Companies  Act,  2013,   read  with  Rule  3  of  the  Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards)  Rules,  2015.  The  Company  has

uniformly applied  the accounting policies during the  periods presented.

The financial statements are  presented  in  Indian  Rupees  (Rs.  In  thousarids) which  is also the functional currency of the company.

q]) Jfrots for preparation af flnanctal statements:
The  Standalone financial statements  have  been  prepared  in  historical  cost  basis except for certain financial  instruments  which  are  measured  at fair

valueoramortisedcostattheendwhichisgenerallybasedonthefairvalueofconslderationgiveninexchangeforgoodsandservices.Auassetsand

liabilitieshavebeenclasslfiedascurrentandnon­currentaspertheCompany'snormaloperatingcycle.Basedonthenatureofserv`cesrenderedto

customersandtimeelapsedbetweendeploymentofresourcesandtherealisationincashandcashequivalentsoftheconsiderationforsuchserv`ces

rendered,  the Company has considered an operating cycle of  12 months.

(c)  Use of Estimates:

The  preparatlon  of  Standa\one  flnanclal  statements  requires  the  management  of  the  company  to  make  est`mates  and  assumptions  that  affect  the

reported  amounts  of  assets  and  liabilities  on  the  date  of  financia`  statements,  disctosure  of  contingent  liabili.ties  as  at  the  date  of  the  flnanclal

statements,andthereportedamountsofincomeandexpensesdunngthereportedperlod.Estimatesandundertylngassumptionsarerev`ewedonan

ongoingbasis.Revisionstoaccountingestimatesarerecognizedintheperiodinwhichtheestimatesarerevised.

(d)   Signlficant Management judgement tn applylng accountlng estimates:

(i)  Income taxes:

Significant  Judgments  are  Involved   ln  determining  the  provision  for  income  taxes,   includmg  amount  expected  to   be   paid/recovered  for

uncertain tax positions.

(ii)  mD_airment of investm_ejife:

The  carrylng  value  of  investments  is  revlewed  at  cost  annua``y,  or  more  frequently  whenever,  there  is  indication  for  impairment.   If  the

recoverable  amount  is  less  than  the carrying amount,  the  impairment  loss  is accounted for.

(iii)   Provision:

Provisions  are  recognized  when  the  company  has  a  present  obligation  as  a  result  of past  event  and  it  is  probable  that  an outflow of resources

w{uberequiredtose,ttte`theobligation,inrespectofwhichareliabteestimatecanbemad€.Thesearereviewedateachbafancesheetdate

adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

(iv)  Recognition  of Deferred Tax Assetsi

The extent to whi.ch deferred tax assets can be recognised  is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against

which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

(e)  Property,  PLant and  Equlpment:

PPE  are  stated  at  actual  cost  less  accumulated  depreciation  and  net  of  impairment.  The  actual  cost  capitalized  includes  materi.al  cost,  frel.ght,

instal`ati.on cost,  duties and  taxes,  eligible  borrowing costs and  other incidental expenses  incurred  during the construction/installation  stage.

The Company  has  chosen  the  cost  model for  recogni.tion  and  this  model  is  appll.ed  to all  class  of assets.  After  recognition  as  an asset,  an  I.tern of PPE

ls camed at its, cost less any accumu,laced depreciation and ariy accumulated  impairment lasses.

Depreci.able amount of an asset is the cost of an asset less its estimated  residual value.

Depreciation  on  PPE,  including  assets  taken  on  lease,  other  than  freehold  land  is  charged  based  on  Written  Down  Value  method  on  an  estimated

useful  life as  prescribed  in  Schedule  11  to the  Companies Act,  2013.  The  useful  life  of asset taken  into consideration as  per Schedule  11  for the  purpose

of calculating depreciation  is  as  follows:  ­

Partlculars of Property,  Plant a  Equipment Useful  IIfe  (ln years)

Plant  a Mach nery (Tools  a  Dies) 15

Furniture a f xtures 10

V€hicte5 8

Office  Equipment 5

Computers a  peripherals 3

An  item  of  Property,   Plant  and  Equipment  is  dereco9nized  upon  disposal  or  when  no  future  economic  benefits  are  expected  to  ari.se  from  the

continued  use  of the  asset.  Any gain  or loss  arising  on  the  disposal  or  retirement  of an  item  of  property,  plant  and  equipment  are determined  as  a

difference between the sale proceeds and  the carrying amount of the asset and  is recognised  in the statement of profit and  loss.

At the end of each  reporting  period,  the Company reviews the carrying amounts of tangible and  intangible assets  to determine whether there  is  any

1.ndication  that those assets  have suffered an  impairment  loss.
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES TO  THE  STANDALONE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS   FOR THE  YEAR  ENDED  31ST MARCH  Z024

(f)  Revenue recognltlon:

Revenue I.s recognized when the control over the goods or services  promised  in  the contract are transferred  to  the customer.  The amount of revenue

recognized  depicts  the  transfer of  promised  goods and  services  to  customers  for an  amount  that  reflects the  consideration  to  which  the  Company I.s

entitled  to in exchange for the goods or services.

(i)  Sale  of goods:

Revenue  from  sate  of goods  is  recognised  when  control  over  such  goods  have  been  transferred,  being  when  the  goods  are  delivered  to  the

customers.  Delivery  occurs  when  the  products  have  been  shipped  or delivered  to  the  specific  location  as  the  case  may  be,  risks  of  loss  have

been  transferred  to  the  customers,  and  either the  customer  has  accepted  the  goods  in  accordance with  the  sales  contract  or the acceptance

provisions  have lapsed or the Company  has objective evidence that  all criteria  for acceptance  have  been  satisfied.  Revenue from these sales is
recognized  based on the price specified  in the contract.

(ii)  Dividend  and  interest  income:

Divrdend  Income  tram  ]rwesments is  recognised  when  the  sharehatders' n8ht to  receive such  amount has  been  established  (provided  that it  is

probable  that  the  economic  benefits  will  flow to  the  Company and  the  amount  of income  can  be  measured  reliably).  Interest  income  from  a

financial  asset  is  recognised  when  1.t  1.s  probable  that  the  economic  benefits  wiu  flow  to  the  Company  and  the  amount  of  1.ncome  can  be

measured reliably.

(iii)  Other  Income:

ln  respect of other heads of income I.n the Company's accounts the 1.ncome shall  be  recognised  on  accrual  basis.

(g)  Forelgn currency transacttons:
Foreign  currency  transactions  are  recorded   in  the  functional  currency,   by  applying  the  exchange  rate  between  the  functi.onal  and  the  foreign

currency  prevailing  on  date  of  transaction.  Foreign  currency  denominated  monetary  assets  and  li.abi.lities  are  restated  I.nto  the  functional  currency

using  exchange  rates  prevailing  on  the  date  of  Balance  Sheet.  Exchange  differences  arising  on  monetary  I.terns  on  settlement  or  restatement  as  at

reporti.`ng date,  a[ rates different from  those at whith  they were  initjaltly recorded,  are  recognl­zed\ I.n  the  Statement of Profit and  Loss  in  the year in

which they arise.

(h)  Flnandal Instruments:

(i)  Plnanctal Assets:  ­

Recogniti.on and  initial  measurement:  .

Financial  assets  and  financial   liabili.ties  are   initially  recognised   when  the  Company  becomes   a  party  to  the  contractual   provisions  of  the

financial  instrument and  are  measurecl  initi.ally at fair value adjusted  for transaction  cost.

Subsequent  measurement:  ­

Equity  instrument  and  Mutual  Fund:   .  All  equi.ty  instrument  and  mutual  funds  within  scope  of  lndAS  109  are  measured  at  fair  value.   Equity

instrument  and  Mutual  fund  which  are   held  for  trading  are  classified  as  at  fair  value  through   profit  a   loss   (FVTPL).   For  all  other  equity

instruments, ­the Company decided  t\o `classify them as at  fair value through `othar comprehensive  income  (FITLOcl ).

Debt  instrument:  ­A  `debt  instrument'  is  measured  at  the amortised  cost  if both  the  following conditions  are  met.  The assets  are  held  withi.n a

busi.ness  model  whose  objective  is  to  hold  assets  for  collecting  contractual  cash  flows,  and  contractual  terms  of  the  assets  gl.yen  rise  on

speci.fi.eddatestocashflowsthataresolelypaymentsofprincipalandinterestontheprinci.palamountoutstandi.ng,Afteri.ni.ti.almeasurement,

such  Financial Assets are  subsequently measured  at amorti.sed  cost  using  the effecti.ve  interest  rate  (EIR)  method.

eel­_ recoqnitl'on of Financl.al Assetsi

A  fi.nanci.al  asset  is  pn.mari\y  de.recogni.sed  when  the  ri.ghts  to  receive cash  flows  from  the  asset  have  expi.red  or  the  Company  has  transferred

I.ts right to receive cash flow from the asset.

(ii)   Financial   Liabiliti.es:

Beg2gDjtign±pd  in I.t jai±pgas!±[e!]]e!]!;:  ­

AuflnancialliabilitiesarerecognI.sedinitlallyatfal.rvalueandtransacti.oncostthatisattributabletotheacc|ui.si.tlonoftheflnancialliabill.tl.es

is also adjusted.  Financi.al  liabilities are  classified  as amortised cost.

Subsecluent  measuremgE!:  ­

Subsequent  to  initial  recognition,  these  liabilities are  measured  at  amortised  cost  using the effectl.ve  ].nterest  rate  method.

B£±£sggDit ion oL£±inans±a±Jja±i!i±ie§:  ­

A  financial  `iabltityls  derecognized  When  the  obh'gati.on  under  the  ljabili.tyis  di.scharged  or  cancelled  or  exp..res.   Consequently,  write  back  of

unsettledcreditbalancesisdoneonclosureoftheconcernedpro]ectorearllerbasedonthepreviousexperlenceofmanagementandactual

facts of each case and  recognized  in other operatir}g revenues.

Further  When  an  exlstlng  flnanclal  liab711ty  ls  rep`aced  by  another  from  the  same  lender  on  substantially  different  terms,  or  the  terms  of

existlng  llabllity  are  substantially  modified,  such  an  exchange  or  modificati.on  is  treated  as  the  de­recognition  of  the  original  liabi.li.ty  and  the

recogni.tionofanewli.ability.Thedi.fferenceintherespecti.vecarryl.ngamountsisrecognl.zedintheStatementofProfitandLoss.

¥¥:±::litlesareoffsetandthenetamountisreportedintheBalancesheetlftherelscurrentlyenforceabLelegaL
nght   to  offset   the  recognl.zed   amounts   and   there   is   an   Intent..on   to   settle   on   net   basls,   to   reall.ze   the   assets   and   settle   the   llabllltles

simultaneoLisly.

(i)  Lmpatrment Of Firunalal Assets

°r=¥::=::::#:±:::;:E::::==:#::::::::::=±;;ectedcreditLoss(ECL)modelformeasurementandrecognitionofimpairmentlossfor

flnanclalassets.ExpectedCredltLosslsthedifferencebetweenaucontractualcashflowsthatareduetotheCompanyinaccordancewi.ththe

contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

(ii)  Other  Financial Assets:  ­

The  Company  determines  whether  there   has   been   a  significant   increase   in  the  credlt  rlsk  since   lnitl.al   recognltion  and   if  credi.t   risk  has

increased  signi.ficantly,  impairment  loss  is  provided.
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(I)  Inventories

Inventories  (other  than  quoted  shares  andsecurl.ties)  are  valued  at  cost  or  net  realisable  value,  whichever  is  lower.  Cost  is  determined  on  FIFO  and

includes  cost  of  purchase  and  other  costs  incurred   in   bringing  inventories  to  their  present  location  and   condition.   Net  rea`isable  value  is  the

estimated setllng price in the ordinary coiirse of business,  less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k)  Cash a Cash equlvalents

cash  and  cash  eciuivalent5  in  the  Balanc;e  Sheet  comprise  of  cash  at  bank  and  on  hand  and  Short  term  deposits  With  an  original  maturity  of  three

months or  less,  which  are subject to an  insignificant  risk of changes in value.

(I)  Taxation

Tax expense  recognised  in Statement of Profit and  Loss  comprises  of current tax and  deferred  tax.  Current tax is  measured  at the  amount expected

to  be  paid/recovered  from  the  tax  authorities,   based  on  estimated  tax  liability  computed  after  taking  credit  for  allowances  and  exemption  in

accordance  with  Income Tax Act,1961.  Current and  deferred  tax are  recognised  in  Statement  of Profit  and  Loss,  except  when  they  relate  to  items

that  are  recognised  in  other  comprehensive  income  or  directly  in  equity,  in  which  case,  the  income  taxes  are  recognised  in  other  comprehensive

. income or directly in equity,  respectively.Advance taxes and  provisions  for current  income taxes are presented  in the statement of financial position

after off­setting advance tax paid and income tax provision.

Minimum  Alternate  Tax  (MAT)  credit  entitlement  i.s  recognised  as  an  asset  only  when  and  to  the  extent  there  is  convincing  evidence  that  normal

income tax win be  paid during the specified  period.  In  the year  in  which  MT credit  becomes eligible  to  be  recognised  as  an  asset,  the said  asset is

created  by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and  Loss and  shown as MT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each  balance sheet date and

the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement  is written  down to  the extent  it  is  reasonably certain that  normal I.ncome tax will be  paid  during the

specified  period.

Deferred  tax  is  recognised  on  temporary di.fferences  arising  between  the  carrying  amount  of  assets  and  liabilities  and  the  corresponding  tax  bases

used  in computation of taxable  profit under  Income Tax Act,1961.

Deferred  tax assets and  liabilities  are  measured  at the  tax  rates that  are expected  to  apply in  the year when  the asset  is  realized  or the  liability is

settled,  based  on tax  rates (and  tax laws)  that have  been enacted.  Deferred  tax  relating, to  items recognised  c>utside Statement  of Profit  and  Loss is

recognised  outside Statement of Profit  and  Loss  (either in  other comprehensive  income or in  equity).

(in)  Earnings per share:

Basic  earnings/  (loss)  per  share  are  calculated  by  dMding  the  net  profit/  (loss)  for the  period  attributable  to  equity  shareholders  by  the  weighted

average  number  of  equity  shares  outstanding  during  the  period.  The  weighted  average  number  of  equi.ty  shares  outstanding  during  the  period  are

adjusted  for  any  bonus  shares  issued  during  the  period  and  also  after  the  Balance  Sheet  date  but  before  the  date  the  financial  statements  are

approved  by the  Board  of Directors.

For  the  purpose  of  calculating  diluted  earnings/   (loss)  per  share,  the  net  profit/   (loss)  for  the  peri.od  attributable  to  equity  shareholders  and  the

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all potentially dilutiveequity shares.

The  number of equi.ty shares and  potentia`ly dilutive  equity shares are adjusted  for bonus shares as appropriate.  The  dilutive  potential equity shares

are  adjusted  for the  proceeds  receivable,  had  the  shares  been  issued  at fair value.  Dilutive  potential equity shares  are  deemed  converted  as  of the

beginning of the  Dericid,  unless  issued  at a  later date.

(n)  Provision,  Contingent Ltabtlttles and Contingent Assets:

A  provisi.on  is  recogni.sod  when  the company  has  a  present  obligation  as  a  result  of  Past  event  and  it  is  probable  that  an  olltflow of  resources  Will  be

requi.red  to settle the obligati.on,  in  respect of which  reliable estimate can be made.  If the effect of the  time value of money I.s  materl.al,  provisions

are  discounted  iising  a  current  pre­tax  rate  that  reflects,  when  appropriate,  the  risks  specific  to  the  liability.  When  discounting  is used,  the  increase

in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised  as a finance cost,

CQntirtgent Assets ancl  Contingent  Liabilities  are  not  recog/ilzed  ln  the  finatlc]`a+ statements.

(o)  Leases:

Mnistry  of  Corporate  Affairs  ("MCA")  through  Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards)  Amendment  Rules,  ZO19  and  Companies  (Indian  Accounting

Standards)   Second   Amendment   Rules,   has   notmed   lnd   AS   116   Leases  which   replaces   the   existing   lease   standard,   lnd   AS   17  Leases  and   other

interpretations.   Ind  AS  116  sets  out  the  principles  for  the  recognition,   measurement,   presentation  and  di.sclosure  of  leases  for  both  lessees  and

lessors.  It  introduces a  single,  on­balance sheet  lease  accounti.ng  model for  lessees.

The  Company  has  adopted  lnd  AS  116,  effective  annual  reporting  period  beginni.ng  April  1,  2019  and  applied  the  standard  to  its  leases  usi.ng  the

modified  retrospective approach whereby a lessee ap|)lies the  new standard from the  begl.nning of the current period.  The lessee calculates the lease

asset  and  lease  liability  as  at  the  beginni.ng  of  the  current  peri'od  and  recognl.zed  an  adjustment  1.n  equity  at  the  beginning  of  the  current  period.

Accordingly,  a lessee will `not  restate its prior period fi.nancial information under this approach.

TheCompanyhase`ectednottoapptytherequirementsoflndAS116Leasestoshorttermleasesofauassetsthathavealeasetermof12monthsor

less  and  leases  for which  the  underlying  asset  is  of  low  value.  The  lease  payments  associated  with  these  leases  are  recognised  as  an  expense  on  a

straight­Il.ne  basis over the  lease  term.

TheCompanyrecognisesright­of­useassetrepresentingi.tsrighttousetheunderlyingassetfortheleasetermattheleasecommencementdate.The

cost  of the  rightof­use  asset  measured  at  inception  shau  compri.se  of  the  amount  of  the  initial  measurement  of  the  lease  U.ability  adjusted  for any

leasepaymentsmadeatorbeforethecommencementdatelessanyleaseincentivesrecei.ved,plusanyim.ti.aldi.rectcostsl.ncurredandanestl.mate

ofcoststobeincurredbythelesseeind'.smantlingandremovin8theunderlyingassetorrestorlngtheunderlylngassetorsiteonwhlchltislocated.

Theright­of­useassetsaresubsequentlymeasuredatcostlessanyaccumulateddepreciation,accumulat€dimpai.rmentlosses,if any.Thenght­of.

use  assets  is  depreclated  using  the  straight.line  method  from  the  commencement  date  over the  shorter of  lease  term  or  useful, life  of  right.of.use

asset.
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The Company measures the  lease liabi.li.ty at  the present value of the lease  payments that are  not  paid  at the commencement date of the  lease.  The

lease  payments  are  discounted  using  trie  Interest  rate  implicit  `n  the  lease,  if  that  rate  can  be  readily  determined.  If that  rate  cannot  be  readily

determined,  the  Company  uses  incremental  borrowing  rate.  For  leases  with  reasonably  similar  characteristics,  the  Company,  on  a  lease  by  lease

basis,  may  adopt  either  the  incremental  borrowing  rate  specific  to  the  lease or  the  increTnental  borro'wing  rate  for  the  portfctio  as  a  whole.  The

lease  liability  I.s  subsequently  re­measured  by  increasing  the  carrying  amoiint  to  reflect  interest  on  the  lease  li.ability,  reduci.ng  the  carrying  amount

to reflect the  lease payments made and  re­measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease  modifications or to reflect  revised I.n­

substance fixed  lease payments.

On  appllcation  of  lncl  AS  116,  the  nature  of  expenses  has  changed  to  depreciation  cost  for  the  right­of­use  asset,   and  finance  cost  for  interest

accrued  on  lease  liability,  in  place of lease  rentals  payments.

(p)  Employee  Benefits

(i)  Short­term  Employee  Benefits:  ­

Liabilities for short.term  employee  benefits that  are expected  to  be  settled  wholly within  12  months  after the end  of the  period  in  which the

employees render the related  service are  recognized in respect of emp`oyee's  services up to the end  of the  reporting period  and  are measured

at the amounts expected to be  paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii)   Post­Employment  Benefits:  ­

Defined   Contribiition  ±±aa!i  The   Company   has   defined   contribLition   plans   in   respect  of  PF   a   Esl   which   are  accounted   for  as   and   when

contributi.on payments are made.

±efine± Beaefi! ±!a±±i The Company has a  gratuity scheme  payable  to employees  as  per the  provisions of the  Payment  of Gratuity Act,1972.

The actuarial valuation  of the  liability against  such sum  is  made at  the year end.
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3  Eroperty. 0l.nt .nd eaull]m®n±

EeeaamoujLt..

Butldlng Premtses (ROU  Asset)

Plant fr Machinery

Furn(tore  a flxtures

Motor  Veh{c`e

offlce  Eciuipment

Computers a  peripherals

Tot,I

S±gst or Deeln.d Cot :
Balaf,c[i  as at , 316[ .t&alrchi 2i322

Addltions during the year

Sale/  dlspcal during the year

B.I.nco .. .t 31st ^^.rch  2023

Addftions durine the year

SIIe/ dlsfx)i.I durln. the ye.r

a.I.nc. es .t ]1st M.rch Z024

LccumubtedD®Drecl.flgQ:

Balance as at 31st March Z02Z

Charge for  the year

ndjugtinei`t for Sale/  digpasat

a.I.nc. as at Slat M.rch Z023

Charge for the year

Adjustment for Sale /  dlsposa`

Balance is .t .1st M.rch  2024

13,665.18

Z6,Z90.43

1,171.51

545 . 1 4

108.05

2Z.62

:::::::f::::`:::::::::                    :::::::                  ::.;:               7::.::             ::::.::

3.1                 All  the  above  property,  p`ant  a  equipment are owned  by the company except  ROU  Assets.

4  lnvetments

I nvestrTiont tn su bsldlarv  /at amortlsed cert )

95,270   (31st  March  20Z3:   95,270)  equity  shares  of  Rs.   100  each  fully   paid  ln

Aunlk lT Solutloms Private  Limited

200.000  (31st March  ZOZ3:  Nil) equity shares of Rs  10 each  at a  Premium of Rs

4.10 fn Saanvi Advisors Limited

Partlcularli)a/isar,aadvculc6sg.­aiitedtoi'oriI­d.­

A3 ,t  3Anrountoflo.n

Percelitage of the total

A

Amount of loan Percentage of the total loan and
outstandln8 loan .nd advances outstandtn8 adv.nces

(a)  repayable on demand

p       rot;t5,     ireLtors,or(b)withoutspecifyingany Ps  arid a,thor ,related  parti6s, that  ai­ermsorperiodofrepayment
lijl ;ill lijl `iil
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(Rupees ln OOO's unless otherwise stated)

Asat

31!t March  2023

SNo. Partlcu'|ri
Outst.ndin8 from due dite ol p.ymont .a on 31st march  ZoZ4

2­3 y..rs Mor. th.n  3 y®.rs                                         Totl`
L.s] th.n  6 month.32,291.48 r 1 ­2 y.|rs65,099.02

(I) undisputed Trade Recelvables  :  Constderedood

6mont   i.      y®1,031.17

3,9Z6`9Z 8,39,05Z.55
9,41,401.13

('1)

IUndlsputed Trade  Recetvab`es  ..  Considered

(iti)\ivt

dubtfulDlsprted Trade Receivables :  Considered 8oed

Disputed  Trade  Receivables  :  ConslderedHnl1h,flll

t          n  31!tMarch  2023

SNo. P,rtlcullrs

L.SS th.n 6 months 6 months ­  1  y..I

Outst.ndlni fr1­2y.Irs om du. date ot p.yin.n   .2.3y..rs5712SO Mor. th.n  3 y..rs81456828

Tot,I            10, 68, 716.11

(') Undisputed Trade  Receivables  :  Constderedgood
1,97,6Z1.00 4,539.75 51,5Z9.96 4.

('1)
Undlsputed Trade  Receivab`es  :  Considereddubtfu'

(iti) Disputed Trade  Receivab`es  :  Considered  good

(iv) _Dlaputed Trnde Rej=elvabtes  :  [anetdereddoubtfu(

111111111111_1111111_11111111111111­

10  Lo" currch

unsecured. considered rood

Loon to body corporate

Lcen to related party

Less:  Expected  Credtt Lass
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11   Other current assets

Adva7Ife to raptated party

Balances with  revenue authontles  ( 11.I )

Input credit  under GST  (Note  11.I)

Other Advarrecs

Prcpaid cxpemses

1 ,947 . 5 )

35,610,cO

16,476.72

Z4.1 a

2,loo.99

35,66Z.32

68,713 .13

644 . ' 6

Slat ~ 2024
Nee.                                      tits.   In  'OOO`)

1.ro.cO<coO                                  4  ro ooo..cO

4,10,00,000                            4,10,000.00
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Dot.IIi Of shares hold bv I.romot®r. IPromoterName n the ConpanvShareshold by the promoters .t the end Of the pchodM.rchZOZ4
Shares held by the promoters .I the end of the pertod 31 st March2023%OfuntShares

% Ch.nee durlng the ycor

he. of Shares % Of trd Shares No.  Of Shere5             8 07  600

I                                                    5.72
a.OOw

RMS Mosciuto P rivate  Limited
8,07,600 5.72 ''I'II''''''I''I''''Il'''IiBII
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17  I)eforred tax (assets)Al.bllltle. (net)

At the start Of the year

chart./ cred't to stat¢nent of profit and lo§s a Orl

At the ond Of ycor

3,784.64

('05­84)

P®rtlculars
For th® y.ar .nd®d on  Slat March  Z024 (Rs.  tn  .000.)

As ®t ,.t Apr'',1023 Recoenlzed ln profttandloss('52.57) Recognlz.d ln ocl A! at 91st March,  2024Z,164.T9

i,916,86

14.81
43.ZO

P roDerty ,  Dfant  and  equipmei`tLosscstamedfolwardunderthe  lrreome Tax Act,  1061ProvtgtonForGratultv

9 '13  20\41.519

4512

'''1'1'''''''''1­
871 .32

Others
826.3,784.61

(1ZO.64)
1481

},678.80

Tot,I
'''''1'''''''''11111111111­

t® T\r­der xpr]bl.I carrtdr

­  Outstand(ng diwf to in(cro enterprlses and  smal` enterprises  (Note  18.1 )

outsfandtng due! Of creditors other than micro enterprlses and  sma`t enterprlses

Outs t®ndln8 from du. date of2.3Y®,rs payment a! on  3 1 st Marct'  2024
Partlculars

More than 3 Years Total

(,)('i)\'„`('v) ME

L®se than  1  V®.r645.63 1 ­ i ycar!25,006.42

84  005  97 4  69  008.60

646,09,52 .63.39

Others
31,425. 39

Disputed dues  .  MEDlsDutedclues.others ''''1'''''''''''''­I_
to.1  Trld. pry"rde for ptry.nt ulth. .8­ng sch.dtil. ag idow.­

P®rt'cullrsMSME
Opts t&ndln8 from du. dat. Of p.yin.nt as on  31st March  20Z3

Lee than  1  V.ir 1.2 Years Z­3 Ye.r3 M®r® than  3  Years Totll                     720  84

)
720.84

85

)1)
Othersmsputed  dues  :  MSME 2,03,878.14 1,ZO,047. 68 16,645.59 4,35,179.45 1'J5,JsO.

) Dlaputed dues others

(a)  Pnnci`pat amount  remal.ning  unpaid  at  the end  of  the year

(b) interest due on Prlnc]pal anaLmt remalning unpeid at_ the end Of the year

(c)  lntere3t paid  in  tema of section  16 of  the MSMED  Act,  2006 during  the year

(d) Interest accn.ed and  rematnlng unpeld at the end Of the year

(e)  Interest  remalnlng  due and  payable  referred  to ln scctton  Z3  Of  the MSMED  Act,  2006

19   0tt`.r flnanclal ll.bllltlca:  curr.nt

Currtmt matunties of finance lease obli8ations (refer note  14)

lease  LlabtLity  (as  per  lnd  AS  116)

20  0th.r current ll.bllltles

Advance Rtx!i`ed from­austomeFs

TDS  Payable

TCS p.ysbl.

EPF,  Esl and  lwF payable

Otlier exp.roes payable§
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9se 49

(843.34)

115.15

Page 83



1,69Z.36

1,69Z, 36

36,Sol.Z1

10,000.00

ro,ooo.oo

t,8sO.®1

z7 , 1 z4. ae

13Jus.00

13,075.00
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTESTOTHESTANDALONEFINANCIAISTATEMENTSFORTHEYEARENDED31STMRCH2024

(Rupees  ln OcO.a unless citherwlse stated)
32ThebooksofaccountsofthecompanyaremaintalnedinCorporateOfftcesituatedatPlotNo8,Sector­5MainMathuraRoad,BallabgarhFarfdabadandwerechecked

thereat by the Audi.tors of the Company.

33   Related Parties:  ­

AsperINDAS24,thedisclosuresoftransactionswTththerelatedpartiesaregivenbelow:

(`)      L't      f         ((''(a) Llstotrelatedpartleswherecontrolexlstsandalsorelatedparti.eswlthwhomtransactlonsSu6sldtary/AssociateEntftyA

have taken  place and  relati.onship:un'k'T

(b)il\ Key Management  Personneltnt­I­­
Sotuttons Prtvate Ltmtted

MM r.  Santosh  kumar  Kushwaha  /ManaQinq  Director\rAbh.hk.

MM

is   e    Slnqh  (Director  a  CFO)r.ManjshKumarPrafulbhaiMehta  (Dlrector)V'k

rM .     I   ramshaSh`rrria  /Past  Director)

M

.     a   ilArora.ShaqunAimP /Past  Director`ant/PastI)irector}

MM

rerna Sethi  `Past Director)PavalSachdeva`ComDanvSecretamNehaSrwastava/C

ei pnst.. owiied or slgnmcaiitly  tl­iflueiiced  by the Key Managemerit Persolinel or theii­Re`atives

M/S   ROS  Corpt3i

omDariv Secretarv \'at€ServicesPrivateLi.n­iited

M/s   SNP  InfosoM/RMS luttons  LLP

M/

s             Mosauto  pnvate  LimitedC`

s     onslderDone(b)Trins.ctlonwlthRel.todP.rtl®„

(b)  Tr,ns•ctlon wlth  Rel.tod  P.rtl®!...Tr.ns.ctlonwith                                                                                                                 I

(a) Sub  'd'

N.tur. of Tr.n!.ctlon Tr.ns.ctlons duri31!tderch2024nB th. y..r end.d

S''AunikI a      ComDanv:  ­                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              3tstthrch  2023TSolut'p`

ions    nvate Limited
Loans  GivenLcianRecovered

N I 1Ni(

(b)(c) K      Management personnel:  ­ 1N,.,,N„

Loans  repaldRemunerati.on  (Sw     tE      .
I

1
1N''NilNIL

Ms.  Shagun  Ajmani
ea      quityshares'vedidtion(SweatEquityShares

N'l
LoanLoanRein SrSreune

N
N'''Nil

N

Mr.  Abhjshek Singh
RemuneraReimbursAdvanceaAdvancea

N''

nt of Expenses
600.00 49.73

1,079.60
st sa`arystsala r                d

Mr.  Santosh  Kumar  Kushwaha
ry   ecoverePaymenttowardsRemuneration payableR`b

7,ZcO,cO
elm   ursement of Expenses

9,201. 75
RoniinaraLoansRecP

d
„,

Ms.  Payal  SachdevaMs.NehaSrivastava

ayment tRemuneraRemunera owards expenses payabletion
3,446.007.13

Rel   t`             fK

EnterD  '
'        h'hK      IA

I

M/s   RDS Corporate Servi.ces Pn.vate Limited
Loan qiven 13,sO3.50 5

Loa s recovered 9,331.50 6,982.87

Sale of goods N''` 6,924.97

Services received 3,480.CO 464.00

Issue of Share Warrants Nil N„

M/s   Consider Done
Loan  Giv 787.46

Loan Recovered 9;067.cO
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(Rupees in 000.s unless otherwise stated)

A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTEST0THESTANDALONEFINANCIALSTATEMENTSFORTHEYEARENDED31STMARCH2024

c) Balance with the Related Partlos:­

(a)
Sb..

Nature of Transaction Ba'an3 Ce as at

u   sldla      Com   an   :.                                                                                                                                                                                          1stMarchzoz4Aum.klTSolutionsprivateumitedIlnvel;iF==iil
}1st  March  Z023

(b) Ke    Mana  ement personnel:  _                                                        ment ln  Equity sharesMSh 9,527.00
9,527.00

s.       agunA]mani                                                                    8

I

Remuneratton  PayableExpensesPayableAd
49.98

78.0049.98I14o53

Mr.  Santosh  Kumar  Kushwaha                                           I
vance agalnst sa(anyRemunerationPayableExpensesPayableLoansaAdvances

I.I­I

nil7,200.00344626

Ms.  Payal  SachdevaMs.NehaSrlvastavaRelativesofKMa

::::::r::::: ;:;::::                                                             7 :i!, ,l'
nil2.cONil

(c)

(a)

na   emeEnteriseslnwhichKeMa nt Personnel  :­   NonenaementpersonnIand  Relati.ves          h     .

111111111111_
M/     RD                                                                                                                       are    avlna st  nlficantinfiue nces;  ­

M/s   SNP  lnfosolutlons  LLP

Tradn: Re€ei:anbc,ees                                            ,TradePayabtesAdvancereIedf
5,778.07

1NfLI1,6o6.o7I

1 3 . 00195.00

M/s   Consider Done
L°ans&Ad::nvces   r°mcustomer              I, I                                                                            195.0o'Nil

Segment

iiiiiiiiiiiii­
NI''

nformatlon:

TheCompanyhasI.dentifi.edfiyereportab`esegmentsviz,snaresandsecun.tl.es,roughemerald,fabnc,glassesandplastlcmoldedcomponentsaftertakingtntoaccountthe

natureOfproductandservicesandthedi.fferingrtskandreturnsonsuchproductsandservlces.Theaccountlngpoh.ciesadoptedforsegmentreportmgarelnlinewi.ththe

accounti'ngpollcyofthecompanywithfollowingaddi.tionalpolicfesforse8mentreporting:­

(I)Revenueandexpenseshavebeeni.dentlfledtoasegmentonthebasi'sofrelationtooperatingactivitiesofthesegmentRevenueandexpensesthatrelatesto

enterpriseasawholeandarenotallocabletoasegmentonareasonablebasI.shavebeendlsclosedas`.un­allocable".

(il)SegmentAssetsandSegmentLlabilitiesrepresentAssetsandLiabilitiesinrespectl.vese8ments.Assetsandllabi`1tlesthatcannotbeallocatedtoasegmenton

reasonable basis  have  been  disclosed as  "Un­a`locable".

(iii)  S_erment  lnformatiqu:

Particulars                                                                                                           I                                 31st  March  2024                                I
31st March  Z023SefLmShar ent  Revenue:esftsecurities

Rough emeraldPlasticmolded components
4`453.94 1. 57.012.10

80.559  59 84  835  83
Unallocable                                                                                                                                                                                                 9.957.00 I
Total  Revenue                                                                                                I                                                                           94.970.531

2.41.847  93

Segment Results

(Proflt/ loss before Interest and taxes)

Tradtnq in  shares                                                                                                                                                                                                      ­115.15 '719.001

Rough  Emerald                                                                                                                                                                                                  159. 32 7,039.92

plastic  molded  components                                                                                                                                                     41,220.01 1,064.86

Less:                                 I nterest (1,692.36) (1,850.81 )

Less.                                 Other un.a`locable expenditure (net) (39,439. 31 )
12,447.90

Total Profit Before Taxes
132.51 17,982.87

Seanent assets
I  i                                                                                                                                                                                                              843.00 958.00100

Rou  h  Emerald
1,21,073.27

i,19,07   .

Fab:cs                                                                                                                                                                                                    5,866.50Glassesdents2,15,736.86
1,30,167.cO

2,17,142.00

PlasUn­ tic  molde    componallocab`e
I                                                                                          7,61,642.61

I

7,16,352.471283691.47

lTotal 11,05,1€2.24   I

Selment llabllltles 1,925.002,08,805.00

Shar= Ea sec:gtles                                                                                                                                                         2 , o4 , 1315:..:%

RouFab

:csme:aed               ts                                                                                                1#!::i:
10,105.001,67,008.001

5`na.Sat:`Cocma°b``e      c°mp°nen                                                                           I                                                                          4,oo,85o.57  I 9  46  333.91

Total                                                                                                                         I                                                                          7,65,Z85.70  I
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES  TO  THE  STANDALONE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS    FOR  THE  YEAR  ENDED  31ST MRCH  2024

CEthtiernDloved                                                                                                                                                                                                     I "upees ln ooo'S unless otherwise stated)

Shares 8. Secun.ties                                                                                            I II                                                                    (967.co)

Rough  EmeraldFabricsIPlasticmolded components

I                         ­,83,Z::.3:,
II

I                                                            1 o,266.ooI,,zo,o6Z.0o

5:;:::.9:
I

Un.allocable
50,134.00

Tote I                                                                                                            I                                                                  33;S°;77962.5¥                                     I 1,57,861.5633735756

Seconda      S     ment information:  ­

TheCompanydoesnothavesecondarysegmentdivistoninrespectofreportablesegments.

5  Cate.ori®s of FinFtnanclalassetsMeasuredatamoanclal  Instruments and Its falr value measurement 1AtM

Ase    cos                                                                                                                                       Sa      arc II

i   Trade receivablesij)Cashandcasheaui.valents

1'                                                   9 ;: :i: :i

s  at  March  31.  202310.62.80963

lil)  Loans
5. 751. 7523.903.609.527.00

Measured at Costi

(  )  Investment in subsidlan.es

¥:::¥estment in other Enti.tv                                                                                  ,I
9.527.0012.820.00I

11111111­
llIIllllllllllllllllliiiiiiii9.91.417.49

11,01.991.98

Flnanclal Ifabl«tlesMeasuredatamortl'sed cost
I                                                           As  at  March  31.  ZOZ4

I IA

(i)   Borrowinqs(tl)Otherfinanctal  liabiLlties(1.ii)TradeandotherDavabtes

Illllllllllllllllliiiii,,,,,,,,ii

s at March  31.  2023

44.530.3715.063.94
42.256.7919.03903

Total                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     6.10.172.02Thefai.I66976633
|_J6.4'J1.cO8.3776751

matuntles  of these assets and  |iab,.iities.                                                                                                                                                  O  approximate  their  carrying  amounts  due  to  the  short­term

ParticularsEXDd.t   .

For the year ended on31stMarch2024 For the year ended on31

en  1  ure in foreiqn currencvEarninq/Incomeinforeimcurrency

NN I

st  March  2023Nil

I Nil

37  Break­up Of payments made to statutory auditors  (inc`udln8  taxes) are disclosed  as under:

Particulars
For the year ended on31stMarchZOZ4 For the year ended on31stMarch20Z3

n resDect of statutorv audit
120  00

n respect of certification
37. 50

TOTAL
1 ZO.00 157. 50

Partlculars For the year ended on For the year ended on

3 1 st  March  Z024 31 st  M.rch  20Z3

Continaent Liabilities not oro`iided for:  ­                                                                                                                                                                                                            1

Search and Siezure conducted  under CGST/SGST Act:  . Unascertainable Unascertainable

On  6th  September  Z019,   a  search  has  been  conducted  under  provision  of  CGST/SGST  Act,  2017

wherein  the appropriate authorites had  seized  certain documents and freeze the bank accounts of

the  company.The  bank  accounts  were  subsequently  unfreezd  through  stay  order  of  High  Court  of

Punjab   and   Haryana    vide   interim   order   dated   10   February   2020.   The   matter  is   pending  for

adjudication.

Income  tax ADDeal:  ­ 1,916.26I 1,916.26

ln  the  mater Of addition  u/s 68  of the  Income tax Act,1961  for A.Y.  2017­18  vide order dated  28th

September  2022  passed  by  CIT  (Appea`s)  for  a  sum  of  Rs.  46.39  Lakhs.  The  Company  has  filed  an

Appeal  against such  order with  Hon.ble  Income Tax Appe`late Tribunal,  New  Delhl,  wriich ls pending

for disposal.I

Page 87



(Rupees in oOO's unless otherwise stated)

A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN   :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES  T0  THE  STANDALONE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS    FOR  THE  YEAR  ENDED  31ST MRCH  2024

39   Necessary dtsclosures as per requirements of Indian  accounting Standard  ­19 on  `Employee  Benefl.ts'  are made as follows:  ­

ln  respect of  'Gratuity Scheme':  ­

Amount  Recognised I.n  the Balance Sheet:  ­

Partlculars
Asat31stMarch2024 Asat31tM

Present Value of the obligation
171 . 639

§       arch202316524

Fair Value of PlFundedStatus an  Assets[SurpLus/ (Deficit)]
Nil Nil

(171. 64) 165  24ie      as     ervice    OstAsset/(Ilabillty)recogntsedin Balance Sheet
Nil

(.)N''

171.64 165.Z4

(ii)               Amount  Recognised in  statement of proftt a  Loss:  ­

Parttculars 11111111111111111111111­
For the year ended on31stMarch2024 For the year ended on31

Current SeiMce Cost

52.83

st  March  20Z37495

Interest CostExpectedReturn on  Pla    As

12 . 39 1 5 . 94nset
N'' N'lPast service costExpensetoberecognlzed ln profit and  loss

N'`l

1Nil

65.22 90.89

(1.ii)              Other comprehensive  (income)/  expenses  (Reameasurement)

PartlcularsC1`
For the year ended on31stMarch2024248.7158.83 For .he year ended on31stMarchZ023

umu at'vAtr'Ie unrecoqnized  actunal  /qam\/loss oDeninq.  B/F
103   Z1c  ua   a   (qain)/`oss.  ObliqationActuarial(qainl/loss­frh

145.50

Actuana`  fqain`/losTotalActuriallqain

om  c   anqes in financial  assumDtlonss­Planassetsl/loss

Cumulatlve Total Actuar`al (catnt/ loss.  C/F 58.83 145.50

307.54 248.71

(iv)                Principa`  Actuanal Assumptions:  ­

Methrid of ValuationDiscountingRate
I           Project  lJnitrreditMethod750%PA Project  Unit Credit Method7.50%PerAnnum

Salary Growth  Rate
er    nnum500%PerAnnum

500P
Mortal''ty

lAIM 2012.14

er AnnumlALM2012­14

Withdrawat Rate
5.00%  Per Annum 5.00%  Per Annum

40  Ratlo Anolysis and Its components

S.No, Partlculars 31st  March  ZOZ4 31st  March  ZOZ3 % change from  March  }1,  ZOZ3toI.

1 Current ratio 1 .,44 1.35 7.02%

Z Det)t­  Equity  Ratio 0.13 0.13 4.Z3%

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.50 5.69 ­73.67%

4 Return on  Equity Ratio (1n %) 0.73% 3.96% ­81 . 52%

5 nventory Turnover Ratio 5.47 8.71 ­37.19%

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 0.08 0.25 ­66.39%

7 Trade  Payable Turnover Ratio 0.1Z 0.31
­60.99%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio 0.27 0.79 •65.40%

9 Net Profit Ratio  (in %) 2.91% 4.27% ­ 3 1 . 78%

10 Return on  Capi.tal  Employed  (in %)
­0.74% 0.53% 240.50%

11 Return  on  Investment  (in %) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

S.  No. Particular Variance Reasons of variance Of more than  2596

1 Det)t Service Covera8e Ratio Decrease Due to decrease in the eamings available.

2 Return on  Equlty Ratio  (jn 9/o) Decrease Due to increase in profit after tax is proportionately more than the increase in total equity.

3 Inventory Turnover Ratio Decrease Decrease in the revenue from operation for the year.

3 Trade Recelveble Turnover Ratio Decrease Due to Decrease in the revenue from operation for the year.

4 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Decrease Due to Decrease in the revenue from operatton for the year.

5 Net Capltal Turnover Ratio Decrease Due to Decrease in reveiiue from operations.

6 Return on  Capital  Employed  (In  %) Decrease Due to decrease {n  Profit Before  Interest  ,  TaLx and  Exceptional  Items
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100Dlt983PLC016354

NOTEST0THESTANDALONEFINANCIALSTATEMENTSFORTHEYEARENDED31STMARCH2024

(Rupees  ln OOO's Llnless otherwise stated)

I     |OmponS.No ents of RatioRtl                                                                         |                                                                                                     March  Jl  tzo

1

dosCurrentiFTDebt.EquityRatto

|Current:u=t:rotorBorrowings

Denoml.nator                                         Numerator  s     D.Zn4om,     t Marcri  ]1st  ZOZ]

23

Current  Liabili.tl'es
10,18,162.41

na07,06,702.203,39,876.54r|             Numerato11,91,850.74r          Denomn ator8,85,313,32

equity)Finance cost +  princi

•pte repayment of

44,618.002835
42,491.85 3,37,357.56

Debt ServiceCoverR . Earnings availabte for debt

4

age    at'oReturnonEquity service (Net profit beforeexceptionalItemsataxexpense+depreciationaamortization+Finance,.i.O^St.+N:+nL::S_h.?p_e.rft_I.I.g`Netprofi.taftertax­ long  term  borrowings during  theperiod/yearII­..^.'...­:  .
.01 1 , 892 . 36 21, 559. 52 3,788.9611

5

Rat,o (in %)InventoryTurnover Exceptional itemsRevenuefromsales of Share capital  +  OpenClosi.ngEquityShareOtherEquity)/2]Av1
qyingOtherequity+Capital+Closing 2,474.93 3,38,617.05 to,320.05 2,60,918.10

6

RatioTrade Receivable
productsRevenue from operations

erase   nventory  I(opening  balance +ctosin8balance)/2]AveragetradereceivableI(Opening
85,013.8585 15,537.59 2,41,847.93 TJ .J 64 .99

7

Turnover RatioTradePayable

Revenue from operations

balance +  closing  baA nee)/2]
013.85 10,02,105.38 2,41,847.93 9,58,193.04

8

Turnover RatioNetCapital

Revenue from operations

verage trade payabalance+closingbaWorkincatt1C
I(Open,ngnee)/2] 85,013.85 6,93, 321.85 2,41,847.93 7,69,458.70

9

Turnover RatioNetProfitRatio  (in

Net profit after ta  ­

9      p   a   (   urrentasset­current'iabi\ities)R 85,013.85 3,11,460.21 2,41,847.93 3,06,537.42

10

%)Return  on  Capital

XExceptionalitemsProfitBeforett  t  T evenue from operations
2,474.93 85,013.85 10,320.05 2,41,847.93

11

Employed  (in  %)R

n  eres  ,   axaExceptionalitem Total  Equity +  Total  Debts  (inclLidingpreferenceshareliability)
(8,175.13) 1 1 , 05 ,162 . 24 6,758.68 12 , 83, 691.47

I

etum  on                          Investment(in%)II nterest Income on f`xed Current Investments +  Nan  current 12,347.00 9,527.00
deposits +  Profit on  sale of   Investments+Incomeofnvestment­{mpairmentonvalueofinvestment nvestments +  Fixed deposi.ts with  bank

41         Financial risk manaeement

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from  financlal instruments:

(i) Market risk

(a)  Interest  rate risk;

(ii) Credit risk and  ;

(in)  Liquidity risk

Rlsk management framework

The  Company's activities  expose it  to a  variety Of financial  risks,  including  market  risk  .  The Company's  pnmary  risk  management focus ts  to mlntm{ze  potential  adverse

effects   Of   risks   on   its   financial   performance.   The   Company's   risk   management   assessment   polides   and   processes   are   establtshed   to   identify   and   analyse   the

risks   faced   try   the Company,  to  set  appropriate  nsk  \imits  and  controls,  and  to  monitor such  risks  and  compliance  with  the  same.  Risk  assessment  and  management of

these policies and  pracesses are  reviewed  regularly to  roflect changes in  market conditions and the Conpany's activities.  The Board  Of Directors and the Audit Committee

are responsible for overseeing these policies ar`d processes.

(I)  Market  risk

Market  risk is the risk Of changes in the nrarket prices on account Of foreign exchaue rates, interest  rates and Commodity prices,  which shall affect the Conpany's income

or  the  value  Of  its  holdings  Of  its  financial  instruments  .  The  opysctlve  Of  market  rfek  manaselT`ent  is  to  n`anage  and  control  market  rick  exposure  within  acceptable

parameters,  while optimtsing the returns.

(al Interest rate rlslk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows Of a financial instrument will fluctuate because Of changes in market interest rates.  The

Company's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to borrowings from  banks and others.

Interest rate sensltMty ­variable rate Instruments

A reasonably possible change Of loo basis points ln interest rates at the reporting date would have increased  /(decreased) equlty   and   profit   or   loss   by   amounts

shown   below.   This   analysis   assuJr`es  that   all   other   variables,   in   particular,   foreign currency exchange rates,  renialn  constant.  This calculation  atso assumes

that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date.
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A F  ENTERPRISES LIMTED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES  TO  THE  STANDALONE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS    FOR  THE  YEAR  ENDED  31ST MARCH  Z024

p®rticuldLrsOnaccountofVariableRateonLoans and advances 9ivenOnaccountofVan.ablef`ateonborrowingsNet]mDactonDroflt.btllty

ror tno ycor en20aea i lst March24 Tor trio year enaera  j ist unrcn2023

100 bp lncr®.s®
1cO bpdew:reas® too bpIncrease

100 bp docreaso

302.82(445,30) (302.82'445.30 239.04(422.51) /239.04)42257

IdjJJi­ '142.49) 142.49 /183.53) 183.53

CreditnskisthenskoffinanciallosstothecompanyifacustomerorcounterpartytoafinanciallnstrumentfallstomeetltsContractualobllgatlonsandan.sespnm:I.pally

fromthecompany'sreceivablesfromcustomer.TheCompanyestablishesanallowancefordoubtfuldebts,impairementandexpectedcreditlossthatrepresenrsltestimate

an allowance tor doubtful debts,  lmpairment and expected credi.t loss   that represents I.ts esti.mate on epected cred" loss.

A.Trade reeelvables

TheCompany'sexposuretocreditrtsktsinfluencedmatnlybytheinchvidualchaTacansttcsofeachcustomer.Thedemographicsofthecustomer,ineludingthedefaultrtsk

of  the  I.ndustry  has  an  influelree  on  credit  n.sk  assessment.  Credit  nsk  managed  ttirough  credit  approvals  ,establlshing  credit  Hmts  and  conti.nuously  monitoring  the

creditwor thl.ness of custorrlers to which the Company grants credit terms ..n the normal coiirse of business.

However,thecompenydoesnotexpectanytossesfromnon.performancebythesecounter.partiesapartfromthosealreadygiveninfi.nancials,anddoesnothaveany

si.gnificant concentrati.on  of exposures.

8.  Cash and cash oqulv&Ients

TheCompanyholdscashandcashequivalentsw'thcreditworthybanksof{7387.68thousands.Thecredi.tworthinessofsuchbankeiseva`uatedbythemanagernentonan

on­going basis and is constdered to be good.

(ill)  Llquldlty r'§k

Liqun.dityn.skistheriskthattheCompanywiunotbeabletomeetitsfinanci.alobli8atlonsa§theybeeomedue.TtieCompanyhasbeentaki.ngmeasurestoensurethatthe

Company.scashf`owfrombusinessborrowingissufflcienttomeetthecashrequirementsfortheCompany'soperations.TheComi>anymanagingI.tsliqui.dityneedsby

monitoringforeeastedcash'nflowsandoutflouslndaytodaybusiness.Liquidityneedsaremonitorendonvanoustlmebands,onadaytodayandweektoweekbasi.s,as

veuasonthebaslsofarolling30daypro)ections.Netcashrequirementsarecomparedtoavaltableworkingcapitalfaci.lltl.esinordertodetermineheadroomorany

shortfalls.  Presently company's objeeti.ve is to  mamtaln sufficient cash to meet its operatfonat llquidity requirements.

The below table summaries the maturity profll® Of the Compeny's financtal  llab!l]ty

Partlculars
Carrytn8 amount |IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii­

As at March 31,2024OthfI Contractual cash outflowTotalIlvearorlessI1­2vcar         I        2­5                    I

er   inancia   liaOthercurrentli.ab blL'tlesill'ties 1.41.307. 52367880 1.41. 307. 52 I                                    171.16 I                 1.41­136.36

VeersIo.co >  5 yearsIo.oo

3.678.80 3.678.80 0.00 0.00 0.00

ParticularsAsatM.rch31,2023OtlrerfinaneiaLII.abilitl.esOthercurrent`labtlltles

Carrylnq amount
Total               19,039.03

Contractua I cas1yearorless h out'[ow1.2year

2.5 yearsa.00 >  5 ye.rs

19,039.03
4,224.61 14,814.42 OcO

92,958.44 92,958.44 9Z,958.44 0.00 0.00 0.00

4Z  The Company did  not have any long­ term contracts includi.ng derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

13  The  Company  has complied  vnth  number  of  layers  of  subsidi.aries  as  prescribed  under  Section  186(1 )  of  the  Companies  Act  read  with  Compani.es  (Restricti.on  on  number  of

layers)  Rules,  Z017.

44  The Company does not have transactions wlth the companies struck off under seetion 248 of Companies Act ,2013.

45  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceedlng has been Initiated ar pendlng agalnst the Company for holding any Benami property.

46  The Company does rrot have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with  ROC  beyond the statutory period.

47  The Company has not been declared w`tful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

48  The  Company  has  not  any  such  transaction  which  is   not  recorded  ln  the  books  of accounts  that  has  been  surrendered  or  disclosed  as  income  during  the  year  in  the  tax

assessments  under  the  Income Tax Act,1961  (such as,  search or  survey or any other  relevant provisions Of the  l":one Tax Act,1961).

49  There has been ro delay I.n transferring amourTts,  required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund  by the Company,

50  The financia` statements \vere approved for issue by tt`e Board of Dirc[tors on 29th day of May,  2024.

51   Previous year's figures have been  re­arranged or re­grouped wherever constder necessary.

52  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousands of rupees.

53   Plgures in  brackets indicate negative  (.)  figures.

Signed for the purpose of I.dentlficatlon

For S A8arwal  a Co.

Chartered Accountants

Flrm Regn.  No.  000808N

6tr •T|
CA S.N.  A8arwal

Partner

Membershlp  No.  012103

PAN : .  EETPS5130A
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Independent Auditor's Report

123,  Vinobapuri,  Lajpat Nagar ­11

New Delhi ­ 110 024

Phones :  Off.    : 29830625, 29838501

E­mail    :  sagarwall910@gmajl.com

To

The members of

AF ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of consolidated Financial Statements

Qua]if]ed Opinion

We   have   audited   the   accompanying   consolidated   financial   statements   of  AF   ENTERPRISES
LIMITED ("hereinafter referred to as the "Company") and its subsidiary ("company and its subsidiary

together referred to as group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, the
consolidated  statement  of profit  and  loss,  the  consolidated  statement  of changes  in  equity  and  the

consolidated  cash  flow  statement  for  the  year  then  ended,  and  notes  to  the  consolidated  financial

statements,  including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(hereinafter referred to as `1he consolidated flnancial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated

finzmc;\al stfateme;r[ts except for the possible effects  Of the matter described in the  `` Basis for Qualified

Opz.7zjo# "Sec/z.o72 o/oz" repor/gz.ve the information required by the Companies Acto 2013 ("the Act") in

the manner so required and gz.ve a frcce cr7!d/c}z.r w.ew give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the group as at

31 StMarch, 2024, and the consolidated net profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated

changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualifled Opinion

We  have  not   audited  the  financial  statements  Of  M/s.  Aunik  I.T.   Solutiorrs   Private  Limited  (``the

subsidiary '' ) included in the cons olidatedf inancial results of the group whose f inancial statemehis ref lect

total assets Of Rs. 237 3.7 lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenue Of Rs.1.17 lakhs and net cash ouiflow

Of Rs. 0.31  lakhs during the year ended on that date.

As ref;erred to in Note 6 Of the consolidated financial results, the Independent Auditors Of M/s Aunik IT
Private  Limited  ("the  subsidiary'')  have  given  a  Disclaimer  Of Opinion  on  the  separate financial

statements of M/s Aunik IT Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 vide their report dated

May 04, 2024. The basis i;or Disclaimer Of opinion described by the Independent Auditors Of M/s Aunik

IT Private Limited is as urider:

"i)  The  company has  shown a sum  Of Rs.  23,43,08,599  as  Trade  Receivable for which we have not

received any third­party conif iirmation. During the course Of our audit, we have not f round SUJ:flilcierlt audit

evidence  lo prove  the reliability Of these  recoveries These  trade receivables  are  outstandingf;or more

than 2 years. Also, the Company has not made any provision against these long outstanding.

ii)  The company has shown a sum Of Rs.  22,98,21,646/­as Trade Payable to Morpheus Care Limited,

for which we have not received any third­party corfirmation. During the course Of our audit we have not
found srffiicient audit evidence to prove the reliability Of his claim and company's ability to pay. These
trade payables are outstanding for more than two years. Further upon our verifiicationfrom MCA portal
we came to haow that the company. Morpheus Care Limited, is not filing their returns on MCA portal

from March 2020 onwards

iii) During the year under consideration the comparty has taken unsecured loan Of Rs 2,12,08,604/­from
Mr.   Sourabh Koolwal,  director  Of the company, in violation Of section 73(2)  Of The Companies Act,

2013. The said loan was given by the director out Of borrowed find which is violation Of section 73(2)
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Of The Companies Act, 2013

iv) As on March 2024, the losses Of the company accumulate to Rs 2.45 Crores and its net worth is fully

eroded. The comparry has also taken uusecured loans from director Of the company. The Companies

cur_rent liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs.1.73 crores. As per the management the company is
still a going concern entity because it is in process Of identifying new plans to improve the performance

Of the  company.  During the  course  Of our  audit  we  came  to  know  that  the  company  has  already
su_frendered its GST registration during the year. In absence Of. conclusive evidence about management

p[an:forimprovingthefinancialpositiJnOffhecompanyand;ouideringlargeliabilitiesoutsta]iaingas
c!_p  balance_  sheet  date  we  have  doubt  about  the  company's  ability  to  continue  as  a going  concern.

However the company has prepared its financial statements on  a going  concern  basis,  The financial

statements do not adequately disclose this matter..

v)  The  matters  as  stated in para  1  to  4  Of Basis  Of Disclaimer  Of opinion give  rise  to  the  material
uncertainties  as  regard possible material  adjustments  that may require  to  be made  to the values  Of
recorded assets and liabilities,   These matters indicate that a material uncertairty exists that may cast

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern

Considering the above, we are unable to determine and comment on the extent Of adiustments, if any,
that may be required to these Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31StMarch 2024 on
account Of inter­alia, lack Of sufficient audit evidences, doubt about the subsidiary's ability to continue
as going concern, and non­compliances with various provisions Of Companies Act, 2013.

Wre conducted  our audit  in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)  specified under section

143( 10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in

the  Auditor's  Responsibilities  for the  Audit of the  Consolidated  Financial  Statements  section  of our

report.  We are independent of the Company and its subsidiary in accordance with the Code of Ethics

issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions

of the  Companies  Act,  2013.  We  believe that the  audit evidence  we  have  obtained  is  sufflcient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key  audit  matters  are  those  matters  that,  in  our  professional  judgment,  were  of  most
significance  in  our  audit  of the  Consolidated    Financial  Statements  of the  current  period.

These  matters  were  addressed  in  the  context  of our audit  of the  Consolidated    Financial
Statements  as  a  whole,  and  in  forming  our  opinion  thereon,  and  we  do  not  provide  a

separate opinion  on  these  matters.  We  have determined the  matters described  hereunder
to be  key audit matters to  be communicated  in  our report

As on  31,03.2024 the company has a  liability of Rs 50  lakhs toward  rent payable in  respect

of  a  leased  property  attached  by  ED  due  to  proceeding  against  property  owner  i.e.  M/S
Horizon   Global   Limited   for  more  than   6   months  and  TDS   on   the  same  also   not  been

deducted  other than  that  our  opinion  on  the  Statement  is  not  modified  in  respect  of the
above  matter

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's  Report  including  Annexures  to  Board's  Report,  Business  Responsibility  Report,  Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not
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express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the  consolidated  financial  statements  or  our  knowledge  obtained  during the  course  of our  audit  or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities  of  Management  and  Those  Charged  with  Governance  for  the  Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated

changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiary in accordance with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under

section  133  of the  Act.  The  respective  Board  of Directors  of the  Company  and  its  Subsidiary  are

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act

for safeguarding the  assets of the  Company and  its Subsidiaries respectively,  and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities;  selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the company and

its subsidiary are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and of its Subsidiary to continue

as  a  going  concern,  disclosing,  as  applicable,  matters  related to  going  concern and  using  the  going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or its Subsidiary
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the company and its Subsidiary are responsible for overseeing the financial

reporting process of the Company and its Subsidiary respectively.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obj ectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,  and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements  can  arise  from  fraud  or  error  and  are  considered  material  if,  individually  or  in  the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As  part  of an  audit  in  accordance  with  the  SAs,  we  exercise  professional judgment  and  maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i)   Identify  and  assess  the  risks  of material  misstatement  of the  consolidated  financial  statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusiono forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.
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(ii)  Obtain  an  understanding  of the  internal  controls  relevant  to  the  audit  in  order  to  design  audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible  for  expressing  our  opinion  on  whether the  company  has  adequate  intemal  flnancial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iii) Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of accounting  policies  used  and. the  reasonableness  of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based  on  the  audit  evidence  obtained,  whether a material  uncertainty  exists related to  events  or

conditions  that  may  cast  significant  doubt  on the  ability  of the  Company  and  its  Subsidiary to
continue as a going concern.If we conclude that a material  uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw  attention  in  our  auditor's  report  to  the  related  disclosures  in  the  consolidated  financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,  future events or
conditions may cause the Company or its Subsidiary to cease to continue as a going concern.

(v)  Evaluate the  overall  presentation,  structure  and  content  of the  consolidated  financial  statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statement, individually or in

aggregate,  makes  it  probable  that  the  economic  decision  of reasonable  knowledgeable  user  of the

consolidated financial statement may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and, (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included
in the consol idated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonable be thought to bear on our independence,  and where applicable, relevant
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and

are therefore the  key  audit matters.  We  describe these matters  in our auditor's report unless  law or

regulation   precludes   public   disclosure   about   the   matter   or   when,   or   when   in   extremely   rare

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.   As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Section 143 ( 11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement
on  the  matters  specified  in  paragraphs  3  and  4  of the  Order,  to  the  extent  applicable  on  the
consolidated financial statements.

2.   As required by Section  143(3) of the Act, we report that:

al.    Except for the matters described in the "Basis Of Qualified Opinion"  section Of this report_, we
have  sought  and  obtained  all  the  information  and  explanations  which  to  the  best  of our
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knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b.    In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of

those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c.    The  consolidated  balance  sheet,  the  consolidated  statement  of profit  and  loss,  consolidated

statement of changes in equity, and the consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

d.    ETcept I :or the matters described in the "Basis Of Qualif ted Opinion" section Of this report,tw:e

aforesaid  consolidated  financial  statements  comply  with  the  Indian  accounting  standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e.    On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company and its

subsidiary as on 31S'March, 2024 taken on record by the board of directors of the company and

on the basis of report issued by the auditors of subsidiary, none of the directors of the Company

and its Subsidiary is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.     With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report  in  Annexure­B.  Our  report  expresses  an  urmodified  opinion  on the  adequacy  and
operating effectiveness of the Company' s internal flnancial controls over financial reporting.

9.    With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and on the basis of report

issued by the statutory auditors of the subsidiary and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us:

i.          The  consolidated  financial  statements  have  disclosed  the  impact,  if  any  of  pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the group in its consolidated financial

statements O{ote no. 36).

ii.        The group did not have any long­term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.         There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by group.

iv.         (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned invested

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company    to    or    in   any    other    person(s)    or   entity(s),    including    foreign   entities

("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the  Intermediary  shall,  whether,  directly  or indirectly  lend  or invest in  other persons  or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries")  or provide  any  guarantee,  security  or the  like  on behalf of the  Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(b)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company

from  any  person(s)  or  entity(s),  including  foreign  entities  ("Funding  Parties"),  with the
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understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,

directly or indirectly,  lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c)  Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in

the  circumstances;  nothing  has  come  to  our  notice  that  caused  us  to  believe  that  the

representations refeiTed to in (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis­statement.

(d)  No dividend has been declared or paid by the company during the period covered by

this report in pursuant to Section  123 of the Companies Act 2013

(e)  Based  on  our  examination  which  included  test checks and information given to us,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which

did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility throughout the year for all

relevant transactions  recorded  in the respective   softwares,   hence   we   are   unable   to

comment on audit trail feature of the said software

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN:  000808N

9b .
S.N. Agarwal

(Partner)
M.  No.   :   012103

place:    New  Delhi

Date:    29.05.2024

UDIN:  24012103BKDHNV5060
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``Annexure A" to the IhdeDendeht Auditors' Report

(Referred  to   in   paragraph   1   under  the   heading   `Report  on   Other   Legal   &
Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even date to the Consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024)

We  have  qualified  the  information  required  in  sub­clauses  (iii),  (iv),  (vii),  (ix)  of para  3  of

the  Companies  Auditor  Report  Order  (CARO),   2020  in   our  report  of  separate  financial

statements of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March

31,  2024  as  included  in  the consolidated financial  statements

In  our opinion  and  According to the  information  and  explanations given  to  us, the auditors

of  subsidiary  i.e.   M/s  Aunik  IT  Solutions  Private   Limited,   have  qualified  the  information

required  in  sub­  clauses  (ii)(a),  (v)  and  (xix)  of  para  3  of the  Companies  Auditor  Report

Order  (CARO),   2020  in  their  report  of  separate  standalone  financial  statements  of  the

subsidiary as  included  in  the consolidated financial  statements

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:  000808N

Place:    New  Delhi

Date:  29.05.2024

UDIN:   24012103BKDHNV5060

S.N. Agarwal

(Partner)
M.  No.   :  012103
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==Annexure a" to the IndeDendent Auditors' ReDort

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of the independent audjtor's report of even date on
the Consolidated  financial statements  of the company for the year ended March
31, 2024.)
Report on  the  Internal  Financial  Controls  under Clause  (i)  of Sub­section  3  of Section  143

of the Companies Act,  2013  (``the Act'').

We  have audited  the  internal  financial  controls over financial  reporting  of A F Enterprises

Limited   (``the   Company")   as   of  March   31,   2024   in   conjunction   with   our  audit  of  the

Consolidated   financial  statements of the Company for the year ended  on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The  Board  of  Directors  of the  Company  are  responsible  for  establishing  and  maintaining

internal  financial   controls  based  on  the  internal  control  over  financial   reporting  criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the ``Guidance  Note on  Audit of Internal  Financial  Controls Over Financial  Reporting" (the
``Guidance  Note'')  issued  by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India  (``ICAI''). These

responsibilities  include  the  design,  implementation  and  maintenance  of adequate  internal

financial   controls  that  were   operating   effectively  for  ensuring   the  orderly  and   efficient

conduct  of its  business,  including  adherence to  company's  policies,  the  safeguarding  of its

assets,  the  prevention  and  detection  of frauds and  errors,  the  accuracy and  completeness

of the  accounting  records,  and  the  timely  preparation  of  reliable  financial  information,  as

required  under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility  is to express an  opinion  on  the  Company's internal financial controls over

financial   reporting   based  on   our  audit.   We  conducted  our  audit  in  accordance  with  the

Gui.dance   Note   on   Audit   of   Internal   Financial   Controls   Over   Financial   Reporting   (the
`Guidance  Note')  and  the  Standards  on  Auditing,  to  the  extent  applicable  to  an  audit  of

internal  financial  controls,  both  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered  Accountants  of India

and  deemed  to  be  prescribed  under section  143(10)  of the Act to the extent applicable to

an   audit  of  internal   financial   controls   both   applicable   to   an   audit  of  Internal   Financial

Controls   and,   both   issued   by   the   Institute   of  Chartered   Accountants  of  India.   Those

Standards  and  the  Guidance  Note  require  that  we  comply  with  ethical  requirements  and

plan and  perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial   controls   over  financial   reporting   was  established   and   maintained   and   if  such

controls operated  effectively  in  all  material  respects.

Our audit  involves  performing  procedures  to  obtain  audit  evidence  about the  adequacy of

the    internal    financial    controls    system    over   financial    reporting    and    their   operating

effectiveness.   Our   audit   of   internal   financial   controls   over  financial   reporting   included

obtaining  an  understanding  of internal  financial  controls over financial  reporting,  assessing

the  risk  that  a   material   weakness   exists,   and   testing   and   evaluating   the  design   and

operating  effectiveness  of  internal  control   based  on  the  assessed   risk.  The  procedures

selected   depend  on   the  auditors'  judgement,   including  the  assessment  of  the   risks  of

material  misstatement of the Consolidated   financial  statements ,  whether due to fraud  or

error.
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a   basis  for  our  audit  oplnion   on  the  Company's  internal  financjal  controls  system  over

financial  reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A  company's  Internal  financial  control  over  financial   reporting   is  a   process  deslgned  to

provide   reasonable   assurance   regarding   the   reljabjlity   of   financial   reporting   and   the

preparation  of Consolidated   financial statements  for external purposes in accordance with

generally   accepted   accounting   principles.   A   company's   internal   financial   control   over
financial    reporting    Includes   those    poljcjes   and    procedures   that    (1)    pertain    to   the

maintenance   of   records   that,   in   reasonable   deta„   accurately   and   fairly   reflect   the

transactions   and   dispositions   of  the   assets   of  the   Company;   (2)   provide   reasonable

assurance    that    transactions    are    recorded    as    necessary   to    permit    preparation    of

Consolidated     f[nancial   statements     in   accordance  with   generally  accepted   accounting

principles,  and  that  receipts  and  expenditures  of  the  Company  are  being  made  only  jn
accordance  with  authorjsations  of  management  and  Directors  of  the  Company;  and  (3)

provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding  prevention  or  timely  detection  of  unauthorised
acquisition,  use,  or  disposition  of the  Company's  assets  that  could  have  a  material  effect

on the Consolidated   financial  statements  .

Inherent Ljmitatjons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because  of  the  inherent  limitations  of  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting,

includingthepossibilityofcollusionorimpropermanagementoverrideof controls,material

misstatements  due  to  error or fraud  may  occur and  not  be  detected.  Also,  pro].ections  of

any  evaluation  of the  Internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  to  future  periods

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate  because  of  changes  in  conditions,  or  that  the  degree  of  compliance  with  the

policies or procedures  may deteriorate.

Opinion

In  our  opinion,  the  Company  has,  in  all  material  respects,  an  adequate  internal  financial

controls  system  over financial  reporting  and  such  internal  financial  controls  over financial

reporting  were  operating  effectively  as  at  March  31,  2024,  based  on  the  internal  control

over  financial   reporting   criteria   established   by  the   Company   considering   the   essential

components  of  internal  control  stated  in  the  Guidance  Note  on  Audit  of  Internal  Financial

Controls Over Financial  Reporting  issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place:    New  Delhi

Date:  29.05.2024

UDIN:   24012103BKDHNV5060

For S, Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:  000808N

frA:arvai
(Partner)

M.  No.   :  012103
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

CONSOLIDATED  BALANCE SHEET AS AT  31ST MRCH  2024

As at                                                                          As at

Notes                                              31st March 2024                                                   31st March 2023

ASSETS

Nan­ current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment

Goodwill

Financial assets

Loans

Other non current assets

Cunent Assets

Inventories

Firrancial assets

Trade reeivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other ourrent assets

Total

EQullY AND LIABILITIES

Eautw

Equity share capital

Other equity

Nor Controlling  Interest

Liabilities

Nan­ current liab]uties

Financial  liabilities

Borrowings

Other financial  liabj\ities

Provisions

Deferred tax Liabilities  (net)

Current liabilities

Financial  LiabilitiesT­
Outstanding   dues   to    miaro    enterprises   and

small enterprises

Outstanding  dues  of  creditors  other  than  micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial \iabilities

Other current  liabilities

Provistous

Current tax liabitities  (net)

Total

Notes to the financial statements

6

7

8

9

10

13

14

15

16

17

1­50

The accompanying notes are an  integral  part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S Agarwal a Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm  Regn.  No.  000808N

GAS.N.Agarwal     a+
Partner

Membershi.p  No.  012103

UDIN:

Faridabad,  the 29th day of May 2024

41,948.95

2,820.00

16,566.98

30,281.67

2,568.22

15,314.42

11, 75,709. 74

7, 531. 73

54,059.18

13,46,800.89

1,41,136.36

1, 92, 219.65

(901. 80)

66,407.98

10,612.53

171.17

940.49

645.63

8,39,348.04

4,451,42

90,41Z.24

0.47

1,356.71

13,46,800.89

­0.00

ForAFENTERPRjsESLIMITED

­­,:­­`:;­;:

DIRECTOR

Abhishek Singh

Director  ft  CFO

DIN:  03603706

53,004.33

16,566.98

23,503.60

6,156.52

15,810.86

1 Z,97,118.Z2

5,9Z6.87

400.00

1,07,947.17

15, 26,434. 57

1,41,136. 36

1,90,369.98

(868.58)

55,125,16

14,814.42

164.74

1,Z81.39

720.84

10,05, 59Z.41

4,224.61

1,02,214.65

0.50

11,658.09

15,26,434. 57

Company Secretary

PAN:­EETPS5130A

(Amt. in 000's)
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF  PROFIT AND  LOSS  FOR THE YEAR  ENDED  ON  31ST MRCH  2024

For the year ended on For the year ended on

REVENUE

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total revenue (I)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of stock in trade

Changes in  inventories of stock in trade

Operating costs

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses  (11)

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (I.11)

Excepti.onal 1.terns

Profit/ (loss) before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

MT tax
Deferred tax

Profit/ (loss) after tax (Ill)

31st.March  2024.                                                 31st March  2023

16.2

OTHER  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME

A.    (i)    Items that will  not be reclassified  to  profit or toss

(ii)   Income tax relating to items that wiu  not  be reclassified
8.    (i)    Items that will  be reclassified to  profit or  loss

(ii)   Income tax relating to items that wiu  be  reclassified  to

Total Other Comprehensive Income (lv)

Total Comprehensive Income (Ill+lv)

Net Profit attrlbutable to:  ­

a) Owners of the parent

b)  Non controlling interest

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:  ­

a) Owners of the parent

b) Non controlling interest

Total Comprehensive Income attrlbutable to:  ­

a) Owners of the parent

b)  Non controlling interest

Earning per equity share (EPS)

[nominal  value of share  Rs.10]

Basic  (in  Rs.)

Diluted  (in  Rs.)

Weiglited Average No.  of Equity Shares

Weighted Average No.  of Dilutlve Equity Shares

Notes to the financial statements 1­50

85,013.85

10,073.87

95,087.72

38,450,32

5,184.20

165.25

8,850.78

3,229.83

1,835.26

11,11 Z.83

37,064.31

1,05,892. 78

(10,805.06)

10,000.00

1,816.42

1,805.63

(33.23)

44.02

1,849.65

(33.23)

0.13

0.13

1,41,13,636.00

1,41,13,636.00

2,42,867.93

54,279.45

2,97,147.38

76,075.45

1,49,972.18

718.80

9, 561.13

19,051.20

Z,611.56

1Z,544.99

30,9Z1.64

3,01,456.95

(4,309.57)
13,075.00

8,765.43

(6,764.20)

1,403.35

14,1 Z6. 28

14,235.16

14,671.15

(544.87)

108.88

14'780.03

(544.87)

1.07

0.77

1,32,39,115

1,8Z,39,115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.ForA F ENTERPRISES LIMITED            ForA F ENTERPRI

As per our report of even date

For S Agarwal a Co.

Chartered Accountants

F,.rmRegn.No.ooogfi*

CA S.N.  Agarwal

Partner

Membership  No.  012103

UDIN:

i:­I:­6,in
Abhishek Singh

Director a CFO

DIN:  03603706

OR

Company Secretary

PAN:­EETPS5130A

S LIMITED

(Amt. in 000's)
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A F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

CONSOLIDATED  CASH  FLOW STATEMENT  FOR THE  YEAR  ENDED  ON  31ST MRCH  Z024

For the year e.nded on

31st March  Z024

For the year ended on

31st March  Z023

CASH  FLOW  FROM  OPERATING  ACTIVITIES

Net profit/  (loss) before tax and after

extra­ordinary items

Adiustments for items:  ­

Derecognition  Of financial  liability

Foreign  exchange fluctuation  loss/  (gain)

Loss/Profit on sale Of  property,  plant  a equipment

Interest on  tease  liability

Interest  paid

Interest paid on advance tax

Depreciation on Property,  plant a equipment

Provision for gratuity

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Working capital adiustments:  ­

(Increase)/  decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/  decrease in  Inventories

(Increase)/  decrease in Other financia\ assets

(Increase)/  decrease in Other assets

Increase/  (decrease)  in  Current Assets

Increase/  (decrease) in Trade payables

Increase/  (decrease)  in  other current  Liabilities

(Increase)/  decrease in  Other financial  Liabilities

Increase/  (decrease) in Other  liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

cAsii  FLOw  FROM  INVESTING  ACTivmEs

Sale/  (Purchase) Of  Property,  plant  a  equipment

Sale/  (Purchase) of  Investment

Loans (given )/recovered

l`let cash flow from investing actMties  (8)

CAsll  FLOW  FROM  FINANCING  ACTIVITIES

Proceeds From  Issue Of equity Share Capital

Proceeds  From  ls5ue Of Share Warrants

Interest paid

Net proceeds from borrowings

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net cash flow during the year (A +  a  + C)

Add:  Opening cash  and  cash equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on  hand

Balances with  banks in current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)

The accompanying  notes are an  integral  part Of the financial statements.

As per ciur repot.t of even  date

For S Agarwal a Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm  Regn.  No.  000808N

en ­CAS.N.AgarwaL

Partner

Membership  No.  012103

UDIN:

(957.32)

(9,Z76.06)

1,692.36

142.90

(4.08)

11,112.83

65.22

2,775.85

1,22,841.07

668.62

4,304.90

52,558.24

(1,66,,074.00)

(9,156.20)

(5,667.43)

(2,322.54)

(71.50)

(208.02)

(279.52)

(57.46)

(2,820.00)

(6,378.07)

(9,255.53)

(142.90)

11,282 . 82

11.139.91

1,604.86

5,926.87

7,531.73

3,335.09

4,196.64

7, 531. 73

ForA F ENTERPRISES LIMITED

i  |} .  EL

Abhishek Singh

Director  E[  CFO

DIN:  03603706

OR

8,765.44

(53,676.24)

1,707.20

904.37

9.63

12,545.00

(419.73)

(30,164.33)

(1,17, 799.95)

24,008.46

(5,086.89)

51,074.89

(17,,15&.08)

8,345.41

1 '920.67

(68,737.32)

(1, 53, 597.14)

210.18

(1,53,386.96)

(3,041.01 )

19,044.93

16,003.92

16,ZOO.00

1,Z6'250.00

(904.37)

(9,950.65)

1, 31, 594. 99

(5,788.05)

11,714.9Z

5,926.87

3,507.03

Z,419.84

5,9Z6.87

Cp.in`pa,py S\qc`r€ta,t*  f.  ' T\ ,: 'f;i,`::{Y

PAN:­EETPS5130A

(Amt. in 000's)
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A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :  L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES  TO  THE  CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  FOR THE  YEAR  ENDED  31 ST  MARCH  2024

1   Corporate Information:

A  F  ENTERPRISES  UMITED  (CIN  L18100DL1983PLC016354)  was  incorporated  on  August  18th,1983  under  the  Companies  Act,1956  with  the  Registrar  of

Companies  AF  Enterprises  Limited  (the  Company)  is  engaged  in  the  business  Of  manufacture  and  trading  of  plastic  and  related  products  apart  from

tradl.ng in  other goods such  as fabric,  emerald,  glasses,  etc.  The Company is  listed  on  Bombay Stock Exchange  (BSE)  [Script code:  AFEL].

2  SIgniftcant Accountlng Pollctes:

(a)  Statement of Compllance wlth  lnd AS:

The  Consolidated  financial  statements  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  the  Indian  Accounting  Standards  (lnd  AS)  specified  under section

133  of  the  Compenies  Act,   2013,   read  wi.th   Rule  3  of  the  Companies   (Indian  Accounting  Standards)   Rules,   2015.   The  Company  has  uniformly

applied the accounting pollcles during the periods presented.

The financial statements are presented  in  Indian  Rupees  (Rs. )   which  is also the functional currency of the compaiiy.

(b)  Basis for preparatlon of financlal statements:

The consolidated financial statements   have been  prepared in  historical cost  basis except for certain  financial instruments winch  are measured at

fair value  or  amortised  cost  at  the  end  which  is  generally  based  on  the  fair value  of constderation  given  ln  exchange for goods and  services.  All

assets  and  liabilltl.es  have  been  classified  as  current  and  nan­current  as  per  the  Company's  normal  operating  cycle.   Based  on  the  nature  of

services  rendered  to  customers  and  time  elapsed  between  deployment  of  resources  and  the  reali.sation  in  cashand  cash  equivalents  of  the

consideration for such services rendered,  the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

(c)  Princtples of Consolidation:

The  consolidated   financial  statements   comprise   of   the  holding   company  A   F   Enterprises   Llmited   and   all   I.ts   subsidi.an.es  and   associates  in

accordance  with  the  requirements  of  lnd  AS  110­Consolidated  Financial  Statements  ancl  lnd  AS  28  ­Investment  in  Associates  and  Joint  Ventures

(to the extent applicable).  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the fo[`owing bases:  .

(i)    The  financial  statements  of  the  hotdl`ng  Company  and  its  subsidiaries  are  combined  on  a  line  by  line  basis  by  adding  together  like  1.terns  of

assets,  liabillties,  equity,  incomes,  expenses and cash flows,  after fully eliminating intra­group balances and intra­group transactions.

(ii)    Profits or losses  resulting from  intra­group transactions that are  recognized in  assets,  such  as  Inventory and  Property,  Plant and Equipment,

are eLiminated ln  full.

(iii)   Goodwtll represents the difference between the Company's share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of acqulsttion at each point of

time of making the investment in the subsidiaries.

(iv)   The financial statements of the associate/  subsidiary companies  used in  the consolidation  are drawn  upto the same reporting  date as of the

Comi)any i.e.  year ended March  31,  2024.

(v)    The  Consolidated  Firtancial  Statemeiits  have  been  prepared  using  uniform  accounting  policies  for  like  transactions  and  other  events  in
similar circumstances.

(vi)   The  carrying  amount  of  the  parent's  investment  in  each  sllbsidiary  is  offset  (eliminated)  against  the  parent's  portion  of  equl.ty  in  each

subsidiary.

(vii)   The difference between  the proceeds  from  disposal of investment  in  subsidiaries and  the  carrying  amount of its assets  less  li.abi.lities as on

the  date  of  disposal  I.s  recognized  in  the  Consolidated  statement  of  profit  a  loss  being  the  profit  or  loss  on   disposal  of  investment  in

subsidiary.

(viii)  Investment  in  Associates  and  Joint  Ventures  has  been  accounted  under  the  Equity  Method  as  per  lnd  AS  Z8  ­  Investments  in  Associates  and

Joi.nt VentLires.

(lx)   The  Group  accounts  for  its  share  of  post­acc|uisition  changes  tn  net  assets  of  assocl.ates  and  joint  ventures,  after  eliminating  unreali.zed

profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its assoctates and joint ventures.

(x)    Non­Controwng  lnterest's share of profit  /  loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted  agalnst the income of the

Group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

(xi)   Non­Controlling  lnterest's share of net assets of consolidated  subsidiaries  is identifled  and  presented  in  the Consoli.dated  Balance Sheet.

Changes i.n  a  parent's ownership interest after control  ls obtained that do not  result tn  a  change ln  control of the subsidiary are accounted  for as

eqLiity  transactions.   The  carrying  amount  of  the  non­controlling  interest  is  adjusted  to  reflect  the  change  in  the  non­  control`ing  lnterest's

ownership interest  tn  the  subsidiary.  Any  difference  between  the  amount  by which  the  nan­controlling  interest I.s  adjusted  and  the fair value  of

the consideration  paid or received is recognized ln equity and attributed to the parent's equity holders.

(d)  Use of  Estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financia` statements requires the management Of the compar`y to make estimates and assumpti.ons that affect the

reported amounts  of assets and  l]abllltles  on  the  date  of flnancjal  statements,  disclasure  of contlnsent  llabl`1tles  as  at  the  date  of the  financta`

statements,  and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reported period.  Estimates and underlying assumptlons are reviewed on

an ongoing basis.  Revisl.ons to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised.

(e)   Significant Management judgement ln applylng accounting estimates:

(i)  Income taxes:

Significant  judgments  are  involved  I.n  determining  the  provision  for  income  taxes,   I.ncluding  amount  expected  to  be  pal.d/recovered  for

uncertain tar positions.

(li)  lmDairment of investments:

The  carrying  value  of  investments  is  reviewed  at  cost  annually,  or  more  frequently  whenever,  there  is  indication  for  i.mpalrment.   If  the

recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,  the impairment loss is accounted for.

(iji)   Provision:

Provtslons are recognized when the company has a present obligation  as a result of past event and it I.s probable that an outflow Of resources

will  be  requlred  to  settle  the  obli.gation,  in  respect of which  a  reliable estimate  can  be  made.  These  are  reviewed  at  each  balance  sheet

to reflect the current best esti.mates.

ferred Tax Assets:

deferred tax assets can  be recognised is based on an  assessment of the probabi`ity of the future taxable income against

x assets can be utilized.
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(f)  Property,  Plant and Equlpment:

Propertl.es,  Plant  a  Equipment are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation  and  net of impai.rment,  " any.  The actual  cost capltalized

includes  maten.al  cost,  freight,  installation  cost,  duties  and  taxes,  ellgl.ble  borrowing  costs  and  other  I.ncidental  expenses  incurred  during  the

constructi.On/insta`lati.On  stage.

The Company has  chosen  the cost model  for  recognition  and this  model is applied  to al[ class of assets.  After  recogni.tion  as an  asset,  an  item  of

PPE is cam.ed at its cost tess any accumulated depreci.ation and any accumulated impai.rment losses.

Deprecl.able amount of an  asset is the cost of an asset less i.ts estimated residual value.

Depreciation  on  Property,   Plant  and  Equipment,   including  assets  taken  on  lease,   other  than   freehold  land  is  charged  based  on  wn.tten  down

method  on  an esti.mated  useful  life as prescribed in  Schedule 11  to the­Companies Act,  2013.

Partlculars of Property,  Plant a EquipmentPlt&h` Useful life (in years)

an        Mac   inery  (Tools&  Dies)
15

Furmture a fixturesVh'1
10

e   'C es
8

Office  Equipment
5

Computer 3

An  item  Of  Property,  Plant  and  Equipment  is  derecognized  upon  disposal  or when  no  future  economie  benefits  are  expected  to  anse  fran  the

continued use of the asset.  Any gain or toss arising in the disposal ar TEtiTement Of an irm Of propeity, plant and eqimmment are detemined as a

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount Of the asset and is  recognised in the statement Of profit and loss.

At  the end  Of each  reporting  period,  the Conpany  reviews the carrying  amounts  Of tangible and  intangible assets  to  determine whether there is

any indication that those assets have suffered an impeirment loss.

®  Revenue recognition:

Revenue  is  recoentzed  when  the  control  over  the  goods  or  services  prorntsed  in  the  contract  are  transferred  to  the  customer.  The  arriount  of

revenue recognized depicts  the transfer of promised  goods and  services  to customers for an  amount  that  reflects  the consideratioi`  to with  the

Company is entitled to in exchange for the goocls or services.

(i)  Sate of roods:

Revenue  fran  sale  Of goods  is  recognised  wh`en  concrot  over  such  goods  have  been  transferred,  being when  the gcods  are delivered  to the

customers.  Delivery occurs when the products  have been  shipped or delivered  to the specifie  location as the case may be,  risks Of loss have

been transferred to the customers,  and either the customer has accepted the goods in  accordance with the sales contract or the acceptance

provisions have lapsed or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.  Revenue from these sales
is recognized basecl on the price specified in the contract.

(ti)  Dtvidend  and  interest income;

Dividend  income from  investments is  recognised when  the shareholders'  right to receive such amour" has been  establtshed  torovided that it

ts probable that the ecoiiomic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount Of income can  be measured  reliably).  Interest income from

a  financial  asset  is  recognised  when  it  ts  probable  that  the  economic  benefits  wiu  flow to  the  Company  and  the amount  Of income  can  be

measured reliably.

gilt  Other Income:

in respect Of other heads Of income in the Company's accounts the income shau be recognised on accrual basis.

(h)  Forelgn currency trunsacttons:

Foreign  ourrency  transactions  are  recorded  in  the  functional  currency,  dy  applythg  the  exchange  rate  between  the  functional  and  the  foreign

currency prevailing on date Of transaction.  Foreign  currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into the functtonal currency

using exchange rates prevailing on  the date Of Bawhce Sheet.  Exchange differences arising on  monetary items on  settlement or restatement as at

reporting date,  at rates different from those at which  they were initially recorded,  are recognized in  the Statement of Profit and  Loss in  the year

in whwh they arise.

(I)  Flnanclal Instruments:

W  PIFuncfa[ A5sets:  ­

Recognition  and  initial  measurement:  ­

Financial  assets  and  finenciat  liabiltties  are  tnitially  recognised  when  the  Company  becomes  a  party  to  the  contractual  provtstons  Of  the

financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction cost.

Subsecluent measurement:  ­

Equity  instrument  and  Mutua`  Fund:  ­Au  equtty  instrument  and  mutual  funds  within  scope  of  lndAS  109  are  measured  at  fair  value.  Equity

instrument  and  Mutua`  fund  which  are  held  for  trading  are  classified  as  at  fair  value  through  profit  a  loss  (FVTPL).   For  all  other  equity

instruments,  the Company decided to classify them  as  at fair value through  other comprehensive income  (FVTOcl).

Debt  instrument:  ­  A  .debt  instrument'  is  measured  at  the  aniortised  cost  if  both  the  following  conditions  are  met.  The  assets  are  held

#;a#ng:ig;¥gr#ttsae?##:::::::#`*trHjr#On+#onft%'##t#'t~;:::::::;;i:%#T#
measurement,  such  Financia( Assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methocl.

De.  recounition  of Financial Assets: ­

A  financial  asset  is  pnmarily  de.recognised  when  the  rights  to  recelve  cash   flows  from  the  asset  have  expired  or  the  Company  has

transferred its right to receive cash  flow from  the asset.

(fi)  Financial  Llabllltles:  ­

Recoanition  and  initial  measurement:  ­

All  financial  ttabilities  are  recognlsed  inttiauy  at  fair  value  and  transaction  cost  that  is  attiibutabte  to  the  acqulsition  Of  the  financial

liabiLmes  is also adjusted.  Financial  llablllties are classified  as  amortised  cost.

Subscauent measurement:  ­

Subsequent to initfal recognition , these tiabitities are measured at arnortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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De­recoqni.tion  of Financial  liabl'lities:  ­

A  financial  li.abilityis  derecogni.zed  when  the obligation  under the `i.ability Js  discharged  or cancelled  or expi.res.  Consequently,  wn.te back of

unsettled credit balances is done on c\osure of the concerned project or earlier based on the previous expen.ence of management and actual

facts of each case and  recogni.zed in other operati.ng revenues.

Further,  when  an  exi.sting  fi.nanclal  li.ability  fs  replaced  by  another  from  the  same  lender  on  substanti.ally  di.fferent  terms,  or  the  terms  of

existing  li.abillty  are  substantially  modifled,  such  an  exchange  or  modificatlon  is  treated  as  the  de­recognlti.on  of  the  origi.nal  ti.abi.lity  and

the recognition of a new liabiljty.  The di.fference in the respectl.ve carryi.ng amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profi.t and Loss.

Offsettf nq of fin,ancial instrumentL

Financial  Assets  and  Financial  Liabilities  are  offset  and  the  net  amount  is  reported  in  the  Balance  Sheet  if  there  15  currently  enforceable

lega(  right  to offset  the  recognlzetl  amounts  and  there IS  an  intantton  to  §ettle on  net basis,  to  realize  the assets  and  settle the  liabllittes

simultaneously.

(j)  lmpairment of Flnanclal Assets

(i)  EQuity instruments,  Debt  Instruments and Mutual  Fund:  ­

ln  accordance with  lnd  AS  109,  the  Company applies  Expected  Credit  Loss  (ECL)  model  for  measurement  and  recogniti.on  Of impal.rment  loss

for  financial  assets.  Expected  Credit  Loss  is  the difference  between  all  contractual  cash  flows  that are  due to  the Compariy  in  accordance

wi.th the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

(ii)  Other  Financial Assets:I

The  Conxpany  determims  whether  there has  been  a  significant  increase  in  the  credit  risk  since  inttial  recogrtition  and  if  credit  rick has

increased s]gnificantty,  impairment  toss is  provided.

(k)  Inventories

lnveiitorles  (other than quoted shares andsecurities) are valued at cost or net realisable value,  whichever ls lower.  Cost is determi.ned on  FIF0 and

incllides  cost  of  purchase  and  other  costs  incurred  ln  bringing  inventories  to  thei.r  present  locatlon  and  condi.tion.   Net  reali.sable  value  is  the

estimated selling price in the ordJnary course of busl.ness,  less esti'mated costs of completlon and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(I)  Cash a Cash equtvalents

Cash  and cash  equivalents  in  the  Balance Sheet comprise of cash  at bank and  on  hand  and  short  term  deposits with  an  on.ginal maturity of three

months or less,  whi.ch  are subject to an  tnsigntficant risk of changes  I.n  value.

(in)  Taxatlon

Tax  expense  recogm.sed  I.n  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  comprises  of  ciirrent  tax  and  deferred  tax.  Current  tax  I.s  measured  at  the  amount

expected  to  be  paid/recovered  from  the  tax  authoriti.es,   based  on  estimated  tax  liability  computed  after  taking  credit  for  allowances  and

exemption  in accordance with  Income Tax Act,1961.  Current and  deferred tax are  recogr`ised in  Statement of  Profit and  Loss,  except when  they

relate to Items that are reco8nised in  other comprehensive income or dtrectly ln  equity,  in which  case,  the income taxes are recognlsed  ln other

comprehensive Income or directly in equity,  respectively.Advance taxes and provisions for current I.ncome taxes are presented 1.n  the statement of

financia` posttion after off­setting advance tax pald and income tax provision.

MI.nimum Alternate Tax  (MT)  credit  entitlement is  recognised  as an  asset  only when  and to the extent there is  convinci.ng evidence that normal

income tax will be paid during  the specified pen.od.  In  the year in which MAT credit  becomes  eligible to be recognised as an asset,  the said asset
jls  created  b.y. .way' of a  credit  to  tf`e  5tatemerlt  of  Prof­it  arid  Loss  ai­id  shoiv.n  as  ivIAT  creditTentitlement.  This  is  reviewed at cach  balance sheet

date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is wn.tten  down  to the extent it is reasonably certain that normal I.ncome tax will be pei.d

during the specified period.

Deferred tax ls recogntsed on  temporary differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and  liabilities and the corresponding tax bases

used  in computation of taxable profit under Income Tax Act,1961.

Deferred tax assets and llabllitles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in  the year when  the asset is reall.zed or the liabtll.ty is

settled,  based on  tax rates  (and tax laws) that have been enacted.  Deferred tax relati.ng to items  recognised  outslde Statement of Profit and  Loss

ts recognised outside Statement of Profit and  Loss  (either in  other comprehensive income or in equity).

(n)  Earnings per share:

Basic  eaml.ngs/  (loss)  per share are calciilated  by dividi.ng  the net  profit/  (lots)  for the period  attn.hiitahle to pqiiity sharpholdprs  by the weighted

average number of equity shares  outstanding  during the period.  The weighted  average number of equlty shares outstanding during the period are

adjusted  for  any  bonus  shares  issued  during  the  period  and  also  after  the  Balance  Sheet  date  but  before  the  date  the  consolidated  financiat

statements are approved by the Board of Directors.

F.or  the  purpose of calculating  diluted earnings/  (loss)  per share,  the  net profit/  (loss) for  the  period  attributable to equity shareholders  and the

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all potentialty di`utlve equity shares.

The  number  of  equity  shares  and  potentially  dilutive  equity  shares  are  adjusted  for  bonus  shares  as  appropriate.  The  dilutl.ve  potentl.al  equity

shares are adjusted for the proceeds  receivable,  had the shares  been  issued at fair value.  Dilutive potential equity  shares  are deemed converted

as of the beginning of the peried.  unless issued at a  later date.

(o)  Proviston,  Contlngent  Llabmties and Contingent Assets:

A provi5ion is  recognised when the ccmpeny has a present ob`igafron  as a result Of past event and it is probable that an  outflow Of Te5ources witl

be  required  to  settle  the  obligation,  in  respect  of which  reliab`e  estimate  can  be  made.  If  the  effect  of  the  time  value  Of  money  {s  material,

provisions are dtscounted using a current pre.tax rate that reflects,  when appropriate,  the n.sks specific to the liability.  When discounti.ng is used,

the increase in the Provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Assets and  Contingent  Li.abilitl.es  are not  recognized  in  the   consolidated  financial statements.

(p)  Leases:

Mni.stry   Of   Corporate   Affairs    ("MCA")   through   Companies   (Indian   Accounting   Standards)   Amendment   Rules,    Z019   and   Companies   (Indian

Accounting  Standards)  Second  Amendment  Rules,  has  notified  lnd  AS  116  Leases which  replaces  the existing  lease standard,  lnd  AS  17  Leases  and

other interpretations.  Ind  AS  116  sets out the pn.nci.ples  for the  recognition,  measurement,  presentation  and  dlsclosure of  leases for both  lessees

and  lessors.  It introduces a single,  on­balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

2019  and  appli.ed  the  standard  to  i`ts  leases  using  theThe Company has adopted  lnd  AS  116,  effectt­ve  annual  reporti.ng  period begiinning Apn.`  1

retrospective approach  whereby  a  lessee applies the  new  standard from  the beginning  of the  current pen.od.  The  lessee  calculates  the

et and  lease

ording`y,  a lessee will not restate its prior perl.od fiinanclal informatlon under this approach.

liabi.li.ty  as  at  the  beginning  of the  current  pen.od  and  recognized  an  adjustment  in  equity  at the  beginni.ng  of  the current
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The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of lnd AS  116 Leases to short term  leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months

or less and  leases for which  the underlying asset is of low value.  The lease payments associated with  these leases are recogni.sed as an expense on

a straight­line basis over the lease term.

The Company recognises  right­of.use asset representlrig  Its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date.

The cost of the rightof.use asset measlired at inception  shall comprise of the amount of the Initial measurement of the lease liabllity adjusted for

any  lease  payments  made  at  or before  the  commencement  date  tess  any  lease  incenttves  received,  plus  any  Initial  direct  costs  I.ncurred  and  an

estimate of costs to be I.ncurred  by the lessee in  dlsmantling  and  removing  the underlying asset or restoring the underlying  asset or sl.te on whi.ch

it  is  located.  The  right­of­use  assets  are  subsequently  measured  at  cost  less  any  accumulated  depreciation,  accumulated  impai.rment  losses,  I.i

arl¥.  Trie righti]filse as3eti is depreciated  u§irlg \the­straight+jr)e iT.e€hod  f,­ciT,  the­co,Tmeiicenent date ci...er tLle sihorter of lease terrri  ot­u5eful

life of n.ght­of­use asset.

The Company  measures  the  lease  llablllty at  the present value of the lease payments that  are not pald  at the commencement  date of the  lease.

The  lease  Payments  are  discounted  using  the  Interest  rate  implicit  in  the  lease,  if  that  rate can  be  readlly  determined.  If  that  rate  Canrlot  be

readily determlned,  the Company uses incremental  borrowing rate.  For leases with  reasonably simllar characteristics,  the Company,  on a lease by

lease basis,  may adopt either the incremental  borrowing  rate specific to the lease or the incremental  borrowing  rate for the portfolio as a whole.

The  lease  lI.ability  is  subsequently  re­measured  by increasing  the carrying amount  to  reflect  interest  on  the  lease  li.ability,  reducing  the carrying

amount to reflect the lease payments made and  re­measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or tease modifications or to reflect

revised in­substance fixed  lease payments.

On  application  of  lnd  AS  116,  the  nature  of expenses  has  changed   to  depreciation  cost for  the  right­of­use  asset,  and  finance  cost  for  interest

acci ued on  lease liability in  place of lease rentals payme]lts.

(q)  Employee Benefits

(i)  Short­term  EmDlovee Benefits:  ­

Ltabili.ties  for short­term  employee  benefits  that are  expected  to  be  settled  wholly withln  12  months  after  the end  of the  pened  in  which

the  employees  render  the  related  service  are  recognized  in  respect  of employee's  services  up  to  the  end  of the  reporting  period  and  are

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the `iabilities are settled.

(li)  Post­EmDlovment Benefits:  ­

Defined  Contribution  Plans:   The  Company  has  defined  contn.button  plans  I.n   respect  Of  PF  a  Esl  which  are  accounted  for  as  and  when

contn.button payments are made.

Defined  Benefi.t Plans:  The Company has a gratuity scheme payable to employees as per the provI.sl.ons of the Payment of Gratuity Act,  1972.

The actuarial valuation of the \iabllity agaiiist Such sum  is made at the year end.
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3  ProDertv.  Dlant and eaulDment

Carr`,.1:r`93mc!.Jr.t:

Building  Premises  (ROU  Asset)

Plant a Mchinery

Furn{ture  a  fixtures

venicles

Office Equipment

Computers a  peripherals

Total

Cert or Deemed Cost :

Balance  as  at  31 st March  2022

Addittoms dumg the year

on acquisition Of subsidiary

Sale/  disposal  during the year

Balance as at 31 st March 20Z3

Additions during the year

on  acquisition Of subsidiary

Sale/  disposal  during the year

Balance as at 31 st March 2024

^ccumulatod DeDreciatlon :

Balance as at 31st March  2022

Charge for the year

on  acquts"on of substdtary

Adjustment for Sale/  disposal

Balarice as at 31st March 2023

Charge for the year

On  acquisition  of  subsidiary

Adjustment for Sale/  disposal

Balar.ce as at 31st March 2024

Carrvin& amount :

Balance asat 31st March 2a23

Balance as at 31 st March 2024

13,005.19

26,290.43

1,173. 93

545.14

171. 52

102. 74

ROU Asset                  peripherals                                                        fixtures                   Equi pment             ^hac hin®ry

3.1   All the above property,  plant  a equlpment are owned  by the company.

4  Loans :  nob­cLirront

Considered  rood  ­  unsecured

Loans  (at arnortised cost)

­  Others

­  Related  Parties

Less.  Expected Credit toss

4.1   Additional disclosure in  respect of nan current loans and  advances.:­

Particular

As at 3 1 st Ma rch ZOZ4 As at ) 1 st harch ZoZ3

Amount of Loin Percent..® of Amount of loan P.rcel`ta8e Of the
out5tindin8 the total loanandadvances outstandiri. total loan andadvalices

Loans and  advances  granted  to  promoters,  clirectors,  KMPs  and otr`er related  parties that Nil Nil Nil Nil

are  (a)  repayable on  demand;  or  (b)  without specifying  any terms or period of repayment
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5  Other non current .ssets

Security deposit

Advdwcc  [cL*  ai rd  TDs  (,`tei  ur Lii Ovisi.Oi I )

6  Inventories

Stock  in  tradj±

­  Quoted  Equ{ty  Instruments   (at  Fair Value Through  Profit  a  Loss  FVTPL)

•  Sunglasses

­  Others

Raw Materials

•  Plastic  moulded components

Finished  Goods

Plastic  products

7  Trade recalvables:  current

Considered good  ­  unsecured

7. 1  Trade recelvables Ageln8 schedule

I      (i)      UndisputedTradeReceivables.C        'd        d
Less than 6moBths`, 6 months .  1\,,eaJ'

I              1­2yenrs65,099.02
2­3  years More than 3`/care­ Tot,I

(,(,''1 I)1`)\

.     onsi   ere    goodUndlsputedTradeRecejvables:Considereddoubtfu`DisputedTradeReceivables:ConslcleredgoodDlsDutedTradeR.bl.C. 32,291.48 1  ,031  .  17 2, 37,179.11 8,40,108.95 11,75,709. 72

ecelva    es.     onsidered  doubtful

111111111111111111111111111_

Part'culars Outstandln8 from due a.t® of payment as on 31 5t IArch 2023

(i)       Undispu[eciTracie  Rereivabies.  Co      ..

Less than 6months 6  months  ­  1YJe,, 1 ­2 ye.rs 2.3 ye.rs dere than 3years Total

(ji)

.        msTuerecigouciUndisutedTdR. ''/ 'OZ , .w
`4,JJJ,. ro

2.84,­rd2.`r5 '457.12 I          8,09,7i6.20
' i2,97, i i8.22

('''1')

p              ra   e    eceivables.  Considered doubtfulD'utdT

(iv)

sp     e       radeReceivab`es  :  Consldered  goodDisutedTclR.

p              ra   e    ecelvables.  Considered  doubtful

8  C.sh .nd cash equlvalents

Cash Qn hand  (a& certified)

Balances wi.th  banks in current accounts

9   Loans:  cLirrent

Unsecured.  considered  QOQi!

Loan to body corporate

Advance to others

Loan to  related  party

Lee;  Expected Credl­t Loss

Asat

31st March  2023

osure  iii  respect of Current loans and advances:­

P,rtlcularLoansandadvancesrantedt

As at 31st ^harch 20Z4 As .t 31st M­rch  Z023

Amount Of loun
PercentA8e Oftheto'1

Amount Of loan
Percentage Of the

outst.ndlna ta    O,nandadvances
outstanding

total Ioun andadvances

g                 a  promoters,  director5,  KMPs and other related  partare(a)repayableondemand;or(b)withoutspeclfyi'nganytermsc)rperiodofrep s thatyment Nil Nil Nil N''l
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Asat

31st herch 2024

1,07,947.18

io.I   Balance  wlth  revenue autnorlties tncluaes a  sum  of Rs.1,70Z.3Z  thousands challanged  by the  GST Department  pursuant to search conducted on  6th  September 2019.

The  matter is pending for adjudicaticm.

10.2   Input  credi.t  under  GST  I.ncludes  a  sum  of  Rs.   29,481.10  thousands  challanged  by  the  CIST  Department  pursuant  to  search  conducted  on  6th  September  2019.  The

matter is pending  for adjudicatfon.

1 1   Equity share capital

Authorlzed shares

Equi.ty  shares  of Rs.   10 each

Issued, subecrlbed and fully paid­ up shares

Equity shares of  Rs.10 each  fully  Paid  up

1 1.1   Reco":lll®tlon of number of equtty sh.res and amount outstindlnB

Eqiiity Shares

At the beginning of the  period

Add:Converslon  of Share Warrants  (Note  11.2)

Add:  Svreat  Equi.ty  shares issued  (Note  11.3)

Tbtrf otitstandin. at the end' of the pchod

Mos.                           (Rs.  In  'OOO') Mos.                            (Rs.  In  'OOO.)

11.2  The  company  has  I.ssued  40,00,000  Share  warrants  at  an  I.ssue  price  of  Rs.18  each  as  per  terms  approved  by  shareholders  in  postal  ballot  held  on  5th  July  Z021.

Every  share  warrant  has  an  option  of  converslon  into  olie  equity  share  of  Rs.   10  each  to  be  exercised  by  the  warrantholder  wlthin  18  months  of  the  issue  by  the

Company.  Out of 40,00,CcO  share  warrants,  28,00,000  share  warrants were  converted  Into  the  equity  shares during  the  year ended  31st Wfarch  2022   and  remaini.ng

12,cO,000 share  warrants are converted  into equity shares jn  the fl.nancial year ended  31 st ^farch Z023.

11. 3  Terms and rights attached to equfty shares

The  company  has  issued  only  one  class  of  equity  shares  having  a  par  value  of  Rs.   10  per  share.   Each  holcler  of  ec|ulty  shares  ls  entitled  to  vote  per  share.  The

company  declares  and  pays  dlv]dend  if  any,  in  Indian  Rupees.  The  dividend  proposed  by  the  Board  of  Directors  is  subject  to  approval  of  the  shareho`ders  in  the

ensuing  Annual  General  Meeting.

In  the event  of  liquidation  of  the  corr`pany,  the  holders  of equtty shares  wiu  be entitted  to  receive  remainmg  asets  of  the  ccimpany,  after  distrlbution  of al[  the

preferential amount.  The distribution  will  be  in  proporticin to the  number of equity shares helcl by the shareholders.

11.4  Dot.lls Of sharoholders holding more than 5% shares ln th. company :

31st M.rch 2024                                          31st March  20Z3

As per recQrdi,  regi.sterg and other declaratrons received from  shareholders regarding beneficial Interest,  the above sharetiolding  represents bath  legal and

beneficial ownersrlip of shares.
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12  Other aqulty

gpital Reserxp

Opening  balance

Add/(less)  :  Changes during  the year

Closing  balance

Securltv Premlum  :

Opening balance

Add/(less)  :  On  Issue of equity  Shares

Closing  ba`ance

_Ret.ined carniTus :

Opening  balance

Acld/(less)  :  Profit/  (loss)  for the  year

Less:  Pre­  acquisitlon  profits of the subsidiary

Closing balance

Money recelved amlnst share warrants

Openlng balance

Add:  received during the year

Less:  conversion of warrant lnto equjty shares

Less:.  Share Forfi.eted

C`osing  balance

Falr V.I ue throurh Other ComDrehenslve I ncome

Remeasurement of Defined  Benefi't obli'qatio_n_

Openl.ng  balance

Add/(less)  :  Changes  durin3  the year  (net of tax)

Closing, balance

Total Other Equity

13  Borrowings (other than debt seciiritles)

From  Banks

Secured  loans:

Finance  lease  obligations  (Note  13.1 )

Less:  current  portion transfer to  other  financia`  `1ab"ities  (note  18)

From other Part(es

.U nsec ured  lojip=

From  others

14  Other flnancl&l  llabllltles ­nan current

Lease  Li.ability  (as  per  lnd  AS  1 16)

1 5  Provlsfon ­Non curr.nt

For Gratuity

16  Def®rred tax assets/Llabllltles   (net)

At the start of the year

(Charge)/ credit to  statement of profit and  loss and reserves  a surplus

At tlie cnd Of ye.r

1,281. 39

(340. 90`

940.49

2,648.12

(1,3d­7)+
1 ,zei ,3g

9nitlcant tlming differences that has resulted in  deferred tax assets are given  below. .

`0col*I..

Particula,i:                                                                                                                                                        I                               For the year ended on 3tst torch 2021

Property   plant and e   ui   me  t

OP®ntn8 Balance Reco8nlzed 1 nprofitandloss Reeo8n0 edln Clesl n8 Balartte

qpnLosses.did Z,660.07 (liz.50) 2,517.57

carne      orwar    underthe  lnc.omeTaxAct,1961

Provision For Gratuity
89. 73 (13.ZO) 14.81 01.34

OthersTot,I
(1,468.41  ) (200.02) (1,668.42)

I ,281. 39 (355.71) 1 4. 8 1 940.49

Particul,rs
For the v®ar .nded on 31st ^harch 2023

Openl n& B.I. nco Rceoantzed lnprofit.ndless RecogivOC edln Closlng BaJone

Property,  plant and equipment
2,655.51 4.56 Z  660.07

4(;atu,ty
1  1 . 30 41.81 36.62 89.73

rf=IA       a
Qthffl{  L`W  11

(18.69)2,648.12 (1,449.72)(1403.35)

3662
( 1,468.41 )128139­     'J+J]

se'.'`':".`RE
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I 7  Trade pay.bl®s:  current

Asat

::::::::::: :::: :: cmr:Cdr,°toer:t:tr::'ri;aann::cT: `::tnetreprr:r:Sse:i:°st: a'L; e'jterpr,sos                                                     " St 8:::3h6;Z5°£:

17.1Tr.dop.ychledueforp.yin.ntandth®a8elngschedule.sbelow:­

Particulars(i)MSME
Oiitstanding from due date Of payment as on 31

Less th.n  1Ye,r 1­2 Years 2.3 Years

st derc htorethan3Y®ars 2024   Total

645  63
\'1,' Others

31,445. 69 25  086  4Z 313  807  33

645.638,39,348.04

('1')(''v) Disputed  dues  :  MSMEIDisputeddues:others 4,69,cO8.60

17.1Addi.tionaldjsclosurerelatingtom'cro,smauandmedl.umenterprl.sescoveredunderMi.cro,Smauandifedl.umEnterprlsesDevelopment(.MSMED")Act,Z006:.

(a)  Pn.ncipal amourit remaining  unpa]d  at the end of the year

(b)  Interest due on  Principal amount remaining  unpa]d  at the end of the year

(c)  lnterest paid  !n  terms of sect(on  16 of the MSMED Act,  2006 during  the year

(d)  Interest accrued and  remaini`ng  unpaid  at the end of the year

(e)  Interest remaini.ng due and  payable referred to  in sectlon  23 of the USMED Act,  Z006

18  Other financlal  llabillties:  current

Current maturities of flnance  lease obligatlons  (refer note  13)

Lease  Liabllity  (as  per  lnd  AS  116)

19  Other current IIabmtles

Advance received  from  customers

TDS  Payable

outstanding  statutory Dues

TCS payable

EPF,  Esl  and  LWF  payable

CIther payables

As,t

31 st March  2024
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For the year ended on

31st Mrch 20Z4

24  Purchase of Stock ln trade

Fabrics

Rough emerald

Others

Shares a secur"es

Z5  Changes ln lnventorles

Opening  balance of stock  i'n trade

Closi.ng balance of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of stock in  trade

26  0peratlne Costs

Wages

Job work maten'als

Fuel a power expenses

Consiimab`es

Loading  a freight

Z7  Empleyee belrefiti expense

Director  Remunerati.on  (Basic  Salary)

Satarl.es and altowances

Employer contribution to PF

Employer contribution  to  ESIC

Staff Welfare

G ratuity expense

28  Flnunce cast

hterest on tease liability  (as per ind AS  116)

Interest to  banks

Interest to others

29  Cfty expelises

Advertisement expenses

Payment to statutory aud`tors  (Note  35)

Bank charges

Balance written off

Credit card charges

Bustriees prcimedon

Certi fication charges

Consoli.dated cha rges

Conveyance expenses

Donation

Electrici.ty and  malntenance expenses

Expected Credit Loss

Festiva I Expenses

Fittings

Frel`ght  8;  cartage

c]enera` expenses

Interest and  penalties

Labour welafare

legal  a professional charges

Mscellaneous expenses

^tembership  a  registration  fees

Of i lee experises

pnnting  a: statlonery

Professional a consultancy charges

Rent, rate a taxes

Repair a maintenance

Recrul.tment expenses

RTA expenses

ROC expenses

Sec urity charges

1,008. 59

(843.34)

165.25

1 , 627.19

(tt+±
718.80

Page 112



Service Charge

Sitting  fees

Software Renewal

Stamp  Papers

Telephone expense

Tender Fees

Tour a Travels

Vehicle running  a  maintenance

Workspace  Expenses(Mail)

30  Excepttomal item

Advertisement expenses

Capita`  Receipt  from  FOSL

A  F  ENTERPRISES  LIMITED

CIN  :   L18100DL1983PLC016354

NOTES TO  THE  CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  FOB  THE  YEAR  ENDED  31 ST MARCH  2024

52.08

104.00

28.35

I  13.29

70.66

854.14

88.08

34.44

30.1   Exceptlonal item of Rs.loo Lakhs  is Related to the compensation recetved for the   non.fulfi`lment of underwrlting commitments  related to the subscrlptlon of the ri.ghts lsgue.  The

underwriting agreement required the  underwriters to subscribe to  any umsubscribed shares  ln the rights  issue.  However,  as the  underwnters failed to fulfil` thts ob`lgation,  the

amount recelved serves as a compensatton for this  nan­fulfillment

31   Rel.ted Partles:  ­

As per lND AS 24,  the  disclosures of transactions with  the  related  parties are given be`ow:

(i)       list of related parties where control exists and  also  related  parties with  whom  transactions have taken  place  and  relati.onship:

(a' Subsidiarv/Associ.ate Entltv Aunik  lT  Solutions  Private  Limi.ted

(b) Key Management Perscmnel Mr.  Santosh  Kumar  Kushwaha  /Manaqim  Director\

W.  Abhishek  Slnah  (Dlrector a  CFot

Mr.  Manish  Kumar  Praful  bhal'  Mehta  /Directorl

W.V1 ram  Sharma  (Past Di.rector)

Mr.S 11 Arora  /Past  Dtrecton

Ms.  Shaaun Aimani  /Past Director\

Ms.  Prema  Sethi  (Past  Director`

Ms. val Sachdeva  (Comoanv Secretarv\

Ms.N ha  Srivastava  (Comi]anv Secretarv\

(c) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced  by tne  Key Managemer`t Personnel or their M/s   RDS CorDorate Services Pn.vate Li.mited

Relatives M/sSNP  lnfoso`utions  LLP

M/s   RMS Mosciuto  Private  Limited

M/s   Consider Done

(i') Transactlon with Related Partles.­

Trar"ction with Nature of Transactlon Transactions durin| the year ®nd®d

31st March  2024|                                         31§tMarch  20 23
(a) Si.bsid(arv ComDanv:  ­

Aiinik  lT  Solutions Prtvate  Limited Loans  Given N 1 N \

Loan  Recovered N I N I

(b) Kev NI aaement  Personnel:  ­

Mr.  Sa Arora Loans rece ved N I N I

Loans repa d N I N1`l

Remunerati.on  (Sweat Equity SharesIssued)
NI'L Nil

Ms.  Shagun  Ajmani Loans recei.ved Nil N

Loans  repaid N ( N

Remunerat cin  (Sweat  Equtty  Shares N I Nil

W.  Abhishek  Si.ngh Remunera '`on 600.00 549.73

Reimbursement of Expenses 255.20

Advance against salary

Advance agai'nst salary recovered 5001
Mr.  Santosh  Kumar  KushwahaMsPaalshd Payment towards Remunerati`onpayable

7,200.00 Nil

Rein bursement of Expenses 9,201. 75 6  893  84
Remunerati On

7 2cO  00
Loans Rece ved

2  224  50
P ment towards expenses  payable 3,446.00 Nit

•  TrayMsNh ac      evaS` Remuneratton
420,00

/c\ Reiat,Eye: orf'Eacsvta=anaoement personnel.   None            Remunerat'°n                                                                                                                7.13                                                                         N„

men      ersonne   andM/sRDSCorporateServicesPrivateumlted RelaLoa tives are  havinQ  siQnificant  influensgiven nces  :  ­                                                1 3 , 503 . 50

583.cO

Loans recovered 9,331.50 6,982.81
Sale of goodsS'

Nil 6,924.97

M/s   Consider Done

eLoa

n  Given

3,480.00 464.cO

Loan  Recovered
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(''') Bal.nco with the R.lated P.rtles; ­

Trans.ctton wlthSb'` Nature of Transactlon Balance as atI31stMarch2024l

(a)
usldAunik I'arv CoTSolut'mDanv;.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    31st Mlrcli  z023#tsp::%ant=e:i.=itedlIrlvestmenttTTEqurtyshartFrI9,527.00I9,527.co

(b) Kev Mnaqe

w.  Abmshek  SingtiMr.SantoshKumar Kushwahatuts.PavalSachdeva
Advance against salary

nil
Loans a AdvancesRemunerationPavableRemunerationpabl

nilZ.00

Ms.  Nena  Sriv stava
N''

(c)(d) Relatives of Kev Manaqement  Personnel  :­   NoneEnterDrisesinwhichKevunnaaementPersonne` and
ya     e                                                                                                        7.13                                                                                 NilRe`ativesarehavingsiQnificantinfluences:­

M/s   RDS Corporate Services Private  LimitedM/sRMSMosautoPrivateLimited Loans a  AdvancesTradeReceivableTradePaab`es
5,778.07 Nil1,606.07

yAdvancereceived from cu  t 1 3 . 00 I
M/s   Consider Done

S  OmerLoansaAdvances 195.cON''' 195.00

Nil

32  Segment lnformatlom

The  Company  has  identified  five  reportable  segments  viz. ,  shares  and  securities,  rough  emerald,  fabn.c,  glasses  and  plastic  molded  componentsafter  taking  into  account

thenatureofproductandservicesaiidthedifferingnskandretumsonsuchproductsandservices.TheaccountingpolicTesacloptedforsegmentreportlngareinlI.newith

theaccountingpoll.cyofthecompanywithfollowingadclitionalpoli.ciesforsegmentreporting:­

(0Revenueandexpenseshavebeenidentlfl.edtoase8mentonthebasisofrelationtooperatingactMti.esofthesegment.Revenueandexpensesthatrelatesto

eriterprise as a whole and  are  not allocable to a segment on  a  reasonable  basis have been  di.sclosed as  "Un­allocable".

(ii)     Segment  Assets  and  Segment  Liabl`itles  represent  Assets  and  Liabl`lI.tl.es  in  respective  segments.   Assets  and  liab"itles  that  cannot  be  allocated  to  a  segment  on

reasonable basis have been clisclosed as  "Un­allocable".

(lii)    Scament Inform.tlon:

Plrtlculars                                                                                                                                                            I                                        31st March  20Z4|                                        31st th    h  2

Se8ment Revenue:  ­                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   rc       023|Roughemerald4i453.9415701"0I

Software Services:`naas,t,'oCc=b°,:dedcomponents                                                                                                                                                                                 co , 5 59. 59TotalRevenueI85959,537.e= &''1'020.0084,835.83

11Z,42,867.93

Segment Results(Prfit/Ibf       '

o         oss    ®  ore int®restand taxes)Tradinginshares                                                                                                                                                                         .11515

%°futgwha:emseer#dces                                                                                                                                  I                                                     (;;;. :;)

(719.cO)703992

(9  217  43)

::as:!'C molded c°=t¥r=es:ts                                                                                                               I                                               41,220.01::S=,profitBefor:I::::n­a"arableexpend`ture(nen,(3(i::a:5:::; 1  064  86

(1,850.81 )

12  447  90

8,765.43

Scamont lssds
Trading tn shares

958  00

:::::sEmerald                                                                                                                                                                                      1,21,073"586650 219  07100

11
GlassesP­ 1. 30.167.00

g::::r=°±d::c::in p°nents                                                                                                                                                                2 ,15 , 73 6. 86Un­allocable2.34.308.60Total,,37±:9:8±5.€: 2 ,17,142 . 00

2.35.703.00

i,2­3,Ilo.cO

Se­m®nt [t.bllltles

15 ,Z6,434. 57

Trading I.n sharesRoughEmerald

1, 925.002,08,805.00

Software  servtce5                                                                                                                                                                                                                           1,21,073.27

Fabrics                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            2,29,821.65Z83306775 2,49,463.00

:`na.Sat,',Cocma°b`,%ed  com p°nents                                                                                                                                                                                                    1, 57 ,123. 96

10,105.001,67,008.00

Tot.I                                                                                                                                                                        ,                                             t(33i36;74369.69: ) 5,58,869.00

Cat)ital emEiloved

11,95 , 796. 81

Rough  EmeraldSoftwareServices

10,266.cO

Fabrics                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     4,486.95p,.(282720125) (1,19,296.00)

astic  molded compenentsUn­a[tocab|e                                                                                                                                                                                                  58,612.90Total30,96,555.57 (1C),105.00)68,695.00

1,64,901.00
I                                                     3,32,454.18

3,31,603.00
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"::==::=:::::i:=::::=ndarysegmentdivYsionlnrespeetofreportablesegments

3Cate8orfesofFln.net.Ilnstruments&ndltsfalrvalueme.3urementFlmnclalassetsMeasured­ct                                                                             As

•mortked cost(I­)Loans(i)Tradereceivables(fi)CashandBankbalanceTotal                                                                                                                                             1 at 31st M­rch,  2024
As at 31st harch   202

'3,I30,281.67I23,903cO

11,75,709.74
12,97,H8.225,926.87

I

7,531.73   I12,13,5Z3.14

13,26,948.6.

Fi mnci.I  IIal)i l]tlesifeasuredatamortisecl cost

As at 31st harch   2o24
As

(i)    Borrowings(il`)Othertina(ii')Td

ncial  (labilities 66,407.9815,063.95

at 31st torch,  202355,125.16

Tota,ra  e and other payabies                                                                                                                                              ,IThefairvaluesofcurrentclebtors,bankbalances,currentcreditorsandcurrentborrowl.ngsareamaturitiesoftheseassetsandli.abi.li.ties.
19,039.03

8,39,348.049,ZO,819.97
10,05,592.41to,79,756.60

ssumed to approximate thei.r carrying amounts due to the  short­term

PartlculirsExpendlture I.n foreign currency i..e  lossEarning/Incomeinforeigncurrency

For the year ended on31stMarch2024

I          For3rs:#i:h®:::SonI
N'(

I NIl'

NIL­
Break­  up of payments made to statutory audi.tors  (includin    t

l'.rtlcul.rs                                                                                         g   axes) are dlsclosed as under:lnrespectofstatut           i'             F°r3:h:kcar.nd.d °n                            For the Year ended on

ory audtt  (inc`uding  tax  audit)Inrespectofcertlfi.catjon

I__    rch2024  220 00
31 st MIrch  2023     320  00

TOTAL                                                                                                                                                                                                                      II
51. 50
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P.rtlculars
For the year ended on31stWbrch2024 For the year ended on31stIArch2023

Contingent  Liability not  I)rovided  for

arc    an       lezure conducted  under CGST/SGST Act:  ­On6thSeptember2019,asearchhasbeenconducted  under  provision  of CGST/SGST  Act,  2017
I                                              unascertai nabLe I                                            u nascertai nab(e

wherein  the  appropriate  authorites  had  seized certaln  documents  and  freeze  the  bank accounts

of the company.The  bank accounts were subsequently unfreezd  through stay order of Hlgh CourtofPunjabandHaryanavideI.nterJmorderdated10Febriiary2020.Thematterlspendtngforad]udl'cation.ItAI.

ln  the  mater  of  addition  u/s  68  of  the  Income  tax  Act,   1961  for  A.y.  2017.  18  vide  order  dated
1,916.26 1,916.26

28th  September  2022  passed  by  CIT  (Appeals)  for  a  sum  of  Rs.  46  39  Lakhs.  The  Company  hasfi.ledanAppealagainstsuchorderwitnHon.bleIncomeTaxAppellateTribunal,NewDelhi,

whlch  I.s  pending  for  disposal.

I rro  Toiiowing  sl`iDsia?ary ccmpany  is car.sidered  in  the  Cc`r!sol.idated  Firlancial  Stater?rer!ts:  ­SN

•0. N.me of Subsidtary Country of lncorpor.tlon 96 Of Equfty  holding elther directly % of Equity holdin8 either directly
or through S ubsldlarfes or through Subsldiarfos

31st IArch 2024 31st IArch  2023
Direct Subsldi arv

I) Auntk  I.T.  So`utlons  prlvate  L(mlted                                          I                                     India
95.27% 95.2796

3a  Necessary di.sclosures requirements of Indian  Accountmg Standard  (lnd  AS)  ­19 on  `Employee Benefits'  in  respect of gratul.ty are  made as requl.red

ln  respect of .Gratuity Scheme':  ­

(i)           Amount Recognised in the Balance sheet:  ­

Partlculers
Asat31st"rchZ024 As4t31stMarch20Z3

Present Value of the otwgatton
171. 64 165 . 24

Fair Value  of Plan  Assets
N'l Nit

Funded  Status [Surplus/  (Deficit)IunrecognisedPastServlceCost
( 171. 64) (165.24)

Nil Nil

Asset/(liabi lfty) reco8rrised ln B.lance Sheet
171. 64 165 . Z4

(ii)          Amount  Recogntsed  in  statement  of  profit  a  Loss:  ­

Particulars For the y®.r .nd.d on31stlarch2o24 For the ye.r ended on31stMarch2023

Current Service  Cost
52.83 74.95

Interest Cost
12.39 15. 94

Expected  Return on  Plan  Asset
Nil Nil

Past  service cost
Nil Nil.

Expense to be reco8nized ln profit and loss
65.22 90.89

utner iomprerienslve  (ineome)/  expenses  (Reameasurement)

P.rtlculars For th. ye.r end.d onSlitMrchZ024 For the year ended on31stRArch20Z3

Cumulative  unrecopn{zed  acturlal  /qalnt/loss oDenjna.  B/F 248.71 103  21

Actuarial  /qain\/loss­0 bliaation 58.83 145. 50
Exoected  Return on  Plan AssetActuari.al  /qain)/loss­from chances in  financial

Actua rial  /qain`/loss  .  Plan  assets

Total Acturial /]a]n\Aoss
58.83 145. sO

Cumulatlve Tot.I Actuarial  /f[alm/ loss.  C/F
307. 54 248.71

• components

S. No.12 Particulars 31 st March Z024 31§t March  2023

96 cliange from Ahrcli  31,  ZOZ3toderch31zo24

Current ratioDebt­Equity Ratio
1.34 1.27 5.41%

34 Debt Service Coyerase Ratio
0.200.12 0.170.69 1 9 . 8096•83.Z8%

Return  on  Equity  Ratio  (in  %)
0.01 0.05 ­90  25%

5678 Inventory Turnover RatioTradeRece(vableTurnover RatioTradePayableTurnoverRat.
5.460.07 8.730.20 •37.44%•65.70%

'0NetCapitalTurnoverRati.a 0.09 0.24 •61  . 52%

91011 Net Profit Rati.a  (ReturnonCaita 'r'  ttlEml        d    '
0.272.08% 05 802%796 •66.50%­64.16%

p                 paye     (in96)ReturnonInvestment(in%) ­4.32% •0. ­399.54%

0.Cro% 0.00% 0. 00%
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K®,sOS.No.1ne for vart.nco of more tlian 2596 In above ratlosP.rtlcularsDb
(In  Rs  `000'')IVar'®nce

2345

e   t Service CoveraReturnonEquityRatInventoryTurnover e  Rat(a10(in%)atio
DecreaseDecreaseDecrease

ReasonsDecreaselntheearnlnsava.Ibl

Increase iDecreaseDecrease
g           I  a    eand  Increase  intheflnancecostforthecurrentyear.nprofitaftertaxisproportionatelymorethantheincreaseintota`equity.intherev

Trade Recelvable Turnover RattoTd
DecreaseDecrease

enue from operation  for the year.intherevenuefrom

67

ra   e  Payable Turnover  RatioNetCapi.talTurnoverRatioNetprofi.tRatio(ln%)                                                    I

Decrease  in  the  reven       f         °Perat'On  fortheyear.

Decrease Increase  I

ue   ram operatlon  for the year.nworklngcapi.ta(dd

Decrease
an       ecrease in  revenue  from operations.Decreaselnprofftaftt.

8       Returnon  capttal  Emp`oyed  (in  %)ComponentsofRatlo er   ax i5  proportionately more than the decrease  ln Total Revenue.Decrease|Duetodecre.P.

•S.No1portents of Ratlo                                                                                                                                                                     Ma

RatiosCurrentRatio NumeratorCurrentAssets
D®rromlhatorCurrentLiabi'`ities

rch 31st 2024Numorto
Afarch 31st Z023

23

ar12,52 , 615. 07 I Denoml"tor Numerator1427203 I Denomln&torI11,24,411.10I3,31,506.34
Debt.  EquityRatioDebtServiceC BorrowingsEarningsavailable for debt servi'ce 9  36  214  51

capital+Other equl`ty)financecost+pnncip`e  repayment
66,407.982 3,33,356.01

.1455,125.16

4

overage  RatioReturnonEquity (Net profit  before excepti.cinalItemsataxexpense+depreciationaamortization+Financecost+Nancashoperati.ngItems+otheradjustment)Netprofitaftertax­Exc. of long term  borrowings cluri`ng theperiod/year
143.03 18,619.cO 13,3sO.cO 19,396.20

5

Ratio  (in  %)lnven[ory
ept'OnalitemsRevenuefromsalesofproducts Average Total  Equi`ty  I(OpeningEquitySharecapi.tal+OpenlngOtherequi.ty+CLosingEquitySriareCapl.tal+ClosingOtherEqui.ty)/2]AverageInventory[(opening

1 , 772. 4085 3,32,431.18 14,126.28 2, 58,252.18

6

Turnover RatloTrade

Qevenue  from  operations

balanc^ve'® closing  balance)/2]raderece`vableI(0 enin
Ot3.85 t5,562.64 2,42,867.93 27,8'5.09

7

ReceTvabteTurnoverRatioTradePayable

Revenue  from operations

Pgbalance+closingbalance)/Z]Averagetradepayable[(Openin 85,013.85 12,36,413.98 2,42,867.93 12,11,3cO.13

8

Turnover  RatloNetCapital

Revenue from operati.ons

balance  +  closWorkingcapita
8balance)/2]Currentasset. 85,013.85 9,23,153. 46 Z,4Z,867.93 10,14,892.28

9

Turnover RatloNetProfitRatio

Net profit after tax.Excepti.onal

current  liabjlitR
)

85,013.85 3,16,400. 56 2,42,867.93 3,02,792.04

10

(ill  %)Return  on itemsProfit Before  interest,Tax a
evenueTotalEq from  operationsui.ty+TotalDebts

1,772.408 85,013.85 14,126.28 2,42,867.93

11

Cap'ta'Emp`oyed  (in  96)Returnon    IExceptional  Item                                          (Interestlncomeonflxedclet
'nc(udjab,'l'ty preference share

(   ,969.80) 2,07,544.34
(1'698.01) 1,90,261. 52

I\Flnanclanvestment  (in)IIIriskmanmume
POS'  S  +Profitcinsa`eofI.nvestments+   Incomeoflnvestment­bmpai.rmentonvalueofI.nvestmentntCurrent investments  +  Nan currentnvestments+Fixeddeposltswithank

The Company has exposure to the following risks arjsi.ng  from  fl.nancial  Instruments:

(i) harket n.sk

(a)  Interest rate r(sk;

(ti)  Credlt nisk and  ,`

(iii)  Liquidi.ty  ri'sk

Rlsk management framework

TheCompany'sactivitiesexposeutoavanetyoffinancialrisks,includingmarketrisk.TheCompany'sprimaryriskmanagementfocusistominimizepotentialndverse

effects   of   risks   on   Tts   financial   performance,    The   Company's   risk   management   assessment   policies   and   processes   are   established   to   identrty   and   analyse   the

risksfacedbytheCompanwtosetappropriaterisklimitsandcontrols,andtomomtorsuchrisksandcompllancewiththesameRiskassessmentandmanagementof

thesePollclesandprocessesarereviewedregularlytoreflectchanges|nmarketconditionsandtheCompany'sactivit`es.TheBoardofD]rectorsandtrieAud"Committee

are  responslble for overseeing  these  pollcles and  processes.

(1) Market risk

whrketrisklstherlskofchangesinthemarketpricesonaccountofforeignexchangerates,interestratesandCommodltyprices,whichshauaffecttheCompanystncome

orttievatueofitsholdingsofitsfmanctalinstrumentsTheobjectiveofmarketriskmanagamentlstomamageandcorttrolmarketr.skexpasurewithtnacceptable

parameters,  while optimisjng the  returns.

thlntorest r.t® ri±
lnterestraten.ski'stheriskthatthefairvalueorfuturecashf`owsofafinanciallnstrumentwlllfluctuatebecauseofchangeslnmarketi.nterestrates.The

Company'sexposuretomarketrlskforchangesininterestratesrelatestoborrowingsfrombanksandothers.

Interest rate sensttlvlty ­ vari.bl® rate Instruments

Areasonablypossi.blechangeof100basispointsminterestratesatthereporti.ngdatewouldhaveincreased/(decreased)equityandpromorlossbyamounts

shown   below   This   analysl.s   assumes   that   au   other   van.ables,   in   particular,   forelgn currency exchange  rates,  remaln  constant.  Thls calculation  also assumes

thatthechangeoccursatthebalancesheetdateandhasbeencalculatedbasedonriskexposuresoutstandi.ngasatthatdate.
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ParticularsOnaccountofVri
Forthe   ear ended 31st March  2024100bpdecrease

For the year ended 31st Mar  h  20
100 bp increase302.82

100 bp increase23904 100 bp decrease(239.04)551.25312.22

and advOnacco
a   able Rate on  Loansancesgivenf`

(302.82)

unt o   Vanab`e Rate onborrowingsNetimacta

(664.08)
664.08

(551   25)n   rofltablllt                              361.26                                            361.26flELg­

312.22

(in  Rs  '000'')

CreditnsklstherlskoffinanciatlosstothecompanyifacustomerorcounterpartytoaflnanciatlnstrumentfailstomeetitscontractuaLobli8atlonsandansespnnclpally

fromthecompanysreceivab(esfromcustomerTheCompanyestablishesanallowancefordoubtfutdebts,impairementandexpectedcreditlossthatrepresentsjt

estimateanal`owancefordoubtfuldebts,impairmentandexpectedcreditlossthatrepresentsitsestimateonepectedcredi.tloss.

A.Trade recelvables

TheCompany'sexposuretocred"riskisinfluencedmainLybytheindlvldualcharactensticsOfeachcustomerThedemographicsofthecustomer,tncludmgthedefau(t

nskofthelndustryhasaninfluenceoncreditnskassessmentCreditriskmanagedthroughcreditapprovals,establishingcredittimitsandcontlnuoustymonltonngthe

creditworthinessofcustomerstowhichtheCompanygrantscredittermslnthenormalcourseOfbusiness.

However,thecompanydoesnotexpectanylossesfromnonperformancebythesecounter­parttesapartfromthosealreadygiveninfinanaals,anddoesnothaveany

si.gni.ficant concentrati.on of exposures.

a. Cash arid cash equlvalents

TheCompanyhoLdscashandcashequivaLentsw]thcreditworthybanksofV,531.73thousandsThecreditworthinessofsuchbanksisevaluatedbythemanagementonan

on­going basi.s and  ls consi.dered  to be good.

(iii)  Lfquidjty risk

LiquidityriskfsthenskthattheCompanywiunotbeabLetomeetitsfinancialobLigatjonsastheybecomedueTheCompanyhasbeentakingmeasurestoensurethatthe

Company'scashflowfrombustnessborrowtnglssufficienttomeetthecashrequirementsfortheCompany'soperationsTheCompanymanaglngftsllqufdltyneedsby

monitonngforecastedcashinflowsandoutflouslndaytodaybusinessLiquldityneedsaremonitorendonvanoustimebands,onadeytodayaridweektoweekbasis,as

weuasonthebasisofarolllng30daypro]ectionsNetcashrequlrementsarecomparedtoavailableworkingcapitatfacilitiesinordertodetermineheadroomorany

shortfalls.Presentlycompany'sob]ectiveistomai.ntainsufficientcashtomeetitsoperationalltqui.dityrequi.rements.

"TheCompanydidnothaveanylong­termcontractslncludingdenvat]vecontractsforwhichtherewereanymatenatforeseeabLe(asses

"TheCompanyhascompt7edW]thnumberofLayersofsubsidianesasprescnbedunderSection186(1)oftheCompamesActreadwthCompanies(RestricttononnumberOf

layers)  Rules,  2017.

41TheCompanydoesnothavetransactionswlththecompaniesstruckOffundersecti.on248ofCompaniesAct,2013.

"TheCompanydoesnothaveanyBenamiproperty,whereanyproceedinghasbeenlmtlatedorpendingagainsttheCompanyforholdinganyBenamlproperty

«TheCompanydoesnothaveanychargesorsatisfactionwhichisyettoberegisteredwithROCbeyondthestatutorypenod.

4TheCompanyhasnotbeendecLaredwilfuldefaulterbyanybankorfinanciaLinstitutlonorgovemmentoranygovernmentauthonty

%TheCompanyhasnotanysilchtransactionwhichI'snotrecordedi.nthebooksofaccountsthathasbeensurrenderedordisclosedasincomedunngtheyearinthetax

assessmentsunderthelncomeTaxAct,~"(suchas,searchorsurveyoranyotherrelevantprovTsfonsofthelncomeTaxAct,1961).

%TherehasbeennodeLaylntransfernngamounts,requiredtobetransferred,tothelnvestorEducationandProtectionFundbytheCompany

47Theconsolidatedfinancialstatementswereai)DrovedforissuebvtheBcardofDjrectorson29thdayofMav,2024.

48Previousvear'sfiqureshavebeenre­arranqedorre.qrouDedwhereverconsidernecessarv.

49  Fi.gures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Of rupees.

50  F.igures in  brackets indicate  negative (­) figures,

Stqned for the I)urpose of ldenttficatton

For S AQarwal a Co.

Chartered Accountants

FlrmRefi°riN

CA S.N.  Aqarwal

Partner

Membersrilp  No.  012103

UDIN:

Faridabad,  the 29th day of May 2024
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